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CALCULATION OF REGISTRATION FEE
Title of each class
of securities to be
(1)
registered

Amount to be
registered

Proposed maximum
offering price
per share

Proposed maximum
aggregate offering
price (US$)

Common Stock to be
offered for resale by
selling stockholders

4,040,067

$2.87

$11,594,992.29

$1,364.73

Common Stock to be
offered for resale by
selling stockholders
upon exercise of share
purchase warrants

2,020,034

$2.87

$5,797,497.58

$682.37

Total Registration Fee

Amount of
registration fee

(2)

$2,047.10

(1)
In the event of a stock split, stock dividend, or similar transaction involving our common stock, the number of shares registered
shall automatically be increased to cover the additional shares of common stock issuable pursuant to Rule 416 under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended.
(2)
Fee calculated in accordance with Rule 457(c) of the Securities Act. Estimated for the sole purpose of calculating the registration
fee. We have based the fee calculation on the average of the last reported bid and ask price for our common stock on the OTC Bulletin Board
on April 27, 2005.
THE REGISTRANT HEREBY AMENDS THIS REGISTRATION STATEMENT ON THE DATE OR DATES AS MAY BE NECESSARY
TO DELAY ITS EFFECTIVE DATE UNTIL THE REGISTRANT SHALL FILE A FURTHER AMENDMENT WHICH SPECIFICALLY
STATES THAT THIS REGISTRATION STATEMENT SHALL THEREAFTER BECOME EFFECTIVE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
SECTION 8(A) OF THE SECURITIES ACT OR UNTIL THE REGISTRATION STATEMENT SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE ON THE
DATE AS THE COMMISSION, ACTING PURSUANT TO SAID SECTION 8(A), MAY DETERMINE.
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PROSPECTUS
Subject to Completion
____________, 2005
EDEN ENERGY CORP.
A NEVADA CORPORATION
SHARES OF COMMON STOCK OF EDEN ENERGY CORP.
_________________________________

The prospectus relates to the resale by certain selling stockholders of Eden Energy Corp. of up to 6,060,101 shares of our common
stock in connection with the resale of:
- up to 3,840,067 shares and 200,000 shares of our common stock issued in a private placement on April 4, 2005 and April
27, 2005, respectively; and
- up to 1,920,034 shares and 100,000 shares of our common stock which may be issued upon the exercise of certain share
purchase warrants issued in connection with the private placement on April 4, 2005 and April 27, 2005, respectively.
The selling stockholders may offer to sell the shares of common stock being offered in this prospectus at fixed prices, at prevailing
market prices at the time of sale, at varying prices or at negotiated prices. Our common stock is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board under the
symbol "EDNE". On April 26, 2005 the closing bid price for one share of our common stock on the OTC Bulletin Board was $2.80.
Our business is subject to many risks and an investment in our common stock will also involve a high degree of risk. You
should invest in our common stock only if you can afford to lose your entire investment. You should carefully consider the various
Risk Factors described beginning on page 7 before investing in our common stock.
Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these
securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.
The information in this prospectus is not complete and may be changed. The selling stockholder may not sell or offer these
securities until this registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This prospectus is not an offer to
sell these securities and it is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any state where the offer or sale is not permitted.
The date of this prospectus is ___________________, 2005.
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The following table of contents has been designed to help you find important information contained in this prospectus. We encourage you to
read the entire prospectus.
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As used in this prospectus, the terms "we", "us", "our", and "Eden" mean Eden Energy Corp., unless otherwise indicated.
All dollar amounts refer to US dollars unless otherwise indicated.

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY
Our Business
We are an exploration stage oil and gas company engaged in the exploration for petroleum and natural gas in the State of Nevada.
We were previously involved in the business of providing internet and programming services through our former subsidiary company to
clients located primarily in Canada. Our principal products and services included the development of e-commerce web sites and strategies,
web design and hosting, domain name registration, Internet marketing and consulting and custom programming of web based applications.
Due to the inability to run this business with a profit and the difficulty in attracting additional capital on terms favorable to existing
shareholders, we ceased operation of this business in the prior year and disposed of our subsidiary company on December 31, 2003 for
nominal consideration. Our principal executive offices are located at Suite 1925, 200 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada,
V6C 3L6. Our telephone number is (604) 693-0179. We maintain a website at www.edenenergycorp.com. Information contained on our
website does not form part of this prospectus.
Number of Shares Being Offered
The prospectus relates to the resale by certain selling stockholders of Eden Energy Corp. of up to 6,060,101 shares of our common
stock in connection with the resale of:
- up to 3,840,067 shares and 200,000 shares of our common stock issued in a private placement on April 4, 2005 and April
27, 2005, respectively; and
- up to 1,920,034 shares and 100,000 shares of our common stock which may be issued upon the exercise of certain share
purchase warrants issued in connection with the private placement on April 4, 2005 and April 27, 2005, respectively.
The selling stockholders may sell these shares of common stock in the public market or through privately negotiated transactions or
otherwise. The selling shareholders may sell these shares of common stock through ordinary brokerage transactions, directly to market makers
or through any other means described in the section entitled "Plan of Distribution".
Number of Shares Outstanding
There were 27,920,936 shares of our common stock issued and outstanding as at April 29, 2005.

Use of Proceeds
We will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of the shares of our common stock being offered for sale by the selling
stockholders. We will incur all costs associated with this registration statement and prospectus. We conducted a private placement in April of
2005 to the selling stockholders listed herein, for gross proceeds of $6,060,100. These proceeds have been used primarily to implement our
growth strategy in our oil and gas exploration operations located in the State of Nevada.
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Summary of Financial Data
The summarized consolidated financial data presented below is derived from and should be read in conjunction with our audited
consolidated financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, including the notes to those financial statements which are
included elsewhere in this prospectus along with the section entitled "Management's Discussion and Analysis" beginning on page 24 of this
prospectus.

For the year ended
December 31, 2004

For the year ended
December 31, 2003

$6,462

Nil

Net Income (Loss) for the Period

($322,124)

$122,526

Loss Per Share - basic and diluted

$0.02

$0.00

As at
December 31, 2004

As at
December 31, 2003

Working Capital (Deficiency)

$2,306,360

($12,185)

Total Assets

$4,460,142

Nil

Total Number of Issued Shares of Common Stock

23,855,868

17,145,868

Deficit accumulated prior to the exploration stage

$(555,139)

$(555,139)

Deficit accumulated during the exploration stage

$(322,124)

Nil

Total Stockholders' Equity

$4,010,277

$(12,185)

Revenue

RISK FACTORS
An investment in our common stock involves a number of very significant risks. You should carefully consider the following risks
and uncertainties in addition to other information in this prospectus in evaluating our company and its business before purchasing shares of
our company's common stock. Our business, operating results and financial condition could be seriously harmed due to any of the following
risks. The risks described below are all of the material risks that we are currently aware of that are facing our company. Additional risks not
presently known to us may also impair our business operations. You could lose all or part of your investment due to any of these risks.
RISKS RELATED TO THIS OFFERING
Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock into the public market by the selling stockholders may result in significant
downward pressure on the price of our common stock and could affect the ability of our stockholders to realize the current trading price of
our common stock.
Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock in the public market could cause a reduction in the market price of our
common stock. We had 27,920,936 shares of common stock issued and outstanding as of April 29, 2004. When this registration statement is
declared effective, the selling stockholders may be reselling up to 4,040,067 shares of our common stock, not including any shares acquired on
the exercise of share purchase warrants. As a result of such registration statement, a substantial number of our shares of common stock may be
issued and may be available for immediate resale, which could have an adverse effect on the price of our common stock. As a result of any
such decreases in price of our common stock, purchasers who acquire shares from the selling stockholders may lose some or all of their
investment.
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To the extent any of the selling stockholders exercise any of their share purchase warrants, and then resell the shares of common
stock issued to them upon such exercise, the price of our common stock may decrease due to the additional shares of common stock in the
market.
Any significant downward pressure on the price of our common stock as the selling stockholders sell the shares of our common
stock could encourage short sales by the selling stockholders or others. Any such short sales could place further downward pressure on the
price of our common stock.
Trading on the OTC Bulletin Board may be sporadic because it is not a stock exchange, and stockholders may have difficulty reselling their
shares.
Our common stock is quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board. Trading in stock quoted on the OTC Bulletin Board is often thin and
characterized by wide fluctuations in trading prices, due to many factors that may have little to do with the company's operations or business
prospects. Moreover, the OTC Bulletin Board is not a stock exchange, and trading of securities on the OTC Bulletin Board is often more
sporadic than the trading of securities listed on a quotation system like Nasdaq or a stock exchange like Amex. Accordingly, you may have
difficulty reselling any of the shares you purchase from the selling stockholders.
RISKS RELATED TO OUR BUSINESS
We have had negative cash flows from operations.
To date we have had negative cash flows from operations and we have been dependent on sales of our equity securities and debt
financing to meet our cash requirements and have incurred losses totalling approximately $322,124 for the year ending December 31, 2004,
and cumulative losses of $877,263 to December 31, 2004. As of December 31, 2004 we had working capital of $2,306,360 as a result of
recent financing activities that occurred during the year. We do not expect positive cash flow from operations in the near term. There is no
assurance that actual cash requirements will not exceed our estimates. In particular, additional capital may be required in the event that:
- drilling and completion costs for further wells increase beyond our expectations; or
- we encounter greater costs associated with general and administrative expenses or offering costs.
The occurrence of any of the aforementioned events could adversely affect our ability to meet our business plans.
We will depend almost exclusively on outside capital to pay for the continued exploration and development of our properties. Such
outside capital may include the sale of additional stock and/or commercial borrowing. Capital may not continue to be available if necessary to
meet these continuing development costs or, if the capital is available, that it will be on terms acceptable to us. The issuance of additional
equity securities by us would result in a significant dilution in the equity interests of our current stockholders. Obtaining commercial loans,
assuming those loans would be available, will increase our liabilities and future cash commitments.
If we are unable to obtain financing in the amounts and on terms deemed acceptable to us, we may be unable to continue our
business and as a result may be required to scale back or cease operations for our business, the result of which would be that our stockholders
would lose some or all of their investment.
A decline in the price of our common stock could affect our ability to raise further working capital and adversely impact our operations.
A prolonged decline in the price of our common stock could result in a reduction in the liquidity of our common stock and a
reduction in our ability to raise capital. Because our operations have been primarily financed through the sale of equity securities, a decline in
the price of our common stock could be especially detrimental to our liquidity and our continued operations. Any reduction in our ability to
raise equity capital in the future would
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force us to reallocate funds from other planned uses and would have a significant negative effect on our business plans and operations,
including our ability to develop new products and continue our current operations. If our stock price declines, we may not be able to raise
additional capital or generate funds from operations sufficient to meet our obligations.
We have a history of losses and fluctuating operating results.
From inception through to December 31, 2004, we have incurred aggregate losses of approximately $877,263. Our loss from
operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 was $322,124. There is no assurance that we will operate profitably or will generate positive
cash flow in the future. In addition, our operating results in the future may be subject to significant fluctuations due to many factors not within
our control, such as the unpredictability of when customers will purchase our services, the size of customers purchases, the demand for our
services, and the level of competition and general economic conditions. If we cannot generate positive cash flows in the future, or raise
sufficient financing to continue our normal operations, then we may be forced to scale down or even close our operations. Until such time as
we generate revenues, we expect an increase in development costs and operating costs. Consequently, we expect to incur operating losses and
negative cash flow until our properties enter commercial production.
We have a limited operating history and if we are not successful in continuing to grow our business, then we may have to scale back or even
cease our ongoing business operations.
We have no history of revenues from operations and have no significant tangible assets. We have yet to generate positive earnings
and there can be no assurance that we will ever operate profitably. Our company has a limited operating history and must be considered in the
development stage. The success of the company is significantly dependent on a successful acquisition, drilling, completion and production
program. Our companys operations will be subject to all the risks inherent in the establishment of a developing enterprise and the
uncertainties arising from the absence of a significant operating history. We may be unable to locate recoverable reserves or operate on a
profitable basis. We are in the development stage and potential investors should be aware of the difficulties normally encountered by
enterprises in the development stage. If our business plan is not successful, and we are not able to operate profitably, investors may lose some
or all of their investment in our company.
Trading of our stock may be restricted by the SEC's "Penny Stock" regulations which may limit a stockholder's ability to buy and sell our
stock.
The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission has adopted regulations which generally define "penny stock" to be any equity
security that has a market price (as defined) less than $5.00 per share or an exercise price of less than $5.00 per share, subject to certain
exceptions. Our securities are covered by the penny stock rules, which impose additional sales practice requirements on broker-dealers who
sell to persons other than established customers and "accredited investors." The term "accredited investor" refers generally to institutions with
assets in excess of $5,000,000 or individuals with a net worth in excess of $1,000,000 or annual income exceeding $200,000 or $300,000
jointly with their spouse. The penny stock rules require a broker-dealer, prior to a transaction in a penny stock not otherwise exempt from the
rules, to deliver a standardized risk disclosure document in a form prepared by the SEC which provides information about penny stocks and
the nature and level of risks in the penny stock market. The broker-dealer also must provide the customer with current bid and offer quotations
for the penny stock, the compensation of the broker-dealer and its salesperson in the transaction and monthly account statements showing the
market value of each penny stock held in the customer's account. The bid and offer quotations, and the broker-dealer and salesperson
compensation information, must be given to the customer orally or in writing prior to effecting the transaction and must be given to the
customer in writing before or with the customer's confirmation. In addition, the penny stock rules require that prior to a transaction in a penny
stock not otherwise exempt from these rules, the broker-dealer must make a special written determination that the penny stock is a suitable
investment for the purchaser and receive the purchaser's written agreement to the transaction. These disclosure requirements may have the
effect of reducing the level of trading activity in the secondary market for the stock that is subject to these penny stock rules. Consequently,
these penny stock rules may affect the ability of broker-dealers to trade our securities. We believe that the penny stock rules discourage
investor interest in and limit the marketability of, our
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common stock.
NASD sales practice requirements may also limit a stockholders ability to buy and sell our stock.
In addition to the penny stock rules described above, the NASD has adopted rules that require that in recommending an
investment to a customer, a broker-dealer must have reasonable grounds for believing that the investment is suitable for that customer. Prior to
recommending speculative low priced securities to their non-institutional customers, broker-dealers must make reasonable efforts to obtain
information about the customers financial status, tax status, investment objectives and other information. Under interpretations of these rules,
the NASD believes that there is a high probability that speculative low priced securities will not be suitable for at least some customers. The
NASD requirements make it more difficult for broker-dealers to recommend that their customers buy our common stock, which may limit
your ability to buy and sell our stock and have an adverse effect on the market for our shares.
Trading in our common shares on the OTC Bulletin Board is limited and sporadic making it difficult for our shareholders to sell their shares
or liquidate their investments.
Our common shares are currently listed for public trading on the OTC Bulletin Board. The trading price of our common shares has
been subject to wide fluctuations. Trading prices of our common shares may fluctuate in response to a number of factors, many of which will
be beyond our control. The stock market has generally experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations that have often been unrelated or
disproportionate to the operating performance of companies with no current business operation. There can be no assurance that trading prices
and price earnings ratios previously experienced by our common shares will be matched or maintained. These broad market and industry
factors may adversely affect the market price of our common shares, regardless of our operating performance.
In the past, following periods of volatility in the market price of a company's securities, securities class-action litigation has often
been instituted. Such litigation, if instituted, could result in substantial costs for us and a diversion of management's attention and resources.
Because of the early stage of development and the nature of our business, our securities are considered highly speculative.
Our securities must be considered highly speculative, generally because of the nature of our business and the early stage of its
development. We are engaged in the business of exploring and, if warranted, developing commercial reserves of oil and gas. Our properties
are in the exploration stage only and are without known reserves of oil and gas. Accordingly, we have not generated any revenues nor have we
realized a profit from our operations to date and there is little likelihood that we will generate any revenues or realize any profits in the short
term. Any profitability in the future from our business will be dependent upon locating and developing economic reserves of oil and gas,
which itself is subject to numerous risk factors as set forth herein. Since we have not generated any revenues, we will have to raise additional
monies through the sale of our equity securities or debt in order to continue our business operations.
As our properties are in the exploration and development stage there can be no assurance that we will establish commercial discoveries on
our properties.
Exploration for economic reserves of oil and gas is subject to a number of risk factors. Few properties that are explored are
ultimately developed into producing oil and/or gas wells. Our properties are in the exploration and development stage only and are without
proven reserves of oil and gas. We may not establish commercial discoveries on any of our properties.
The potential profitability of oil and gas ventures depends upon factors beyond the control of our company.
The potential profitability of oil and gas properties is dependent upon many factors beyond our control. For instance, world prices
and markets for oil and gas are unpredictable, highly volatile, potentially subject to
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governmental fixing, pegging, controls, or any combination of these and other factors, and respond to changes in domestic, international,
political, social, and economic environments. Additionally, due to worldwide economic uncertainty, the availability and cost of funds for
production and other expenses have become increasingly difficult, if not impossible, to project. These changes and events may materially
affect our financial performance.
Adverse weather conditions can also hinder drilling operations. A productive well may become uneconomic in the event water or
other deleterious substances are encountered which impair or prevent the production of oil and/or gas from the well. In addition, production
from any well may be unmarketable if it is impregnated with water or other deleterious substances. The marketability of oil and gas which
may be acquired or discovered will be affected by numerous factors beyond our control. These factors include the proximity and capacity of
oil and gas pipelines and processing equipment, market fluctuations of prices, taxes, royalties, land tenure, allowable production and
environmental protection. These factors cannot be accurately predicted and the combination of these factors may result in our company not
receiving an adequate return on invested capital.
Competition in the oil and gas industry is highly competitive and there is no assurance that we will be successful in acquiring the leases.
The oil and gas industry is intensely competitive. We compete with numerous individuals and companies, including many major oil
and gas companies, which have substantially greater technical, financial and operational resources and staffs. Accordingly, there is a high
degree of competition for desirable oil and gas leases, suitable properties for drilling operations and necessary drilling equipment, as well as
for access to funds. We cannot predict if the necessary funds can be raised or that any projected work will be completed. Our budget
anticipates our acquisition of additional acreage in Nevada. This acreage may not become available or if it is available for leasing, that we may
not be successful in acquiring the leases. There are other competitors that have operations in the Nevada area and the presence of these
competitors could adversely affect our ability to acquire additional leases.
The marketability of natural resources will be affected by numerous factors beyond our control which may result in us not receiving an
adequate return on invested capital to be profitable or viable.
The marketability of natural resources which may be acquired or discovered by us will be affected by numerous factors beyond our
control. These factors include market fluctuations in oil and gas pricing and demand, the proximity and capacity of natural resource markets
and processing equipment, governmental regulations, land tenure, land use, regulation concerning the importing and exporting of oil and gas
and environmental protection regulations. The exact effect of these factors cannot be accurately predicted, but the combination of these factors
may result in us not receiving an adequate return on invested capital to be profitable or viable.
Oil and gas operations are subject to comprehensive regulation which may cause substantial delays or require capital outlays in excess of
those anticipated causing an adverse effect on our company.
Oil and gas operations are subject to federal, state, and local laws relating to the protection of the environment, including laws
regulating removal of natural resources from the ground and the discharge of materials into the environment. Oil and gas operations are also
subject to federal, state, and local laws and regulations which seek to maintain health and safety standards by regulating the design and use of
drilling methods and equipment. Various permits from government bodies are required for drilling operations to be conducted; no assurance
can be given that such permits will be received. Environmental standards imposed by federal, provincial, or local authorities may be changed
and any such changes may have material adverse effects on our activities. Moreover, compliance with such laws may cause substantial delays
or require capital outlays in excess of those anticipated, thus causing an adverse effect on us. Additionally, we may be subject to liability for
pollution or other environmental damages which it may elect not to insure against due to prohibitive premium costs and other reasons. To date
we have not been required to spend any material amount on compliance with environmental regulations. However, we may be required to do
so in future and this may affect our ability to expand or maintain our operations.
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Exploration and production activities are subject to certain environmental regulations which may prevent or delay the commencement or
continuance of our operations.
In general, our exploration and production activities are subject to certain federal, state and local laws and regulations relating to
environmental quality and pollution control. Such laws and regulations increase the costs of these activities and may prevent or delay the
commencement or continuance of a given operation. Compliance with these laws and regulations has not had a material effect on our
operations or financial condition to date. Specifically, we are subject to legislation regarding emissions into the environment, water discharges
and storage and disposition of hazardous wastes. In addition, legislation has been enacted which requires well and facility sites to be
abandoned and reclaimed to the satisfaction of state authorities. However, such laws and regulations are frequently changed and we are unable
to predict the ultimate cost of compliance. Generally, environmental requirements do not appear to affect us any differently or to any greater
or lesser extent than other companies in the industry.
We believe that our operations comply, in all material respects, with all applicable environmental regulations.
Our operating partners maintain insurance coverage customary to the industry; however, we are not fully insured against all
possible environmental risks.
Exploratory drilling involves many risks and we may become liable for pollution or other liabilities, which may have an adverse effect on our
financial position.
Drilling operations generally involve a high degree of risk. Hazards such as unusual or unexpected geological formations, power
outages, labor disruptions, blow-outs, sour gas leakage, fire, inability to obtain suitable or adequate machinery, equipment or labour, and other
risks are involved. We may become subject to liability for pollution or hazards against which it cannot adequately insure or which it may elect
not to insure. Incurring any such liability may have a material adverse effect on our financial position and operations.
Any change to government regulation/administrative practices may have a negative impact on our ability to operate and our profitability.
The laws, regulations, policies or current administrative practices of any government body, organization or regulatory agency in the
United States or any other jurisdiction, may be changed, applied or interpreted in a manner which will fundamentally alter the ability of our
company to carry on our business.
The actions, policies or regulations, or changes thereto, of any government body or regulatory agency, or other special interest
groups, may have a detrimental effect on us. Any or all of these situations may have a negative impact on our ability to operate and/or our
profitably.
Our By-laws contain provisions indemnifying our officers and directors against all costs, charges and expenses incurred by them.
Our By-laws contain provisions with respect to the indemnification of our officers and directors against all costs, charges and
expenses, including an amount paid to settle an action or satisfy a judgment, actually and reasonably incurred by him, including an amount
paid to settle an action or satisfy a judgment in a civil, criminal or administrative action or proceeding to which he is made a party by reason
of his being or having been one of our directors or officers.
Investors' interests in our company will be diluted and investors may suffer dilution in their net book value per share if we issue additional
shares or raise funds through the sale of equity securities.
Our constating documents authorize the issuance of 100,000,000 shares of common stock with a par value of $0.001 and
10,000,000 shares of preferred stock with a par value of $0.001. In the event that we are required to issue any additional shares or enter into
private placements to raise financing through the sale of equity securities, investors' interests in our company will be diluted and investors may
suffer dilution in their net book value per share
Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

- 13 -

depending on the price at which such securities are sold. If we issue any such additional shares, such issuances also will cause a reduction in
the proportionate ownership and voting power of all other shareholders. Further, any such issuance may result in a change in our control.
Our By-laws do not contain anti-takeover provisions, which could result in a change of our management and directors if there is a take-over
of our company.
We do not currently have a shareholder rights plan or any anti-takeover provisions in our By-laws. Without any anti-takeover
provisions, there is no deterrent for a take-over of our company, which may result in a change in our management and directors.
As a result of a majority of our directors and officers are residents of other countries other than the United States, investors may find it
difficult to enforce, within the United States, any judgments obtained against our company or our directors and officers.
We do not currently maintain a permanent place of business within the United States. In addition, a majority of our directors and
officers are nationals and/or residents of countries other than the United States, and all or a substantial portion of such persons' assets are
located outside the United States. As a result, it may be difficult for investors to enforce within the United States any judgments obtained
against our company or our officers or directors, including judgments predicated upon the civil liability provisions of the securities laws of the
United States or any state thereof.
Please read this prospectus carefully. You should rely only on the information contained in this prospectus. We have not authorized
anyone to provide you with different information. You should not assume that the information provided by the prospectus is accurate as of any
date other than the date on the front of this prospectus.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
This prospectus contains forward-looking statements, which relate to future events or our future financial performance. In some
cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as "may", "will", "should", "expects", "plans", "anticipates",
"believes", "estimates", "predicts", "potential" or "continue" or the negative of these terms or other comparable terminology. These statements
are only predictions and involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors, including the risks in the section entitled "Risk
Factors" on pages 8 to 14, that may cause our or our industry's actual results, levels of activity, performance or achievements to be materially
different from any future results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by these forward-looking statements.
While these forward-looking statements, and any assumptions upon which they are based, are made in good faith and reflect our
current judgment regarding the direction of our business, actual results will almost always vary, sometimes materially, from any estimates,
predictions, projections, assumptions or other future performance suggested herein. Except as required by applicable law, including the
securities laws of the United States, we do not intend to update any of the forward-looking statements to conform these statements to actual
results. The safe harbor for forward-looking statements provided in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 does not apply to the
offering made in this prospectus.
THE OFFERING
The prospectus relates to the resale by certain selling stockholders of Eden Energy Corp. of up to 6,060,101 shares of our common
stock in connection with the resale of:
- up to 3,840,067 shares and 200,000 shares of our common stock issued in a private placement on April 4, 2005 and April
27, 2005, respectively; and
- up to 1,920,034 shares and 100,000 shares of our common stock which may be issued upon the
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exercise of certain share purchase warrants issued in connection with the private placement on April 4, 2005 and April 27,
2005, respectively.
The selling stockholders may sell these shares of common stock in the public market or through privately negotiated transactions or
otherwise. The selling shareholders may sell these shares of common stock through ordinary brokerage transactions, directly to market makers
or through any other means described in the section entitled "Plan of Distribution".
USE OF PROCEEDS
The shares of common stock offered hereby are being registered for the account of the selling stockholders named in this
prospectus. As a result, all proceeds from the sales of the common stock will go to the selling stockholders and we will not receive any
proceeds from the resale of the common stock by the selling stockholders. We will, however, incur all costs associated with this registration
statement and prospectus.
SELLING STOCKHOLDERS
The selling stockholders may offer and sell, from time to time, any or all of the common stock issued and the common stock
issuable to them upon exercise of the share purchase warrants. Because the selling stockholders may offer up to 6,060,101, shares of common
stock to be registered, no estimate can be given as to the amount or percentage of these shares of common stock that will be held by the selling
stockholders upon termination of the offering.
The following table sets forth certain information regarding the beneficial ownership of shares of common stock by the selling
stockholders as of April 29, 2005, and the number of shares of common stock covered by this prospectus. The number of shares in the table
represents an estimate of the number of shares of common stock to be offered by the selling stockholder. None of the selling stockholders is a
broker-dealer, or an affiliate of a broker-dealer to our knowledge.

Name of Selling
Stockholder and Position, Office
or Material
Relationship with Eden

Common Shares
Owned by the
Selling Security
Holders

Number of Shares
Issuable Upon
Exercise of all
Share Purchase
Warrants

Number of Shares Owned
by Selling Stockholder After
Offering and Percent of Total
(1)
Issued and Outstanding

Shares Offered
Pursuant to the
Offering

# of
Shares

% of
Class

G. Scott Paterson

66,667

33,334

100,001

Nil

0%

Stanley Case

60,000

30,000

90,000

Nil

0%

300,000

150,000

450,000

Nil

0%

35,000

17,500

52,500

Nil

0%

70,000

35,000

105,000

Nil

0%

200,000

100,000

300,000

Nil

0%

15,000

7,500

22,500

Nil

0%

25,000

12,500

37,500

Nil

0%

Clarion Finanz AG
OGP

(2)

(3)

Christian Weyer
SPGP

(4)

Johan H. Pleines
Evergreen Investment Corp.

(5)
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Radina De Lusignan Giustra

50,000

25,000

75,000

Nil

0%

Steve Hanson

60,000

30,000

90,000

Nil

0%

Maria Pedrosa

50,000

25,000

75,000

Nil

0%
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John Rybinski

50,000

25,000

75,000

Nil

0%

Arbutus Gardens Apartment
(6)
Corp.

100,000

50,000

150,000

Nil

0%

John Prevedoros

100,000

50,000

150,000

Nil

0%

Gregg Layton

100,000

50,000

150,000

Nil

0%

Peter Ross

50,000

25,000

75,000

Nil

0%

Randall Goddard

20,000

10,000

30,000

Nil

0%

150,000

75,000

225,000

Nil

0%

Andrew Best

25,000

12,500

27,500

Nil

0%

Sara Relling

50,000

25,000

75,000

Nil

0%

40,000

20,000

60,000

Nil

0%

100,000

50,000

150,000

Nil

0%

50,000

25,000

75,000

Nil

0%

100,000

50,000

150,000

Nil

0%

100,000

50,000

150,000

Nil

0%

Chartwell Investment Services
(11)
S.A.

20,000

10,000

30,000

Nil

0%

Shalimar Business Services
(12)
S.A.

20,000

10,000

30,000

Nil

0%

Butterfield Bank (Guernsey)
Limited as Custodian of the
Canadian Opportunities Fund

Dolwar Invest & Trade Corp.

Keats Investments Ltd.

(7)

(8)

(9)

John Tognetti

C-Quest Holdings Ltd.

(10)

Walter H. Berukoff

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

Paul Masters
Tradewinds Investments Overseas
(13)
Inc.

RAB Special Situations LP
TOTALS

(14)

33,400

16,700

50,100

Nil

0%

200,000

100,000

300,000

Nil

0%

1,800,000

900,000

2,700,000

Nil

10.43%

4,040,067

2,020,034

6,060,101

(1)
Assumes all of the shares of common stock offered are sold. Based on 27,720,935 common shares issued and outstanding on April
29, 2005.
(2)
Carlos Civelli, the President of Clarion Finanz AG, exercises dispositive and voting power with respect to the shares of common
stock that Clarion Finanz AG owns, or that it may acquire on exercise of the share purchase warrants.
(3)
A. Ferme Garanger, the Managing Director of OGP, exercises dispositive and voting power with respect to the shares of common
stock that OGP owns, or that it may acquire on exercise of the share purchase warrants.
(4)
Guy Phillipe Bertin, the Managing Director of SPGP, exercises dispositive and voting power with respect to the shares of common
stock that SPGP owns, or that it may acquire on exercise of the share purchase warrants.
(5)
Anne Deschamps, the President of Evergreen Investment Corp., exercises dispositive and voting power with respect to the shares of
common stock that Evergreen Investment Corp. owns, or that it may acquire on exercise of the share purchase warrants.
(6)
John McKay, the President of Arbutus Gardens Apartments Corp., exercises dispositive and voting power with respect to the shares
of common stock that Arbutus Gardens Apartments Corp. owns, or that it may acquire on exercise of the share purchase warrants.
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(7)
Andrew Best, the advisor of Butterfield Bank (Guernsey) Limited, as custodian of the Canadian Opportunities Fund, exercises
dispositive and voting power with respect to the shares of common stock that Butterfield Bank (Guernsey) Limited, as custodian of the
Canadian Opportunities Fund owns, or that it may acquire on exercise of the share purchase warrants.
(8)
Werner Keicher, the President of Dolwar Invest & Trade Corp., exercises dispositive and voting power with respect to the shares of
common stock that Dolwar Invest & Trade Corp. owns, or that it may acquire on exercise of the share purchase warrants.
(9)
Patrick Gaines, the President of Keats Investments Ltd., exercises dispositive and voting power with respect to the shares of
common stock that Keats Investments Ltd. owns, or that it may acquire on exercise of the share purchase warrants.
(10)
Don Choquer, the President of C-Quest Holdings Ltd., exercises dispositive and voting power with respect to the shares of common
stock that C-Quest Holdings Ltd. owns, or that it may acquire on exercise of the share purchase warrants.
(11)
Martin Hubble, the President of Chartwell Investment Services S.A., exercises dispositive and voting power with respect to the
shares of common stock that Chartwell Investment Services S.A. owns, or that it may acquire on exercise of the share purchase warrants.
(12)
Martin Hubble, the Investment Manager of Shalimar Business Services S.A., exercises dispositive and voting power with respect to
the shares of common stock that Shalimar Business Services S.A. owns, or that it may acquire on exercise of the share purchase warrants.
(13)
Shakira Burrows, the Managing Director, of Tradewinds Investments Overseas Inc., exercises dispositive and voting power with
respect to the shares of common stock that Tradewinds Investments Overseas Inc. owns, or that it may acquire on exercise of the share
purchase warrants.
(14)
Ronan Daly, the Director of the General Partner of RAB Special Situations LP, exercises dispositive and voting power with respect
to the shares of common stock that RAB Special Situations LP owns, or that it may acquire on exercise of the share purchase warrants.
We may require the selling security holder to suspend the sales of the securities offered by this prospectus upon the occurrence of
any event that makes any statement in this prospectus or the related registration statement untrue in any material respect or that requires the
changing of statements in these documents in order to make statements in those documents not misleading.
PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION
The selling stockholders may, from time to time, sell all or a portion of the shares of common stock on any market upon which the
common stock may be listed or quoted (currently the National Association of Securities Dealers OTC Bulletin Board in the United States, in
privately negotiated transactions or otherwise. Such sales may be at fixed prices prevailing at the time of sale, at prices related to the market
prices or at negotiated prices. The shares of common stock being offered for resale by this prospectus may be sold by the selling stockholders
by one or more of the following methods, without limitation:
(a) block trades in which the broker or dealer so engaged will attempt to sell the shares of common stock as agent but may position
and resell a portion of the block as principal to facilitate the transaction;
(b) purchases by broker or dealer as principal and resale by the broker or dealer for its account pursuant to this prospectus;
(c)

an exchange distribution in accordance with the rules of the applicable exchange;

(d)

ordinary brokerage transactions and transactions in which the broker solicits purchasers;

(e)

privately negotiated transactions;

(f)

market sales (both long and short to the extent permitted under the federal securities laws);
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(g)

at the market to or through market makers or into an existing market for the shares;

(h) through transactions in options, swaps or other derivatives (whether exchange listed or otherwise); and
(i)

a combination of any of the aforementioned methods of sale.

In the event of the transfer by any of the selling stockholders of its share purchase warrants or common shares to any pledgee,
donee or other transferee, we will amend this prospectus and the registration statement of which this prospectus forms a part by the filing of a
post-effective amendment in order to have the pledgee, donee or other transferee in place of the selling stockholder who has transferred his,
her or its shares.
In effecting sales, brokers and dealers engaged by the selling stockholders may arrange for other brokers or dealers to participate.
Brokers or dealers may receive commissions or discounts from a selling stockholder or, if any of the broker-dealers act as an agent for the
purchaser of such shares, from a purchaser in amounts to be negotiated which are not expected to exceed those customary in the types of
transactions involved. Broker-dealers may agree with a selling stockholder to sell a specified number of the shares of common stock at a
stipulated price per share. Such an agreement may also require the broker-dealer to purchase as principal any unsold shares of common stock
at the price required to fulfil the broker-dealer commitment to the selling stockholder if such broker-dealer is unable to sell the shares on
behalf of the selling stockholder. Broker-dealers who acquire shares of common stock as principal may thereafter resell the shares of common
stock from time to time in transactions which may involve block transactions and sales to and through other broker-dealers, including
transactions of the nature described above. Such sales by a broker-dealer could be at prices and on terms then prevailing at the time of sale, at
prices related to the then-current market price or in negotiated transactions. In connection with such resales, the broker-dealer may pay to or
receive from the purchasers of the shares commissions as described above.
The selling stockholders and any broker-dealers or agents that participate with the selling stockholders in the sale of the shares of
common stock may be deemed to be "underwriters" within the meaning of the Securities Act in connection with these sales. In that event, any
commissions received by the broker-dealers or agents and any profit on the resale of the shares of common stock purchased by them may be
deemed to be underwriting commissions or discounts under the Securities Act.
From time to time, any of the selling stockholders may pledge shares of common stock pursuant to the margin provisions of
customer agreements with brokers. Upon a default by a selling stockholder, their broker may offer and sell the pledged shares of common
stock from time to time. Upon a sale of the shares of common stock, the selling stockholders intend to comply with the prospectus delivery
requirements under the Securities Act by delivering a prospectus to each purchaser in the transaction. We intend to file any amendments or
other necessary documents in compliance with the Securities Act which may be required in the event any of the selling stockholders defaults
under any customer agreement with brokers.
To the extent required under the Securities Act, a post effective amendment to this registration statement will be filed disclosing the
name of any broker-dealers, the number of shares of common stock involved, the price at which the common stock is to be sold, the
commissions paid or discounts or concessions allowed to such broker-dealers, where applicable, that such broker-dealers did not conduct any
investigation to verify the information set out or incorporated by reference in this prospectus and other facts material to the transaction.
We and the selling stockholders will be subject to applicable provisions of the Exchange Act and the rules and regulations under it,
including, without limitation, Rule 10b-5 and, insofar as a selling stockholder is a distribution participant and we, under certain circumstances,
may be a distribution participant, under Regulation M. All of the foregoing may affect the marketability of the common stock.
All expenses of the registration statement including, but not limited to, legal, accounting, printing and mailing fees are and will be
borne by us. Any commissions, discounts or other fees payable to brokers or dealers in connection with any sale of the shares of common
stock will be borne by the selling stockholders, the purchasers participating in such transaction, or both.
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Any shares of common stock covered by this prospectus which qualify for sale pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act, as
amended, may be sold under Rule 144 rather than pursuant to this prospectus.
PRIVATE PLACEMENTS
April 4, 2005 Private Placement
Effective April 4, 2005 we entered into subscription agreements with 29 investors (the Selling Stockholders herein), whereby we
issued a total of 3,840,067 shares of our common stock at a purchase price of $1.50 per share and 1,920,034 share purchase warrants for total
aggregate proceeds of $5,760,100.50. Each share purchase warrant entitles the holder thereof to purchase one additional share of our common
stock at a purchase price of $2.00 until April 4, 2006.
April 27, 2005 Private Placement
Effective April 27, 2005 we entered into subscription agreements with one investor (a Selling Stockholder herein), whereby we
issued a total of 200,000 shares of our common stock at a purchase price of $1.50 per share and 100,000 share purchase warrants for total
aggregate proceeds of $300,000. Each share purchase warrant entitles the holder thereof to purchase one additional share of our common stock
at a purchase price of $2.00 until April 27, 2006.
LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
We know of no material, existing or pending legal proceedings against our company, nor are we involved as a plaintiff in any
material proceeding or pending litigation. There are no proceedings in which any of our directors, officers or affiliates, or any registered or
beneficial shareholder, is an adverse party or has a material interest adverse to our interest.
DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS AND CONTROL PERSONS
All directors of our company hold office until the next annual meeting of the stockholders or until their successors have been
elected and qualified. The officers of our company are appointed by our board of directors and hold office until their death, resignation or
removal from office. Our directors, executive officers and significant employees, their ages, positions held, and duration as such, are as
follows:
Name

Position Held
with the Company

Age

Date First Elected or Appointed

Donald Sharpe

President and Director

47

May 14, 2004

Drew Bonnell

Chief Financial Officer, Secretary,
Treasurer and Director

48

May 14, 2004

John Martin

Director

48

August 31, 2004

Michael Bodino

Director

36

August 31, 2004

Business Experience
The following is a brief account of the education and business experience during at least the past five years of each director,
executive officer and key employee, indicating the principal occupation during that period, and the name and principal business of the
organization in which such occupation and employment were carried out.
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Donald Sharpe  President and Director
Mr. Sharpe has been the President and a director of our company since May 14, 2004. Mr. Sharpe graduated from the University of
British Columbia with a Bachelor of Science degree in Geophysics in 1981 and joined Suncor Inc. in August of that year. From 1981 to 1987
Mr. Sharpe trained and worked as an exploration geophysicist, gaining experience in all parts of the exploration and development cycle
throughout the Western Canadian Sedimentary Basin.
In 1987, Mr. Sharpe moved into the then new field of gas marketing where he was responsible for the direct marketing of Suncor's
gas to industrial, commercial and utility customers in the United States and Eastern Canada. The position required negotiating skills, an
understanding of the North American pipeline infrastructure, and an appreciation for the dynamics of natural gas supply and demand. Mr.
Sharpe continued his formal education and received a Certificate in Business Management from the University of Calgary in 1989.
In 1990, Mr. Sharpe returned to exploration at Suncor in the position of group leader for British Columbia exploration. In this
position, Mr. Sharpe managed a team of professionals in land, geology and geophysics and was responsible for the planning, budgeting and
execution of the team's exploration program. Mr. Sharpe continued his education and graduated from the Banff School of Advanced
Management in 1991.
In 1994, Mr. Sharpe left Suncor and returned to Vancouver to found and run a number of public companies. Operating under the
umbrella of D. Sharpe Management Inc., Mr. Sharpe has consulted to, managed and served as a director of a number of start-up oil and gas
companies including Patriot Petroleum Corp., Gemini Energy Inc., Velvet Exploration Inc., Netco Energy Inc. and Nation Energy Ltd. Mr.
Sharpe is also currently a director of Heartland Oil and Gas Corp.
Mr. Sharpe is a member of the Association of Professional Engineers, Geologists and Geophysicists of Alberta and the Canadian
Society of Exploration Geophysicists.
Drew Bonnell  Chief Financial Officer, Secretary, Treasurer and Director
Mr. Bonnell has been the Chief Financial Officer, Secretary, Treasurer and a director of our company since May 14, 2004.
Mr. Bonnell graduated from the Richard Ivey School of Business at the University of Western Ontario with a Masters of Business
Administration degree in 1998. Prior to his graduation Mr. Bonnell worked within the resort specialty retail sector for a private BC based
Company where his President's responsibilities included all aspects of business management from early stage development, finance,
operations, and personnel, through to end of cycle, divestiture. Throughout this period Mr. Bonnell's position required a broad range of skills
and expertise in order to deal with the cyclic nature of the industry and its participants. A heavy emphasis of his responsibilities was cash flow
management and finance as the cycles of resort retailing are very unpredictable.
From 1998 to 2000, Mr. Bonnell acted in a management consultant role for a private BC based company, Nical Holdings Ltd., a
Whistler based outlet, while commencing a research phase on the viability of a premium lifestyle brand being based in Whistler Canada, a
winter resort destination. The intent of the proposition was to create an appealing product line that would capture the essence of Whistler,
package it, and export it internationally. The underlying premise was that Whistler contained an untapped reserve of celebrity marketing value
available to be capitalized on, while a worldwide audience waited and wanted to associate with Whistler.
In 2001, Mr. Bonnell commenced the test-marketing phase with a series of different Brand names and a wide array of products.
Concurrently, Mr. Bonnell led a team to develop and budget an ambitious rollout plan to support an international consumer products brand
with a base in Whistler. The Snomotion Whistler Brand was chosen from the test results as the banner to move forward with.
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In late 2003, early 2004 Mr. Bonnell established Snomotion Whistler Inc. a private Nevada company to carry the Snomotion
Whistler Brand of apparel and accessories. Mr. Bonnell is a Director of Snomotion Whistler and senior manager.
Mr. Bonnell is a member of the worldwide Ivey alumni association.
Michael Bodino  Director
Mr. Bodino has been a director of our company since August 31, 2004. Mr. Bodino is currently a senior vice president and senior
exploration and production research analyst with Sterne, Agee & Leach Inc. of New Orleans, Louisiana. In this capacity Mr. Bodino provides
investment research on U.S.-based E&P companies. From 1999 to 2003, Mr. Bodino was a Director of Energy Investment Banking for
Hibernia Southcoast Capital Inc. of New Orleans, Louisiana. From 1993 to 1999 Mr. Bodino had served as a research analyst for San Jacinto
Securities, Inc., of Dallas, Texas. Mr. Bodino began his investment career at Dallas-based Rauscher Pierce Refsnes (now wholly-owned by
RBC Capital Markets) working in the Research Department in 1992. Mr. Bodino is currently a director of Heartland Oil and Gas Corp.
Mr. Bodino holds an MBA in finance from Texas Christian University and a B.S., Bachelor of Science in Economics from
Louisiana State University in Shreveport. Mr. Bodino is a member of the Independent Petroleum Association of America (IPAA) and a
member of the National Association of Petroleum Investment Analysts (NAPIA).
John Martin  Director
Mr. Martin has been a director of our company since August 31, 2004. Mr. Martin is a graduate of IMD one of the worlds top
business schools located in Lausanne, Switzerland. He is a Corporate Finance Specialist and is currently the Managing Director of CMI,
Credit Markets Investments Ltd. (Geneva). Previously, Mr. Martin was the senior VP and head of Capital Markets for Bank of Tokyo
Mitsubishi AG (Switzerland), one of the worlds largest banks. While there from 1990 to 2000, he was a member of the Investment Policy
Committee for private banking and an ALM committee member for the banks capital. Prior to this Mr. Martin was VP, Capital Markets for
the Royal Bank of Canada (Suisse) and Assistant Treasurer and Capital Markets Manager for Inspectorate Finance S.A. Geneva.
Messrs. Sharpe and Bonnell are significant employees and the loss of either of these employees would have an adverse impact on
our future developments and could impair our ability to succeed.
Family Relationships
There are no family relationships among our directors or officers.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings
Our directors, executive officers and control persons have not been involved in any of the following events during the past five
years:
1. any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such person was a general partner or executive officer either at
the time of the bankruptcy or within two years prior to that time;
2. any conviction in a criminal proceeding or being subject to a pending criminal proceeding (excluding traffic violations and other
minor offenses);
3. being subject to any order, judgment, or decree, not subsequently reversed, suspended or vacated, of any court of competent
jurisdiction, permanently or temporarily enjoining, barring, suspending or otherwise limiting his involvement in any type of business,
securities or banking activities; or
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4. being found by a court of competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the Commission or the Commodity Futures Trading
Commission to have violated a federal or state securities or commodities law, and the judgment has not been reversed, suspended, or
vacated.
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
The following table sets forth, as of April 29, 2005, certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common
stock by each stockholder known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our common stock and by each of our current directors
and executive officers. Each person has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares of common stock, except as otherwise
indicated. Beneficial ownership consists of a direct interest in the shares of common stock, except as otherwise indicated.
Name and Address of Beneficial Owner

Amount and Nature of
Beneficial Ownership
(2)

Donald Sharpe
1281 Eldon Road
North Vancouver, BC V7R 1T5

10,729,501

Drew Bonnell
2320 Queen Avenue
West Vancouver, BC V7V 2Y6

175,000

Michael Bodino
320 Orchard Road
New Orleans, LA 70123

200,000

John Martin
2, rue Thalberg
1201 Geneva
Switzerland

200,000

Directors and Executive Officers as a Group

Percentage
(1)
of Class
38.71%

(3)

*

(4)

*

(5)

*

(6)

11,304,501

40.78%

* Less than 1%.
(1)

Based on 27,920,936 shares of common stock issued and outstanding as of April 29, 2005. Beneficial ownership is determined in
accordance with the rules of the SEC and generally includes voting or investment power with respect to securities. Except as otherwise
indicated, we believe that the beneficial owners of the common stock listed above, based on information furnished by such owners, have sole
investment and voting power with respect to such shares, subject to community property laws where applicable.
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)

Includes options to acquire an aggregate of 500,000 shares of common stock.
Includes options to acquire an aggregate of 175,000 shares of common stock.
Includes options to acquire an aggregate of 200,000 shares of common stock.
Includes options to acquire an aggregate of 200,000 shares of common stock.
Includes options to acquire an aggregate of 1,075,000 shares of common stock.

Changes in Control
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We are unaware of any contract or other arrangement the operation of which may at a subsequent date result in a change in control
of our company.
DESCRIPTION OF COMMON STOCK
We are authorized to issue 100,000,000 common shares with a par value of $0.001 and 10,000,000 preferred stock with a par value
of $0.001. As at April 29, 2005 we had 27,920,936 common shares outstanding
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and no preferred stock outstanding. Upon liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the corporation, the holders of common stock are entitled
to share ratably in all net assets available for distribution to stockholders after payment to creditors. The common stock is not convertible or
redeemable and has no preemptive, subscription or conversion rights. Each outstanding share of common stock is entitled to one vote on all
matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. There are no cumulative voting rights.
The holders of outstanding shares of common stock are entitled to receive dividends out of assets legally available therefore at such
times and in such amounts as our board of directors may from time to time determine. Holders of common stock will share equally on a per
share basis in any dividend declared by the board of directors. We have not paid any dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate
paying any cash dividends on such stock in the foreseeable future.
In the event of a merger or consolidation, all holders of common stock will be entitled to receive the same per share consideration.
INTEREST OF NAMED EXPERTS AND COUNSEL
No expert or counsel named in this prospectus as having prepared or certified any part of this prospectus or having given an opinion
upon the validity of the securities being registered or upon other legal matters in connection with the registration or offering of the common
stock was employed on a contingency basis or had, or is to receive, in connection with the offering, a substantial interest, directly or indirectly,
in the registrant or any of its parents or subsidiaries. Nor was any such person connected with the registrant or any of its parents, subsidiaries
as a promoter, managing or principal underwriter, voting trustee, director, officer or employee.
EXPERTS
The consolidated financial statements of Eden Energy Corp. included in this registration statement have been audited by Dale
Matheson Carr-Hilton LaBonte, independent registered public accountants, to the extent and for the period set forth in their report appearing
elsewhere in the registration statement, and are included in reliance upon such reports given upon the authority of said firms as experts in
auditing and accounting.
DISCLOSURE OF SEC POSITION OF
INDEMNIFICATION FOR SECURITIES ACT LIABILITIES
Our bylaws provide that directors and officers shall be indemnified by us to the fullest extent authorized by the Nevada General
Corporation Law, against all expenses and liabilities reasonably incurred in connection with services for us or on our behalf. The bylaws also
authorize the board of directors to indemnify any other person who we have the power to indemnify under the Nevada General Corporation
Law, and indemnification for such a person may be greater or different from that provided in the bylaws.
Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act might be permitted to directors, officers or persons
controlling our company under the provisions described above, we have been informed that in the opinion of the Securities and Exchange
Commission such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.
DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY
Our corporate headquarters are located at 1925  200 Burrard Street, Vancouver, British Columbia V6C 3L6, Canada. We sublease
space in a 3,000 square foot office at an annual cost of CDN$12,000 including utilities. Our current premises are adequate for our current
operations and we do not anticipate that we will require any additional premises in the foreseeable future. At the present time, we do not have
any real estate holdings and there are no plans to acquire any real property interests.
Currently we hold approximately 211,000 acres in the State of Nevada pursuant to lease agreements. The expiration dates for the
leases are in 2014. The leases may be extended upon production from the leases.
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DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS
Business Development During Last Three Years
General Overview
We are an exploration stage oil and gas company engaged in the exploration for petroleum and natural gas in the State of Nevada.
We were previously involved in the business of providing internet and programming services through our former subsidiary company to
clients located primarily in Canada. Our principal products and services included the development of e-commerce web sites and strategies,
web design and hosting, domain name registration, Internet marketing and consulting and custom programming of web based applications.
Due to the inability to run this business with a profit and the difficulty in attracting additional capital on terms favorable to existing
shareholders, we ceased operation of this business in the prior year and disposed of our subsidiary company on December 31, 2003 for
nominal consideration.
Corporate History
Our company, Eden Energy Corp., was incorporated in the State of Nevada on January 29, 1999, under the name E-Com
Technologies Corp. On June 16, 2004 we effected a 2 for 1 stock split of our common stock and our preferred stock. On August 6, 2004 we
changed our name to Eden Energy Corp. and increased our authorized capital to 100,000,000 shares of common stock having a $0.001 par
value and 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock having a $0.001 par value.
Our common shares were quoted for trading on the OTCBB on December 15, 2000 under the symbol "ECTC". On June 18, 2004
our symbol changed to ECOM and on August 20, 2004 our symbol changed to EDNE.
Our Current Business
On August 31, 2004 we approved an Assignment Agreement with Fort Scott Energy Corp. dated August 5, 2004 pursuant to which
we have acquired Fort Scotts Interest in a Participation Agreement dated April 26, 2004 with Cedar Strat Corporation.
The Participation Agreement provides for the acquisition of leases, reservations, permits, licenses, or other documents of title held
by Fort Scott via its wholly owned subsidiary Frontier Explorations Ltd., which have been or will be acquired in the area of mutual interest
pursuant to the terms of the Participation Agreement, including any renewals or extensions thereof, by virtue of which the holder is entitled to
enter, access, drill for and remove petroleum and natural gas on the lands pertaining to the leases. The assets which we have acquired are the
petroleum and natural gas rights and leases held by Fort Scott through Frontier Explorations Ltd. The lands comprising the area of mutual
interest are located in eastern Nevada.
We accepted an assignment of the Participation Agreement, and the oil and gas leases held or to be acquired under the Participation
Agreement from, Fort Scott. Fort Scott retained a 2% over-riding royalty interest in the lands and all leases in the area of mutual interest
currently held by Fort Scott / Frontier, or any leases subsequently acquired by us. Fort Scott holds its interests in the leases acquired under the
Participation Agreement through its wholly owned subsidiary Frontier Explorations Ltd. Pursuant to the terms of the Assignment Agreement,
Fort Scott has agreed to transfer to us all of the issued and outstanding shares in the capital of Frontier, and, as a result, the leases held by
Frontier.
The consideration payable for the assignment of the Participation Agreement under the Assignment Agreement, and in
consideration of Fort Scott transferring to us the Frontier Shares, and, as a result, the leases held by Frontier, consists of:
(a)

the issuance to Fort Scott of 500,000 shares of our common stock;
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(b)

the issuance to Fort Scott of a Promissory Note and Convertible Debenture in the principal amount of $500,000. The
Convertible Debenture will bear interest at a rate of 7% per annum and will further entitle Fort Scott to convert payment of
the principal amount and interest accruing thereon, in whole or in part, into units. The conversion rate under the Convertible
Debenture will be $0.25 per unit, each unit entitling Fort Scott to the issuance of one common share in our capital stock and
one half of one warrant, with each whole warrant entitling Fort Scott to acquire one additional common share at $0.50 per
share; and

(c)

for each 10 million barrels of proven reserves on the lands underlying the leases, we will issue to Fort Scott 1,000,000 shares
of common stock, up to a maximum of 10,000,000 shares of common stock.

As security for the payment of the $500,000 debt and interest accruing thereon, Fort Scott was to retain ownership of the Frontier
Shares until the $500,000 debt and all interest accruing thereon has been paid in full or such debt has been converted in to the units. However,
subsequent to the Assignment Agreement Fort Scott transferred to us the one issued and outstanding share in the capital of Frontier, effective
as at August 31, 2004, as a result of which Frontier became our wholly owned subsidiary.
Fort Scott will retain its 2% over-riding royalty interest on the lands underlying the leases, such that upon the fulfilment of the
obligations set out in the Participation Agreement, we will have earned a 80.5% net revenue interest in the lands underlying the leases, and
Cedar Strat will be vested with a 5% over-riding royalty interest. Cedar Strat will also retain a 5% back in working interest which may be
adjusted upwards to as much as a 12.5% back in working interest should we elect not to proceed with the drilling election pursuant to the
terms of the Participation Agreement.
To date we have acquired leases totalling approximately 211,000 acres.

Competitors
The oil and gas industry is intensely competitive. We compete with numerous individuals and companies, including many major oil
and gas companies, which have substantially greater technical, financial and operational resources and staffs. Accordingly, there is a high
degree of competition for desirable oil and gas leases, suitable properties for drilling operations and necessary drilling equipment, as well as
for access to funds. There are other competitors that have operations in the Nevada area and the presence of these competitors could adversely
affect our ability to acquire additional leases.
Governmental Regulations
Our oil and gas operations are subject to various United States federal, state and local governmental regulations. Matters subject to
regulation include discharge permits for drilling operations, drilling and abandonment bonds, reports concerning operations, the spacing of
wells, and pooling of properties and taxation. From time to time, regulatory agencies have imposed price controls and limitations on
production by restricting the rate of flow of oil and gas wells below actual production capacity in order to conserve supplies of oil and gas.
The production, handling, storage, transportation and disposal of oil and gas, by-products thereof, and other substances and materials produced
or used in connection with oil and gas operations are also subject to regulation under federal, state, provincial and local laws and regulations
relating primarily to the protection of human health and the environment. To date, expenditures related to complying with these laws, and for
remediation of existing environmental contamination, have not been significant in relation to the results of operations of our company. The
requirements imposed by such laws and regulations are frequently changed and subject to interpretation, and we are unable to predict the
ultimate cost of compliance with these requirements or their effect on our operations.
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Research and Development
Our business plan is focused on a strategy for maximizing the long-term exploration and development of our oil and gas leases in
Nevada. To date, execution of our business plan has largely focused on acquiring prospective oil and gas leases. We intend to establish a
going forward exploration and development plan.
Employees
Currently our only employees are our directors and officers. We do not expect any material changes in the number of employees
over the next 12 month period. We do and will continue to outsource contract employment as needed. However, if we are successful in our
initial and any subsequent drilling programs we may retain additional employees.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated audited financial statements and the related notes that
appear elsewhere in this registration statement. The following discussion contains forward-looking statements that reflect our plans, estimates
and beliefs. Our actual results could differ materially from those discussed in the forward looking statements. Factors that could cause or
contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those discussed below and elsewhere in this registration statement, particularly in
the section entitled "Risk Factors" beginning on page 7 of this registration statement.
Our consolidated audited financial statements are stated in United States Dollars and are prepared in accordance with United States
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
Overview
We are a Nevada corporation incorporated on January 29, 1999. We were previously involved in the business of providing internet
and programming services through our subsidiary company to clients located primarily in Canada. Our principal products and services
included the development of e-commerce web sites and strategies, web design and hosting, domain name registration, Internet marketing and
consulting and custom programming of web based applications. Due to the inability to run this business with a profit and the difficulty in
attracting additional capital on terms favourable to existing shareholders, we ceased operation of this business in the prior year and disposed of
our subsidiary company on December 31, 2003 for nominal consideration. We are now an exploration stage oil and gas company engaged in
the exploration for petroleum and natural gas in the State of Nevada.
Plan of Operations
Cash Requirements
For the next 12 months we plan to continue to explore our leases in eastern Nevada, including additional gravity surveys, well
studies, surface mapping and seismic. Currently we hold approximately 211,000 acres pursuant to lease agreements. The expiration dates for
the leases are in 2014. The leases may be extended upon production from the leases.
Under the terms of the Participation Agreement, Exhibit D - Management Services Agreement, the funding obligations of the
Company include primary exploration payments to be made to Cedar Strat at a rate of $50,000 per month for 10 months of the first year and
$50,000 per month for 10 months during the second year. In the event exploration is progressing ahead of plan, Management has agreed to
accelerate payments accordingly. Additionally, $500,000 is budgeted for existing seismic data acquisition and processing.
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These ongoing leasehold and applicable exploration expenses including the additional seismic program (see below), which are
expected to take the prospect to a drillable stage, are currently estimated at $3,205,000. In addition, we have budgeted $4,000,000 for the
drilling and completion of the first well on our leases, which we expect to drill within the next 12 months.
We will require additional funds to implement our growth strategy in our oil and gas exploration operations. These funds may be
raised through equity financing, debt financing, or other sources, which may result in further dilution in the equity ownership of our shares.
There is still no assurance that we will be able to maintain operations at a level sufficient for an investor to obtain a return on his investment in
our common stock. Further, we may continue to be unprofitable.
Our net cash provided by financing activities during the year ended December 31, 2004 was $3,105,000.

In order to proceed with our plans we raised funds by way of a private placement of equity securities in our company. The offering
consisted of 6,190,000 shares at a price of $0.50 per share for gross proceeds of $3,095,000. We closed the private placement on November
12, 2004. The net proceeds received will be used as working capital to allow us to finance our commitments under the assignment agreement.
On November 24, 2004, we issued a further 20,000 shares at a price of $0.50 per share for gross proceeds of $10,000. On April 4, 2005 we
issued 3,840,067 shares and 1,920,035 share purchase warrants at a price of $1.50 per share for gross proceeds of $5,760,100. Each warrant
entitles the holder to purchase an additional share of common stock of our company at a price of $2.00 per share until April 4, 2006. On April
27, 2005 we issued 200,000 shares and 100,000 share purchase warrants at a price of $1.50 per share for gross proceeds of $300,000. Each
warrant entitles the holder to purchase an additional share of common stock of our company at a price of $2.00 per share until April 27, 2006.
Over the next twelve months we intend to use all available funds to expand on the exploration and development of our leases, as
follows:
Estimated Funding Required During the Next Twelve Months

General and Administrative

400,000

Delay Land Rentals  BLM

315,000

Gravity Surveys

90,000

Well Studies

50,000

Field Mapping

250,000

Seismic

2,500,000

Drilling

4,000,000

Working Capital

395,000

Total

8,000,000

As at December 31, 2004, we had $33,198 in current liabilities. Our financial statements report a net loss of $322,124 for the twelve
month period ended December 31, 2004 compared to a net income of $ 122,526 for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2003. Net
income reported for the twelve month period ended December 31, 2003 is primarily attributed to a one-time gain on disposal of a subsidiary
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and income from discontinued operations. Our accumulated loss increased to $877,263 for the period ending December 31, 2004, of which
$322,124 relates to our current business of oil and gas exploration, and $555,124 relates to the early technology business prior to business
change. Our losses increased in part as a result of stock-based compensation expense of $169,740 for the twelve-month period ended
December 31, 2004, as compared to nil for twelve month period ended December 31, 2004. We realized an overall increase in all expense
categories during the twelve month period ended December 31, 2004 as we were actively involved in the oil and gas business, as compared to
the twelve month period ended December 31, 2003 when the Company had ceased operations of the Internet services business and was
seeking new business opportunities.
Our total liabilities as of December 31, 2004 were $ 449,865, as compared to total liabilities of $12,185 as of December
31, 2003. The increase was due to the increase in accounts payable (from $12,185 as at
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December 31, 2003 to $33,198 as at December 31,2004). The increase was also due to an outstanding convertible debenture that we granted to
Fort Scott as previously mentioned. On November 12, 2004 we issued 6,190,000 shares of common stock for gross proceeds of $ $3,095,000.
On November 24, 2004 we issued an additional 20,000 shares of common stock for gross proceeds of $10,000. On April 4, 2005 we issued
3,840,067 shares and 1,920,035 share purchase warrants at a price of $1.50 per share for gross proceeds of $5,760,100.50. Each warrant
entitles the holder to purchase an additional share of common stock of our company at a price of $2.00 per share until April 4, 2006. On April
27, 2005 we issued 200,000 shares and 100,000 share purchase warrants at a price of $1.50 per share for gross proceeds of $300,000. Each
warrant entitles the holder to purchase an additional share of common stock of our company at a price of $2.00 per share until April 27, 2006.
During the twelve month period ended December 31, 2004 we spent $ 2,120,584 on exploration and acquisition of our oil and gas
properties. Of this amount, $ 1,515,467 was attributable to acquisitions costs, and $ 605,117 was attributable to exploration costs.
We have suffered recurring losses from operations. The continuation of our company is dependent upon our company attaining and
maintaining profitable operations and raising additional capital. In this regard we have raised additional capital through the equity offerings
noted above.
The continuation of our business is dependent upon obtaining further financing, a successful program of acquisition and
exploration, and, finally, achieving a profitable level of operations. The issuance of additional equity securities by us could result in a
significant dilution in the equity interests of our current stockholders. Obtaining commercial loans, assuming those loans would be available,
will increase our liabilities and future cash commitments.
There are no assurances that we will be able to obtain further funds required for our continued operations. As noted herein, we are
pursuing various financing alternatives to meet our immediate and long-term financial requirements. There can be no assurance that additional
financing will be available to us when needed or, if available, that it can be obtained on commercially reasonable terms. If we are not able to
obtain the additional financing on a timely basis, we will be unable to conduct our operations as planned, and we will not be able to meet our
other obligations as they become due. In such event, we will be forced to scale down or perhaps even cease our operations.
Product Research and Development
Our business plan is focused on a strategy for maximizing the long-term exploration and development of our oil and gas leases in
Nevada. To date, execution of our business plan has largely focused on acquiring prospective oil and gas leases. We intend to establish a
going forward exploration and development plan.
Purchase of Significant Equipment
We do not intend to purchase any significant equipment (excluding oil and gas activities) over the twelve months ending December
31, 2005.
Employees
Currently our only employees are our directors and officers. We do not expect any material changes in the number of employees
over the next 12 month period. We do and will continue to outsource contract employment as needed. However, if we are successful in our
initial and any subsequent drilling programs we may retain additional employees.
Going Concern
We have suffered recurring losses from operations. The continuation of our company as a going concern is dependent upon our
company attaining and maintaining profitable operations and raising additional capital. The financial statements do not include any adjustment
relating to the recovery and classification of recorded asset
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amounts or the amount and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should our company discontinue operations.
Due to the uncertainty of our ability to meet our current operating expenses and the capital expenses noted above, in their report on
the annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2004, our independent auditors included an explanatory paragraph regarding
concerns about our ability to continue as a going concern. Our financial statements contain additional note disclosures describing the
circumstances that lead to this disclosure by our independent auditors.
The continuation of our business is dependent upon us raising additional financial support. The issuance of additional equity
securities by us could result in a significant dilution in the equity interests of our current stockholders. Obtaining commercial loans, assuming
those loans would be available, will increase our liabilities and future cash commitments.
There are no assurances that we will be able to obtain further funds required for our continued operations. As noted herein, we are
pursuing various financing alternatives to meet our immediate and long-term financial requirements. There can be no assurance that additional
financing will be available to us when needed or, if available, that it can be obtained on commercially reasonable terms. If we are not able to
obtain the additional financing on a timely basis, we will be unable to conduct our operations as planned, and we will not be able to meet our
other obligations as they become due. In such event, we will be forced to scale down or perhaps even cease our operations.
Recently Issued Accounting Standards
In December 2004, FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets - An Amendment of APB Opinion No. 29.
The guidance in APB Opinion No. 29, Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions, is based on the principle that exchanges of nonmonetary
assets should be measured based on the fair value of the assets exchanged. The guidance in that Opinion, however, included certain exceptions
to that principle. SFAS No. 153 amends Opinion No. 29 to eliminate the exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets
and replaces it with a general exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A nonmonetary
exchange has commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of the exchange. The
provisions of SFAS No. 153 are effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005. Early
application is permitted and companies must apply the standard prospectively. The adoption of this standard is not expected to have a material
effect on the Companys results of operations or financial position.
In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, Share Based Payment. SFAS 123R is a revision of SFAS No. 123
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees and its
related implementation guidance. SFAS 123R establishes standards for the accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity
instruments for goods or services. It also addresses transactions in which an entity incurs liabilities in exchange for goods or services that are
based on the fair value of the entitys equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of those equity instruments. SFAS 123R
focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions. SFAS
123R does not change the accounting guidance for share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees provided in SFAS 123
as originally issued and Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to Other Than
Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services. SFAS 123R does not address the accounting for employee
share ownership plans, which are subject to AICPA Statement of Position 93-6, Employers Accounting for Employee Stock Ownership
Plans. SFAS 123R requires a public entity to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of equity instruments
based on the grant-date fair value of the award (with limited exceptions). That cost will be recognized over the period during which an
employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award  the requisite service period (usually the vesting period). SFAS 123R
requires that the compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions be recognized in financial statements. That cost will be
measured based on the fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued. The scope of SFAS 123R includes a wide range of share-based
compensation arrangements including share options, restricted share plans,
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performance-based awards, share appreciation rights, and employee share purchase plans. Public entities (other than those filing as small
business issuers) will be required to apply SFAS 123R as of the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005. Public
entities that file as small business issuers will be required to apply SFAS 123R in the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after
December 15, 2005. For nonpublic entities, SFAS 123R must be applied as of the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning
after December 15, 2005. Management is currently evaluating the impact, which the adoption of this standard will have on the Companys
results of operations or financial position.
Application of Critical Accounting Policies
Our audited financial statements and accompanying notes are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
used in the United States. Preparing financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses. These estimates and assumptions are affected by management's application of accounting
policies. We believe that understanding the basis and nature of the estimates and assumptions involved with the following aspects of our
consolidated financial statements is critical to an understanding of our financials.
Oil and Gas Properties
We utilize the full cost method to account for its investment in oil and gas properties. Accordingly, all costs associated with
acquisition, exploration and development of oil and gas reserves, including such costs as leasehold acquisition costs, capitalized interest costs
relating to unproved properties, geological expenditures, tangible and intangible development costs including direct internal costs are
capitalized to the full cost pool. As of December 31, 2004, we have no properties with proven reserves. When we obtain proven oil and gas
reserves, capitalized costs, including estimated future costs to develop the reserves and estimated abandonment costs, net of salvage, will be
depleted on the units-of-production method using estimates of proved reserves. Investments in unproved properties and major development
projects including capitalized interest, if any, are not depleted until proved reserves associated with the projects can be determined. If the
future exploration of unproved properties are determined uneconomical the amount of such properties are added to the capitalized cost to be
depleted. As of
December 31, 2004, all of our oil and gas properties were unproved and were excluded from depletion. At December 31, 2004, management
believes none of our unproved oil and gas properties were considered impaired.
The capitalized costs included in the full cost pool are subject to a "ceiling test", which limits such costs to the aggregate of the
estimated present value, using a ten percent discount rate, of the future net revenues from proved reserves, based on current economic and
operating conditions plus the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value of unproven properties.
Sales of proved and unproved properties are accounted for as adjustments of capitalized costs with no gain or loss recognized,
unless such adjustments would significantly alter the relationship between capitalized costs and proved reserves of oil and gas, in which case
the gain or loss is recognized in the statement of operations.
Long-Lived Assets
In accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets", the carrying value of
intangible assets and other long-lived assets is reviewed on a regular basis for the existence of facts or circumstances that may suggest
impairment. We recognize impairment when the sum of the expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the
asset. Impairment losses, if any, are measured as the excess of the carrying amount of the asset over its estimated fair value.
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Going Concern
Our annual financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, which assumes the realization of assets and
liquidation of liabilities in the normal course of operations. The financial statements have been prepared assuming we will continue as a going
concern. However, certain conditions exist which raise doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern. We have suffered recurring
losses from operations and have accumulated losses of $877,263 since inception through December 31, 2004.
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
Other than as listed below, we have not been a party to any transaction, proposed transaction, or series of transactions in which the
amount involved exceeds $60,000, and in which, to our knowledge, any of our directors, officers, five percent beneficial security holder, or
any member of the immediate family of the foregoing persons has had or will have a direct or indirect material interest.
Over the year ended December 31, 2004, our company incurred management fee expenses in the amount of $32,000. A
management fee expense of $20,000 was charged by D. Sharpe Management Inc., a company wholly-owned by Donald Sharpe, our President
and a director of our company. Pursuant to a management agreement with our company dated September 1, 2004, D. Sharpe Management Inc.
receives $5,000 per month for the services that Donald Sharpe provides to our company. A management fee expense of $9,000 was charged
by Neil Maedel in his role as director of corporate communications. Pursuant to a management agreement with our company Mr. Maedel
receives $2,000 per month for the services he provides to our company. In addition, Drew Bonnell, our Chief Financial Officer and a director,
receives $1,000 per month for the services he provides to our company.
The promoters of our company are our directors and officers.

MARKET FOR COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS
Our common shares were quoted for trading on the OTCBB on December 15, 2000 under the symbol "ECTC". On June 18, 2004
our symbol changed to ECOM and on August 20, 2004 our symbol changed to EDNE. The following quotations obtained from
Stockwatch.com reflect the highs and low bids for our common stock based on inter-dealer prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or
commission an may not represent actual transactions.
The high and low bid prices of our common stock for the periods indicated below are as follows:
National Association of Securities Dealers OTC Bulletin Board

(1)

Quarter Ended

High

Low

December 31, 2004

$1.90

$1.25

September 30, 2004

$1.45

$0.40

(2)

$0.45

$0.09

March 31, 2004

$0.14

$0.02

December 31, 2003

$0.04

$0.01

September 30, 2003

$0.01

$0.01

June 30, 2003

$0.01

$0.01

March 31, 2003

$0.01

$0.01

June 30, 2004
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(1)

Over-the-counter market quotations reflect inter-dealer prices without retail mark-up, mark-down or commission, and
may not represent actual transactions.
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(2)

We effected a 2 for 1 stock split on June 16, 2004.

Our common shares are issued in registered form. Pacific Stock Transfer Company, 500 E. Warm Springs Road, Suite 240, Las
Vegas, Nevada 89119 (Telephone: 702.361.3033; Facsimile: 702.433.1979) is the registrar and transfer agent for our common shares. On
April 29, 2005, the shareholders' list of our common shares showed 102 registered shareholders and 27,920,935 (includes 25,000 shares
exercised on options  sale into market completed April 25) shares outstanding.
Equity Compensation Plan Information
As at December 31, 2004 we have one compensation plan in place, entitled 2004 Stock Option Plan. This plan has not been
approved by our security holders.

Number of Securities to be
issued upon exercise of
outstanding options

Weighted-Average
exercise price of
outstanding options

Number of securities
remaining available for
further issuance

1,500,000

$0.65

170,000
DIVIDEND POLICY

We have not declared or paid any cash dividends since inception and we do not intend to pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable
future. Although there are no restrictions that limit our ability to pay dividends on our common shares other than as described below, we
intend to retain future earnings for use in our operations and the expansion of our business.
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
No executive officer of our company received an annual salary and bonus that exceeded $60,000 during the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002. The following table shows the compensation received by our President (chief executive officer) and
Chief Financial Officer for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.
SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE
Annual Compensation

Long Term Compensation
Awards

Payouts

Name and Principal
Position

Year

Salary

Bonus

Other
Annual
Compen(1)
sation

Securities
Underlying
Options/
SARs
Granted

Donald Sharpe

2004
2003
2002

$20,000
N/A
N/A

Nil
N/A
N/A

Nil
N/A
N/A

500,000
N/A
N/A

2004
2003
2002

$3,000
N/A
N/A

Nil
N/A
N/A

Nil
N/A
N/A

200,000
N/A
N/A

President and Director

(2)

Drew Bonnell
Chief Financial Officer,
Secretary, Treasurer and
(4)
Director
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(1)

Restricted
Shares or
Restricted
Share
Units

LTIP
Payouts

All Other
Compensation

(3)

Nil
N/A
N/A

Nil
N/A
N/A

Nil
N/A
N/A

(5)

Nil
N/A
N/A

Nil
N/A
N/A

Nil
N/A
N/A
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Gerard Darmon
President, CEO, and
(6)
Director

2004
2003
2002

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Kyle Werier
President, CEO, and
(7)
Director

2004
2003
2002

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

(8)

38,000

(1)

The value of perquisites and other personal benefits, securities and property for the Named Executive Officers that do not exceed the lesser
of $50,000 or 10% of the total of the annual salary and bonus is not reported herein.
(2)
(3)
(4)

Mr. Sharpe became our President and a director of our company on May 14, 2004.
Mr. Sharpe was granted 500,000 stock options exercisable at a price of $0.50 per share until June 21, 2009.
Mr. Bonnell became our Chief Financial Officer, Secretary, Treasurer and a director of our company on May 14, 2004.

(5)

Mr. Bonnell was granted 150,000 stock options exercisable at a price of $0.50 per share until June 21, 2009. Mr. Bonnell was also granted
50,000 stock options exercisable at a price of $1.00 per share until September 1, 2009.
(6)
(7)

Mr. Darmon resigned as our President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of our company on May 14, 2004.
Mr. Werier resigned as our President, Chief Executive Officer and a director of our company on December 22, 2003.

(8) Fees have been accrued to 498635 BC Ltd. a private corporation owned by Kyle Werier.
The following table sets forth for each of the Named Executive Officers certain information concerning stock options granted to
them during fiscal 2004. We have never issued stock appreciation rights.
Number of
Securities
Underlying
Options/
SARs
Granted
(#)

Name

% of Total
Options/
SARs
Granted to
Employees
in Fiscal
(1)
Year

Exercise
Price
($/Share)

Expiration Date

Donald Sharpe
President

500,000

(2)

37.59%

$0.50

June 21, 2009

Drew Bonnell
Chief Financial Officer,
Secretary and Treasurer

(2)
150,000
(2)
50,000

15.04%

$0.50
$1.00

June 21, 2009
September 1, 2009

(1)

The denominator (of 1,330,000) was arrived at by calculating the net total number of new options awarded during the year.
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(2)

Granted pursuant to the 2004 Stock Option Plan.

The following table sets forth for each Named Executive Officer certain information concerning the number of shares subject to
both exercisable and unexercisable stock options as of December 31, 2004.
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Name

Shares
Acquired on
Exercise (#)

Aggregate
Value
Realized

Number of Securities
Underlying
Unexercised Options/SARs at
FY-End (#)
Exercisable /
Unexercisable

Value of Unexercised In-the
-Money Options/SARs at FYend ($)
Exercisable / Unexercisable

(1)

Exercisable

Unexercisable

Exercisable

Unexercisable

Donald Sharpe

Nil

Nil

500,000

0

$650,000

$0

Drew Bonnell

Nil

Nil

150,000
50,000

0
0

$195,000
$40,000

$0
$0

(1)

The values for "in-the-money" options are calculated by determining the difference between the fair market value of the securities
underlying the options as of December 31, 2004 ($1.80 per share on NASD OTCBB) and the exercise price of the individual's options.
Long-Term Incentive Plans
There are no arrangements or plans in which we provide pension, retirement or similar benefits for directors or executive officers,
except that our directors and executive officers may receive stock options at the discretion of our board of directors. We do not have any
material bonus or profit sharing plans pursuant to which cash or non-cash compensation is or may be paid to our directors or executive
officers, except that stock options may be granted at the discretion of our board of directors.
We have no plans or arrangements in respect of remuneration received or that may be received by our executive officers to
compensate such officers in the event of termination of employment (as a result of resignation, retirement, change of control) or a change of
responsibilities following a change of control, where the value of such compensation exceeds $60,000 per executive officer.
COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS
We reimburse our directors for expenses incurred in connection with attending board meetings We did not pay director's fees or
other cash compensation for services rendered as a director in the year ended December 31, 2004.
We have no formal plan for compensating our directors for their service in their capacity as directors, although such directors are
expected in the future to receive stock options to purchase common shares as awarded by our board of directors or (as to future stock options)
a compensation committee which may be established. Directors are entitled to reimbursement for reasonable travel and other out-of-pocket
expenses incurred in connection with attendance at meetings of our board of directors. Our board of directors may award special remuneration
to any director undertaking any special services on our behalf other than services ordinarily required of a director. No director received and/or
accrued any compensation for their services as a director, including committee participation and/or special assignments.
EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS
Donald Sharpe, the President and a director of our company, pursuant to a Management Agreement dated September 1, 2004, earns
management fees through D. Sharpe Management Inc., a company wholly-owned and controlled by him. We pay D. Sharpe Management Inc.
$5,000 per month for management services. During the year ended December 31, 2004 we paid D. Sharpe Management Inc. an aggregate
amount of $20,000.
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We pay Neil Maedel a management fee of $2,000 per month, pursuant to a Management Agreement dated September 1, 2004, in
consideration for management services rendered by Neil Maedel as a director corporation communications. During the year ended December
31, 2004 we paid Neil Maedel an aggregate amount of $9,000.
There are no arrangements or plans in which we provide pension, retirement or similar benefits for directors or executive officers.
Our directors and executive officers may receive stock options at the discretion of our board of directors in the future. We do not have any
material bonus or profit sharing plans pursuant to which cash or non-cash compensation is or may be paid to our directors or executive
officers, except that stock options may be granted at the discretion of our board of directors.
We have no plans or arrangements in respect of remuneration received or that may be received by our executive officers to
compensate such officers in the event of termination of employment (as a result of resignation, retirement, change of control) or a change of
responsibilities following a change of control, where the value of such compensation exceeds $60,000 per executive officer.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Our consolidated financial statements are stated in United States Dollars (US$) and are prepared in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles of the United States of America.
The following financial statements pertaining to Eden Energy Corp. are filed as part of this registration statement:
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, dated January 31, 2005
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, dated March 11, 2004
Consolidated Audited Balance Sheets as at December 31, 2004 and December 31, 2003 (incorporation)
Consolidated Audited Statements of Operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 and for the year ended December 31, 2003
Consolidated Audited Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity (Deficiency) for the period from January 29, 1999
(incorporation) to December 31, 2004
Consolidated Audited Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2004 and for the year ended December 31, 2003
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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EDEN ENERGY CORP.
(Formerly E-COM TECHNOLOGIES CORPORATION)
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Consolidated Financial Statements
(Expressed in United States dollars)
December 31, 2004
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Eden Energy Corp.
(An Exploration Stage Company)
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Eden Energy Corp. (An Exploration Stage Company) as of December 31,
2004 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders equity and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Companys management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit. The financial statements of Eden Energy Corp. as at December 31, 2003 were audited by other auditors whose report dated March
11, 2004 included an explanatory paragraph regarding the Companys ability to continue as a going concern.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company, as of December 31,
2004, and the results of its operations and its cash flows and the changes in stockholders equity for the year then ended, in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles used in the United States of America.
The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As
discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, to date the Company has not generated any significant revenues from operations and requires
additional funds to meet its obligations and fund the costs of its operations. These factors raise substantial doubt about the Companys ability
to continue as a going concern. Managements plans in this regard are described in Note 1. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
Dale Matheson Carr-Hilton LaBonte
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Vancouver, Canada
January 31, 2005
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Stockholders,
E-com Technologies Corporation
(A Development Stage Company)
We have audited the accompanying balance sheet of E-com Technologies Corporation (A Development Stage Company) as of December 31,
2003 and the statements of operations, cash flows and stockholders equity (deficiency) for the year ended December 31, 2003. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Companys management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audit provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
In our opinion, these financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of E-com Technologies
Corporation, as of December 31, 2003 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
The accompanying financial statements referred to above have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern.
As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the Company has incurred losses from operations, has a working capital deficiency and is
dependent on its ability to raise capital from shareholders or other sources to sustain operations. These factors, along with other matters as set
forth in Note 1, raise substantial doubt that the Company will be able to continue as a going concern. The financial statements do not include
any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty.
Vancouver, Canada
March 11, 2004

Amisano Hanson
Chartered Accountants
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Eden Energy Corp.
(Formerly E-Com Technologies Corporation)
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Consolidated Balance Sheets
(Expressed in United States dollars)

December 31,
2004

December 31,
2003

$2,332,744
6,814

$


2,339,558



2,120,584



$4,460,142

$

$33,198

$12,185

33,198

12,185

Convertible debenture, less unamortized discount of $85,333 (Note 6)

416,667



Total Liabilities

449,865

12,185





23,856

17,146

4,863,684

525,808

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Prepaid expenses
Total Current Assets
Oil and gas properties, unproven (Note 4)
Total Assets

Liabilities and Stockholders Equity (Deficiency)
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Stockholders Equity (Deficiency)
Preferred Stock:
10,000,000 preferred shares authorized, $0.001 par value
None issued
Common Stock: (Note 7)
100,000,000 shares authorized, $0.001 par value
23,855,868 shares issued and outstanding (December 31, 2003 - 17,145,868
shares)
Additional paid-in capital
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Deficit accumulated prior to the exploration stage

(555,139)

(555,139)

Deficit accumulated during the exploration stage

(322,124)



4,010,277

(12,185)

$4,460,142

$

Total Stockholders Equity (Deficiency)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity (Deficiency)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Eden Energy Corp.
(Formerly E-Com Technologies Corporation)
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Year Ended
December
31,
2004

Year Ended
December
31,
2003

January 1,
2004
(Date of
Inception of
Exploration
Stage) To
December
31, 2004

$6,462

$

$6,462

10,814
6,238
23,186
28,365
23,000
67,243
87,500
82,240



(300)
9,807

12,000



10,814
6,238
23,186
28,365
23,000
67,243
87,500
82,240

328,586

21,507

328,586

(322,124)

(21,507)

(322,124)




(84,562)
228,595






144,033



$(322,124)

$122,526

$(322,124)

Continuing Operations
Revenues
Interest income

Expenses
Consulting
Filing fees and transfer agent
General and administrative
Interest expense
Management fees (Note 5 (a))
Professional fees
Stock-based compensation  management fees
Stock-based compensation  consulting fees

Loss from continuing operations
Discontinued Operations (Note 9)
Comprehensive loss from operations
Gain on disposal of subsidiary
Income from discontinued operations
Net income (loss) for the year
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Basic and Diluted income (loss) per share:
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Weighted Average Shares:
Basic
Diluted

$(0.02)


$(0.00)
0.01

$(0.02)

$0.01

18,056,551
20,556,551

9,444,016
9,444,016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Eden Energy Corp.
(Formerly E-Com Technologies Corporation)
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
(Expressed in United States dollars)

Year Ended
December 31,
2004

Year Ended
December 31,
2003

January 1,
2004
(Date of
Inception of
Exploration
Stage) To
December 31,
2004

$(322,124)

$(21,507)

$(322,124)

16,667



4,973

16,667


169,740



169,740

(6,814)
40,559


16,508

(6,814)
40,559

(101,972)

(26)

(101,972)

(475)
(669,809)





1
25

(475)
(669,809)



(670,284)

26

(670,284)

3,105,000



3,105,000

3,105,000



3,105,000

Cash provided by (used in):
Operating Activities:
Net loss from continuing operations
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Interest expense relating to accretion of discounted interest rate
on convertible debt
Interest expense relating to conversion benefit of convertible
debt
Stock-based compensation
Changes in non-cash operating assets and liabilities:
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Investing Activities:
Net assets acquired of Frontier Explorations Ltd.
Oil and gas acquisition and exploration
Proceeds on sale of subsidiary
Advances from subsidiary

Financing Activities:
Issuance of common stock

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

Cash flows used in discontinued operations
Increase (decrease) in cash
Cash, beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Non-cash financing and investing activities
Issue of common shares on conversion of convertible debentures
Issue of common shares for debt settlement
Issue of common shares for oil and gas properties
Issue of convertible debenture, net of discount
Debt assumed by previous management
Supplementary disclosure:
Interest expense paid
Income taxes paid



(12,470)



2,332,744

(12,470)

2,332,744



12,470



$2,332,744

$

$2,332,744

$
$
$450,000
$400,000
$19,846

$87,995
$194,385
$
$
$

$
$
$450,000
$400,000
$19,846

$
$

$
$

$
$

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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F-7

Eden Energy Corp.
(Formerly E-Com Technologies Corporation)
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders Equity (Deficiency)
(Expressed in United States dollars)
From January 29, 1999 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 2004
Retained
earnings
(deficit)

Deficit

accumulated

accumulated

Additional

prior to the

during the

Cumulative

stockholders'

paid-in

exploration

exploration

translation

equity

Amount

capital

stage

stage

adjustment

(deficiency)

Common Stock
Shares

Total

Balance, January 29, 1999: issued for cash

3,750,000

$1,500

$1,500

$3/4

$3/4

$3/4

$3,000

April 4, 1999: Issued for cash

1,500,000

600

600

3/4

3/4

3/4

1,200

Foreign currency translation adjustments

3/4

3/4

3/4

3/4

3/4

(3)

(3)

Net income for the period

3/4

3/4

3/4

3,350

3/4

3/4

3,350

5,250,000

2,100

2,100

3,350

3/4

(3)

7,547

597,825

598

118,967

3/4

3/4

3/4

119,565

64,625

65

12,860

3/4

3/4

3/4

12,925

338,507

338

67,363

3/4

3/4

3/4

67,701

6,000

6

1,194

3/4

3/4

3/4

1,200

November 15, 2000: Issued for cash

22,622

22

6,765

3/4

3/4

3/4

6,787

December 28, 2000: Issued for services

53,000

53

4,947

3/4

3/4

3/4

5,000

3/4

3,150

(3,150)

3/4

3/4

3/4

3/4

debt

3/4

3/4

8,287

3/4

3/4

3/4

8,287

Stock-based compensation

3/4

3/4

16,103

3/4

3/4

3/4

16,103

Balance, December 31, 1999
April 30, 2000: Issued for cash
April 30, 2000: Issued for services
April 30, 2000: Issued for cash
September 18, 2000: Issued for services

Authorized par value change resulting in a
decrease in additional paid-in-capital
Detachable warrants issued with convertible
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Conversion benefit of convertible debt

3/4

3/4

8,287

3/4

3/4

3/4

8,287

Foreign currency translation adjustments

3/4

3/4

3/4

3/4

3/4

(672)

(672)

Net loss for the year

3/4

3/4

3/4

(287,656)

3/4

3/4

(287,656)

6,332,579

6,332

243,723

(284,306)

3/4

(675)

(34,926)

May 25, 2001: Issued for services

37,500

38

7,462

3/4

3/4

3/4

7,500

June 25, 2001: Issued for services

5,000

5

995

3/4

3/4

3/4

1,000

issuance

3/4

3/4

14,000

3/4

3/4

3/4

14,000

Stock-based compensation

3/4

3/4

(13,103)

3/4

3/4

3/4

(13,103)

Foreign currency translation adjustments

3/4

3/4

3/4

3/4

3/4

4,904

4,904

Net loss for the year

3/4

3/4

3/4

(249,151)

3/4

3/4

(249,151)

6,375,079

6,375

253,077

(533,457)

3/4

4,229

(269,776)

Stock-based compensation

3/4

3/4

1,122

3/4

3/4

3/4

1,122

Net loss for the year

3/4

3/4

3/4

(144,208)

3/4

3/4

(144,208)

Foreign currency translation adjustments

3/4

3/4

3/4

3/4

3/4

(874)

(874)

6,375,079

$6,375

$(677,665)

$3/4

$3,355

$(413,736)

Balance, December 31, 2000

Services rendered relating to prior year share

Balance, December 31, 2001

Balance, December 31, 2002

$254,199

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Eden Energy Corp.
(Formerly E-Com Technologies Corporation)
(An Exploration Stage Company)
Consolidated Statement of Stockholders Equity (Deficiency)
(Expressed in United States dollars)
From January 29, 1999 (Date of Inception) to December 31, 2004
Retained
earnings
(deficit)

Deficit

accumulated

accumulated

Additional

prior to the

during the

Cumulative

stockholders'

Common stock

paid-in

exploration

accumulated

translation

equity

Shares

Amount

capital

stage

stage

adjustment

(deficiency)

6,375,079

$6,375

$254,199

$(677,665)

$3/4

$3,355

$(413,736)

4,291,288

4,292

83,703

3/4

3/4

3/4

87,995

6,479,501

6,479

187,906

3/4

3/4

3/4

194,385

Net income for the year

3/4

3/4

3/4

122,526

3/4

3/4

122,526

Foreign currency translation adjustments

3/4

3/4

3/4

3/4

3/4

(3,355)

(3,355)

17,145,868

17,146

525,808

(555,139)

3/4

3/4

(12,185)

500,000

500

449,500

3/4

3/4

3/4

450,000

November 12, 2004: Issued for cash

6,190,000

6,190

3,088,810

3/4

3/4

3/4

3,095,000

November 24, 2004: Issued for cash

20,000

20

9,980

3/4

3/4

3/4

10,000

3/4

3/4

169,740

3/4

3/4

3/4

169,740

Intrinsic value

3/4

3/4

500,000

3/4

3/4

3/4

500,000

Discount interest rate

3/4

3/4

100,000

3/4

3/4

3/4

100,000

Debt assumed by previous management

3/4

3/4

19,846

3/4

3/4

3/4

19,846

Net loss for the year

3/4

3/4

3/4

3/4

(322,124)

3/4

(322,124)

23,855,868

$23,856

$4,863,684

$(555,139)

$(322,124)

$3/4

$4,010,277

Balance, December 31, 2002

Total

September 19, 2003: Conversion of
convertible debt
September 19, 2003: Issued for settlement of
debt

Balance, December 31, 2003
November 1, 2004: Issued for acquisition of
Oil and Gas Property

Stock-based compensation
Convertible debenture:

Balance, December 31, 2004
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1.

Nature and Continuance of Operations
The Company was organized on January 29, 1999 (inception) under the laws of the State of Nevada, United States of America as ECom Technologies Corporation. On November 10, 2000, the Company became a fully registered issuer reporting with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. On December 15, 2000, the Company began trading on the National Association of Securities Dealer  Over-theCounter Bulletin Board. On August 6, 2004, the Company changed its name to Eden Energy Corp.
The Company, through its formerly wholly owned Canadian subsidiary, E-Com Consultants (Canada) Corp., developed e-commerce
solutions, web-based applications, performed Internet marketing and consulting services and designed and hosted web sites. On December
31, 2003, the Company disposed of this subsidiary and as at December 31, 2003 was inactive other than seeking new business opportunities.
Consequently, effective December 31, 2003, the Company became an exploration stage company.
The Companys consolidated financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles in the United States which contemplates the realization of assets and discharge of liabilities and commitments in the normal
course of business. The Company generated revenues from website services and sales of hardware and software, but such revenues were
not sufficient to cover operating costs and this business was disposed of on December 31, 2003. Furthermore, the Company has experienced
negative cash flows from operations for the year ended December 31, 2004 and at December 31, 2004 the Company has accumulated
losses of $877,263. Since inception, the Company has funded operations through the issuance of capital stock and debt. Managements
plan is to continue raising additional funds through future equity or debt financings until it achieves profitable operations from its oil and
gas activities. The ability of the Company to continue its operations as a going concern is dependent on raising sufficient new capital to
fund its exploration and development commitments and to fund ongoing losses and ultimately on generating profitable operations.
Pursuant to an Agreement dated August 5, 2004, the Company acquired certain oil and gas interests located in Nevada, USA (see Note
3). On the completion of the transaction, the Company is primarily involved in oil and gas exploration activities. Under the terms of the
Participation Agreement, the Company has committed to fund ongoing leasehold and applicable exploration expenses required to take the
prospect to a drillable stage, currently estimated at $2,500,000 to $3,205,000 over the next 12 - 18 months. The Company expects to fund
this commitment by the sale of shares of common stock. Refer to Notes 4 and 6.

2.

Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation and Consolidation
These consolidated financial statements and related notes are presented in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States, and are expressed in United States dollars. The Company has not produced any revenues from its principal business and
is a development stage company as defined by Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (SFAS) No. 7 Accounting and Reporting
by Development Stage Enterprises. These financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary,
Frontier Exploration Ltd. ("Frontier), a company incorporated and based in the State of Nevada. All intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated. The Companys fiscal year-end is December 31.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.
SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES
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2.

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid instruments with maturity of three months or less at the time of issuance to be cash equivalents.
At December 31, 2004, cash and cash equivalents consisted of cash held at banks.
Foreign Currency Translation
The Companys functional and reporting currency is the United States dollar. The financial statements of the Company are translated to
United States dollars in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
("SFAS") No. 52 Foreign Currency Translation. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rate prevailing at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on translation or settlement of foreign currency denominated
transactions or balances are included in the determination of income. Foreign currency transactions are primarily undertaken in Canadian
dollars. The Company has not, to the date of these financials statements, entered into derivative instruments to offset the impact of foreign
currency fluctuations.
Oil and Gas Properties
The Company utilizes the full cost method to account for its investment in oil and gas properties. Accordingly, all costs associated with
acquisition, exploration and development of oil and gas reserves, including such costs as leasehold acquisition costs, capitalized interest
costs relating to unproved properties, geological expenditures, tangible and intangible development costs including direct internal costs
are capitalized to the full cost pool. As of December 31, 2004, the Company has no properties with proven reserves. When the Company
obtains proven oil and gas reserves, capitalized costs, including estimated future costs to develop the reserves and estimated abandonment
costs, net of salvage, will be depleted on the units-of-production method using estimates of proved reserves. Investments in unproved
properties and major development projects including capitalized interest, if any, are not depleted until proved reserves associated with the
projects can be determined. If the future exploration of unproved properties are determined uneconomical the amount of such properties
are added to the capitalized cost to be depleted. As of December 31, 2004, all of the Company's oil and gas properties were unproved and
were excluded from depletion. At December 31, 2004, management believes none of the Companys unproved oil and gas properties were
considered impaired.
The capitalized costs included in the full cost pool are subject to a "ceiling test", which limits such costs to the aggregate of the estimated
present value, using a ten percent discount rate, of the future net revenues from proved reserves, based on current economic and operating
conditions plus the lower of cost and estimated net realizable value of unproven properties.
Sales of proved and unproved properties are accounted for as adjustments of capitalized costs with no gain or loss recognized, unless such
adjustments would significantly alter the relationship between capitalized costs and proved reserves of oil and gas, in which case the gain
or loss is recognized in the statement of operations.
Long-Lived Assets
In accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets", the carrying value of intangible
assets and other long-lived assets is reviewed on a regular basis for the existence of facts or circumstances that may suggest impairment.
The Company recognizes impairment when the sum of the expected undiscounted future cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the
asset. Impairment losses, if any, are measured as the excess of the carrying amount of the asset over its estimated fair value.
Comparative Figures
Certain of the comparative figures have been restated to conform to the current years presentation.
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2.

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
Basic and Diluted Net Income (Loss) Per Share
The Company computes net income (loss) per share in accordance with SFAS No. 128 "Earnings per Share" which requires presentation of
both basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) on the face of the income statement. Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income (loss)
available to common shareholders (numerator) by the weighted average number of shares outstanding (denominator) during the period.
Diluted EPS gives effect to all dilutive potential common shares outstanding during the period including stock options, using the treasury
stock method, and convertible preferred stock, using the if-converted method. In computing diluted EPS, the average stock price for the
period is used in determining the number of shares assumed to be purchased from the exercise of stock options or warrants. Diluted EPS
excludes all dilutive potential shares if their effect is anti dilutive.
Financial Instruments
The carrying value of the Companys financial instruments, consisting of cash and cash equivalents, prepaid expenses, accounts payable
and accrued liabilities approximate fair value due to the relatively short maturity of these instruments. The Company has recorded the
carrying value of the Convertible Debenture at its estimated fair value as is described in Note 6.
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, establishes standards for the reporting and display of comprehensive loss and its
components in the financial statements. For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company has no items that represent a comprehensive
loss and, therefore, has not included a schedule of comprehensive loss in the financial statements. For the year ended December 31, 2003,
the only component of comprehensive loss was foreign currency translation adjustments, the details of which are disclosed in the statement
of stockholders equity.
Income Taxes
Potential benefits of income tax losses are not recognized in the accounts until realization is more likely than not. The Company has adopted
SFAS No. 109 Accounting for Income Taxes as of its inception. Pursuant to SFAS No. 109 the Company is required to compute tax
asset benefits for net operating losses carried forward. Potential benefit of net operating losses have not been recognized in these financial
statements because the Company cannot be assured that it is more likely than not that it will utilize the net operating losses carried forward
in future years.
Stock  Based Compensation
The Company has a stock-based compensation plan (Note 7), whereby stock options are granted in accordance with the policies of
regulatory authorities. The Company has elected to apply the intrinsic value method of accounting in accordance with Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees (APB 25). Under the intrinsic value method of accounting,
compensation expense is recognized if the exercise price of the Companys employee stock options is less than the market price of the
underlying common stock on the date of grant. Stock-based compensation for employees is recognized on the straight-line basis over the
vesting period of the individual options. Stock options granted to non-employees are accounted for under SFAS No. 123 Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation (SFAS 123), which establishes a fair value based method of accounting for stock-based awards, and
recognizes compensation expense based on the fair value of the stock award or fair value of the goods and services received, whichever is
more reliably measurable. Under the provisions of SFAS 123, companies that elect to account for stock-based awards in accordance with
the provisions of APB 25 are required to disclose the pro forma net income (loss) that would have resulted from the use of the fair value
based method under SFAS 123.
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2.

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
The fair value of the options granted on June 11, 2004 was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model
with the following weighted-average assumptions: risk free interest rate of 3.74%, expected volatility of 356%, an expected option life
of four years and no expected dividends. The weighted average fair value of options granted was $0.11 per share. The fair value of the
options granted on September 1, 2004 was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
weighted-average assumptions: risk free interest rate of 3.07%, expected volatility of 333%, an expected option life of four years and no
expected dividends. The weighted average fair value of options granted was $1.25 per share. Had the Company determined compensation
cost based on the fair value at the date of grant for its employee stock options, the net loss would have increased by $519,623 for the year
ended December 31, 2004.
During the year ended December 31, 2004, the Company recognized non-employee stock-based compensation in the amount of $169,740.
The following table illustrates the effect on net loss per share as if the fair value method had been applied to all outstanding and vested
awards in each year..
Year Ended
Year Ended
December 31, 2004
December 31, 2003
Net income (loss), as reported
Deduct: Total employee stock-based compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for all awards, net of
related tax effects
Pro forma net income (loss)

$(322,124)

$122,526

(519,623)



$(841,747)

$122,526

$(0.02)


$(0.00)
(0.01)

$(0.02)

$(0.01)

$(0.05)


$(0.00)
(0.01)

$(0.05)

$(0.01)

Loss per share:
Basic and Diluted - as reported
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Basic and Diluted - pro forma
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In December 2004, FASB issued SFAS No. 153, Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets - An Amendment of APB Opinion No. 29. The
guidance in APB Opinion No. 29, Accounting for Nonmonetary Transactions, is based on the principle that exchanges of nonmonetary
assets should be measured based on the fair value of the assets exchanged. The guidance in that Opinion, however, included certain
exceptions to that principle. SFAS No. 153 amends Opinion No. 29 to eliminate the exception for nonmonetary exchanges of similar
productive assets and replaces it with a general exception for exchanges of nonmonetary assets that do not have commercial substance. A
Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

nonmonetary exchange has commercial substance if the future cash flows of the entity are expected to change significantly as a result of
the exchange. The provisions of SFAS No. 153 are effective for nonmonetary asset exchanges occurring in fiscal periods beginning after
June 15, 2005. Early application is permitted and companies must apply the standard prospectively. The adoption of this standard is not
expected to have a material effect on the Companys results of operations or financial position
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2.

Significant Accounting Policies
(continued)
In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, Share Based Payment. SFAS 123R is a revision of SFAS No. 123 Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation, and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees and its related
implementation guidance. SFAS 123R establishes standards for the accounting for transactions in which an entity exchanges its equity
instruments for goods or services. It also addresses transactions in which an entity incurs liabilities in exchange for goods or services that
are based on the fair value of the entitys equity instruments or that may be settled by the issuance of those equity instruments. SFAS
123R focuses primarily on accounting for transactions in which an entity obtains employee services in share-based payment transactions.
SFAS 123R does not change the accounting guidance for share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees provided in
SFAS 123 as originally issued and Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are Issued to
Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services. SFAS 123R does not address the accounting for
employee share ownership plans, which are subject to AICPA Statement of Position 93-6, Employers Accounting for Employee Stock
Ownership Plans. SFAS 123R requires a public entity to measure the cost of employee services received in exchange for an award of
equity instruments based on the grant-date fair value of the award (with limited exceptions). That cost will be recognized over the period
during which an employee is required to provide service in exchange for the award  the requisite service period (usually the vesting
period). SFAS 123R requires that the compensation cost relating to share-based payment transactions be recognized in financial statements.
That cost will be measured based on the fair value of the equity or liability instruments issued. The scope of SFAS 123R includes a
wide range of share-based compensation arrangements including share options, restricted share plans, performance-based awards, share
appreciation rights, and employee share purchase plans. Public entities (other than those filing as small business issuers) will be required
to apply SFAS 123R as of the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after June 15, 2005. Public entities that file as small
business issuers will be required to apply SFAS 123R in the first interim or annual reporting period that begins after December 15, 2005.
For nonpublic entities, SFAS 123R must be applied as of the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning after December 15,
2005. Management is currently evaluating the impact, which the adoption of this standard will have on the Companys results of operations
or financial position.

3.

Acquisition of Business
On August 5, 2004, the Company purchased 100% of the issued and outstanding common shares of Frontier Explorations Ltd. (Frontier).
Frontier owns certain oil and gas assets located in Nevada, as more fully described in Note 4. Accordingly, the results of operations for
Frontier have been included in the accompanying consolidated financial statements from the date of acquisition. The purchase price was
$1,450,475, which included the obligation to issue 500,000 common shares at a fair value of $450,000 (issued on November 1, 2004), the
issue of a convertible debenture in the principal amount of $500,000, a beneficial conversion feature on the convertible debenture with an
intrinsic value of $500,000 and negative book value of Frontier of $475. The Company used the purchase method of accounting for this
acquisition and the purchase price was allocated to oil and gas acquisition costs.

4.

Oil and Gas Properties  Nevada, USA,
Unproven
The total costs incurred and excluded from depletion for the year ended December 31, 2004 are as follows:
Acquisition costs

$1,515,467

Exploration costs

605,117

Total

$2,120,584
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4.

Oil and Gas Properties  Nevada, USA, Unproven
(continued)
The Company entered into an Assignment Agreement with Fort Scott Energy Corp. (Fort Scott) dated August 5, 2004 in which the
Company acquired Fort Scotts interest in a Participation Agreement dated April 26, 2004 with Cedar Strat Corporation (Cedar Strat)
The Participation Agreement provides for the acquisition of certain oil and gas leases and rights located in eastern Nevada, USA, held by
Frontier, which at the time was a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fort Scott. Pursuant to the terms of the Assignment Agreement, the Company
acquired Fort Scotts interests in the oil and gas leases and rights by the acquisition of all the issued and outstanding shares in the capital
of Frontier. Fort Scott retained a 2% over-riding royalty interest in the lands and all leases held by Frontier, or subsequently acquired by
the Company.
To acquire its interest, the Company:
i)

issued 500,000 shares of common stock to Fort
Scott,

ii) issued a Promissory Note and Convertible Debenture (Debenture) to Fort Scott in the principal amount of
$500,000. The Debenture bears interest at a rate of 7% per annum, and entitles Fort Scott to convert the
principal and accrued interest into units at $0.25 per unit. Each unit will consist of one share of common stock
of the Company and one-half of one warrant. Each whole warrant will be exercisable into one additional
common share at $0.50 per share,
iii) for each 10,000,000 barrels of proven reserves developed on the lands underlying the leases, the Company
must issue to Fort Scott 1,000,000 shares of common stock, up to a maximum of 10,000,000 shares.
Under the Participation Agreement the Company has the right of election to proceed with the development of the oil and gas property
subsequent to the two-year exploration period, which commenced April 26, 2004. In the event of a positive election to develop the area,
the Company is obliged to drill two wells, the first not later than April 26, 2005, unless extended by the parties acting reasonably, the
second not later than April 26, 2006, to the shallower of the base of the sub thrust Devonian Simonson formation or a depth of 17,000 feet.
The Company must maintain the rental payments on the leases during this 2-year development period. If the Company elects to proceed
with the development of the prospect, 100% of the exploration expenses incurred will be reimbursed to the Company from production,
and 100% of the development drilling expense will be reimbursed before the Cedar Strat backin working interest becomes effective.
If the Company elects not to develop the property after the two year exploration period, the Company will, with Cedar Strats assistance,
use their collective reasonable best efforts to sell the project as a prospect for development, in whole or in part. Any fees to be paid by
any third party in this circumstance shall be paid firstly to the Company in an amount equal to 75% of all lease acquisitions, lease rentals,
lease maintenance, and exploration monies advanced on or in respect of that portion of the project being sold. Exceptions to this include
Company payments on delay rentals on the initial acreage or the after acquired acreage made after the expiry of the first two years of the
Participation Agreement, and additional expenses, all which will be reimbursed at 100%. Thereafter, all fees will be split 50/50 between
the Company and Cedar Strat.
Any other third party sales or farm outs will retain drilling (1 well minimum) and lease rental payment obligations as set out and will
include the Overriding Royalty Interest and back-in interest as described in the Participation Agreement.
Under the terms of the Participation Agreement, Exhibit D - Management Services Agreement, the funding obligations of the Company
include primary exploration payments to be made to Cedar Strat at a rate of $50,000 per month for 10 months of the first year and $50,000
per month for 10 months during the second year. In the event exploration is progressing ahead of plan, Management has agreed to accelerate
payments accordingly. Additionally, $500,000 is budgeted for seismic data acquisition and processing.
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4.

Oil and Gas Properties  Nevada, USA, Unproven
(continued)
Upon fulfillment of the obligations of the Participation Agreement, the Company will have earned a 100% working interest (an 80.5% net
revenue interest) in the lands underlying the leases. Cedar Strat will be vested with a 5% over-riding royalty interest and Fort Scott will
be vested with a 2% overriding royalty interest. Cedar Strat will also retain a 5% back-in working interest after the Company has been
reimbursed for 100% of its exploration expenses. This back-in working interest may be adjusted upwards should the Company elect not to
proceed with the drilling election pursuant to the terms of the Participation Agreement and the drilling prospect is marketed to a third party.
Under the terms of the agreement, the Company has committed to fund ongoing leasehold and applicable exploration expenses, which are
expected to take the prospect to a drillable stage, currently estimated at $3,205,000. In addition, the Company has budgeted $4,000,000 for
the drilling and completion of the first well on the leases, which is expected to be drilled within the next 12 months.

5.

Related Party Transactions
(a) The Company entered into a management agreement dated September 1, 2004 with a private company wholly
owned by the President of the Company. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company must pay $5,000 per
month for an initial term of one year, and, unless notice of termination is given by either party, is automatically
renewed for a further term of one year. At December 31, 2004, $20,000 was incurred.
(b) The Company entered into a management consultancy agreement dated September 1, 2004 with businessman
Neil Maedel of West Vancouver, BC to provide certain management services as Director of Corporate
Communications. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company must pay $2,000 per month for an initial
term of one year, and, unless notice of termination is given by either party, is automatically renewed for a
further term of one year. At December 31, 2004, $9,000 was incurred (August 15, 2004 start). The Company
also paid $3,000 in management fees to an officer of the Company
(c) During the year ended December 31, 2004, former management of the Company agreed to assume trade
accounts payable of the Company in the amount of $19,846. This amount has been recognized as additional
paid-in capital.

6.

Convertible Debenture
The Company issued a Promissory Note and Convertible Debenture (Debenture) to Fort Scott in the principal amount of $500,000. The
Debenture bears interest at a rate of 7% per annum, matures on August 31, 2006, and will entitle Fort Scott to convert the principal and
accrued interest into units at $0.25 per unit. Each unit will consist of one share of common stock and one-half of one warrant. Each whole
warrant will be exercisable into one additional common share at $0.50 per share on or before the later of August 31, 2006 or two years
from the date of issuance of the warrants. The Company has recorded a beneficial conversion feature of $500,000 as an additional cost of
the acquisition of Frontier (see Note 3) as the Debenture was issued with an intrinsic value conversion feature. In addition, the fair value
of the Debenture at issuance was estimated to be $400,000 based on an estimated fair value interest rate on debt with comparable risk
profiles of 17% and the remaining $100,000, representing the embedded equity elements, has been charged to additional paid in capital.
The Company will record a further interest expense over the term of the Debenture of $100,000 resulting from the difference between the
stated and fair value interest rates such that the carrying value of the Debenture will be increased to the face value of $500,000 at maturity.
To December 31, 2004, accrued interest of $11,699 has been included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities and a further interest
expense of $16,667 has been accrued increasing the carrying value of the Debenture to $416,667.
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7.

Capital Stock
The number of shares issued and outstanding has been restated to give retroactive effect for a reverse stock split on a two old shares for
one new share basis approved by the directors of the Company on June 3, 2004. On June 23, 2004, the Company increased its authorized
capital stock to 100,000,000 shares of common stock with a par value of $0.001 and 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock with a par value
of $0.001.
Stock Option Plan
The Companys board of directors approved an employees stock option plan to issue up to 1,500,000 shares of common stock. The plan
allows for the granting of share purchase options at a price of not less than fair value of the stock. The total number of options granted to
any person shall not exceed 5% of the issued and outstanding common stock of the Company. During the year the Company granted stock
options to acquire up to 930,000 shares of common stock exercisable at $0.50 per share on or before June 11, 2009, and 400,000 shares of
common stock exercisable at $1.00 per share on or before September 1, 2009.
A summary of the Companys stock option activity is as follows:
December 31, 2004

December 31, 2003

Number of
Options

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price

Number of
Options

Weighted
Average
Exercise Price



$

65,000

$

1,330,000

0.65



0.20

Cancelled / Forfeited





(65,000)

0.20

Exercised









1,330,000

$0.65



$

Balance, beginning of year
Issued

Balance, end of year

As at December 31, 2004, the following options are outstanding:
Outstanding and Exercisable

Exercise
Price

Number
of
Shares

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Contractual
Life (years)

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

$0.00 
$0.50

930,000

4.44

$0.50

$0.50 
$1.00

400,000

4.67

$1.00

1,330,000

4.56

$0.65
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8.

Income Taxes
Potential benefits of income tax losses are not recognized in the accounts until realization is more likely than not. The Company has
incurred net operating losses of approximately $288,000, which commence expiring in 2006. Pursuant to SFAS No. 109, the Company
is required to compute tax asset benefits for net operating losses carried forward. Potential benefit of net operating losses have not been
recognized in these financial statements because the Company cannot be assured it is more likely than not it will utilize the net operating
losses carried forward in future years. For the years ended December 31,2004 and 2003, the valuation allowance established against the
deferred tax assets increased by $44,000 and $7,000, respectively. The components of the net deferred tax asset at December 31, 2004 and
2003, and the statutory tax rate, the effective tax rate and the elected amount of the valuation allowance are indicated below:
2004
2003
$
$

Net Operating Loss
Carryforwards

288,000

153,000

Statutory Tax Rate

34%

35.6%

Effective Tax Rate





Deferred Tax Asset

98,000

54,000

(98,000)

(54,000)





Valuation Allowance
Net Deferred Tax Asset

9.

Discontinued Operations
i)

Pursuant to a purchase and sale agreement dated December 31, 2003; the Company disposed of its wholly
owned subsidiary, E-Com Consultants (Canada) Corp. to a former director of the Company for $1.
The gain on disposal of subsidiary of $228,595 is calculated as follows:
$1

Proceeds
Less: net identifiable assets
341

cash

747

accounts receivable

(74,211)

accounts payable

(579,347)

due to a related party
Less: inter-company advances written off

(652,470)
423,875
$(228,595)

Gain on disposal of subsidiary
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9.

Discontinued Operations (continued)
ii) The statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2003 includes the following amounts related to
the discontinued operations of E-Com Consultants (Canada) Corp.:
December 31,
December
2004
31, 2003
Revenues:
Website and programming services

$

$685

Expenses:
Depreciation and amortization
Interest expense
Selling, general and administrative





2,331
4,131
29,529

Total expenses



35,991

Loss before other items:



(35,306)

Other items:
Gain on disposal of assets
Foreign exchange loss




156
(46,057)

Loss for the year



(81,207)

Other comprehensive loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment



(3,355)

Comprehensive loss

$

$(84,562)

iii) Cash flows from discontinued operations are as
follows:
December 31,
2004

December 31,
2003

$

$(81,207)








2,331
(156)
46,057

Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Loss for the year
Non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortization
Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Foreign exchange loss
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
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2,635
2,764
(5,326)



(32,902)




(341)
3,608



3,267





(1,664)
19,080
(25)



17,391

Effect of foreign currency translation on cash



(226)

Decrease in cash
Cash, beginning of year




(12,470)
12,470

$

$

Investing activities:
Cash of subsidiary disposed of
Proceeds on disposal of fixed assets

Financing activities:
Repayment of obligations under capital lease
Due to related parties
Advances to parent

Cash, end of year
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WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION
We are required to file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and other information with the Securities and
Exchange Commission. Our Securities and Exchange Commission filings are available to the public over the Internet at the SEC's website at
http://www.sec.gov.
You may also read and copy any materials we file with the Securities and Exchange Commission at the SEC's public reference
room at 450 Fifth Street N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information on the operation of
the public reference rooms.
We have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission a registration statement on Form SB-2, under the Securities Act with
respect to the securities offered under this prospectus. This prospectus, which forms a part of that registration statement, does not contain all
information included in the registration statement. Certain information is omitted and you should refer to the registration statement and its
exhibits. With respect to references made in this prospectus to any contract or other document of Eden, the references are not necessarily
complete and you should refer to the exhibits attached to the registration statement for copies of the actual contract or document. You may
review a copy of the registration statement at the SEC's public reference room. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information
on the operation of the public reference rooms. Our filings and the registration statement can also be reviewed by accessing the SEC's website
at http://www.sec.gov.
No finder, dealer, sales person or other person has been authorized to give any information or to make any representation
in connection with this offering other than those contained in this prospectus and, if given or made, such information or
representation must not be relied upon as having been authorized by Eden Energy Corp. This prospectus does not constitute an offer
to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any of the securities offered hereby by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or
solicitation is not authorized or in which the person making such offer or solicitation is not qualified to do so or to any person to
whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation. Neither the delivery of this prospectus nor any sale made hereunder shall,
under any circumstances, create any implication that the information contained herein is correct as of any time subsequent to the date
of this prospectus.
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PART II - INFORMATION NOT REQUIRED IN PROSPECTUS
Item 24 INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
Nevada corporation law provides that:

- a corporation may indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or
completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, except an action by or in the right of the
corporation, by reason of the fact that he is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the
request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other
enterprise, against expenses, including attorneys' fees, judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably
incurred by him in connection with the action, suit or proceeding if he acted in good faith and in a manner which he reasonably
believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the corporation, and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding, had no
reasonable cause to believe his conduct was unlawful;
- a corporation may indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or
completed action or suit by or in the right of the corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that he is or was a
director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer,
employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against expenses, including amounts
paid in settlement and attorneys' fees actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with the defense or settlement of the
action or suit if he acted in good faith and in a manner which he reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of
the corporation. Indemnification may not be made for any claim, issue or matter as to which such a person has been adjudged by a
court of competent jurisdiction, after exhaustion of all appeals therefrom, to be liable to the corporation or for amounts paid in
settlement to the corporation, unless and only to the extent that the court in which the action or suit was brought or other court of
competent jurisdiction determines upon application that in view of all the circumstances of the case, the person is fairly and
reasonably entitled to indemnity for such expenses as the court deems proper; and
- to the extent that a director, officer, employee or agent of a corporation has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of
any action, suit or proceeding, or in defense of any claim, issue or matter therein, the corporation shall indemnify him against
expenses, including attorneys' fees, actually and reasonably incurred by him in connection with the defense.
We may make any discretionary indemnification only as authorized in the specific case upon a determination that indemnification
of the director, officer, employee or agent is proper in the circumstances. The determination must be made:
- by our stockholders;
- by our board of directors by majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who were not parties to the action, suit or proceeding;
- if a majority vote of a quorum consisting of directors who were not parties to the action, suit or proceeding so orders, by
independent legal counsel in a written opinion;
- if a quorum consisting of directors who were not parties to the action, suit or proceeding cannot be obtained, by independent legal
counsel in a written opinion; or
- by court order.

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

37

Our Certificate of Incorporation and Articles provide that no director or officer shall be personally liable to our company, any of our
stockholders or any other for damages for breach of fiduciary duty as a director or officer involving any act or omission of such director or
officer unless such acts or omissions involve intentional misconduct, fraud or a knowing violation of law, or the payment of dividends in
violation of the General Corporate Law of Nevada.
Our Bylaws provide that no officer or director shall be personally liable for any obligations of our company or for any duties or
obligations arising out of any acts or conduct of the officer or director performed for or on behalf of our company. The Bylaws also state that
we will indemnify and hold harmless each person and their heirs and administrators who shall serve at any time hereafter as a director or
officer from and against any and all claims, judgments and liabilities to which such persons shall become subject by reason of their having
heretofore or hereafter been a director or officer, or by reason of any action alleged to have heretofore or hereafter taken or omitted to have
been taken by him or her as a director or officer. We will reimburse each such person for all legal and other expenses reasonably incurred by
him in connection with any such claim or liability, including power to defend such persons from all suits or claims as provided for under the
provisions of the General Corporate Law of Nevada; provided, however, that no such persons shall be indemnified against, or be reimbursed
for, any expense incurred in connection with any claim or liability arising out of his (or her) own negligence or wilful misconduct. Our ByLaws also provide that we, our directors, officers, employees and agents will be fully protected in taking any action or making any payment,
or in refusing so to do in reliance upon the advice of counsel.
Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling
persons of our company under Nevada law or otherwise, we have been advised the opinion of the Securities and Exchange Commission is that
such indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event a claim for
indemnification against such liabilities (other than payment by us for expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling person of
our company in successful defense of any action, suit, or proceeding) is asserted by a director, officer or controlling person in connection with
the securities being registered, we will, unless in the opinion of its counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a
court of appropriate jurisdiction, the question of whether such indemnification by it is against public policy in said Act and will be governed
by the final adjudication of such issue.
Item 25 OTHER EXPENSES OF ISSUANCE AND DISTRIBUTION
The following table sets forth the costs and expenses payable by us in connection with the issuance and distribution of the securities
being registered hereunder. No expenses shall be borne by the selling stockholder. All of the amounts shown are estimates, except for the SEC
Registration Fees.
SEC registration fees

$2,047.10

Printing and engraving expenses

$5,000

Accounting fees and expenses

$5,000

(1)

(1)

(1)

Legal fees and expenses

$25,000

(1)

Transfer agent and registrar fees

$5,000
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Fees and expenses for qualification under state
securities laws

(1)

Miscellaneous

$1,000

Total

(1)

$0

$43,047.10

We have estimated these amounts
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Item 26 RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED SECURITIES
On September 8, 2003, we issued 12,959,002 shares of common stock to James Robert Todhunter at a price of $0.015 to settle debt
owing of $194,385.03. We relied on Regulation S of the Securities Act of 1933 in issuing these securities in an exempt transaction.
On September 9, 2003 six holders of convertible debentures and convertible notes issued by us in prior years elected to convert
these notes and debentures into common stock in accordance with the terms of the instruments agreed to and approved by our board of
directors upon their issuance. As a result, on September 19, 2003 we issued an aggregate 8,582,576 shares of common stock to non-affiliates
which retired convertible debt in the aggregate face value amount of $72,360. We relied on Regulation S of the Securities Act of 1933 when
this convertible debt was initially issued in an exempt transaction.
On June 16, 2004, we filed a Certificate of Amendment with the Secretary of State of Nevada decreasing our authorized capital
from 90,000,000 shares of common stock having a $0.001 par value, and 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock having a $0.001 par value to
45,000,000 shares of common stock having a $0.001 par value, and 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock having a $0.001 par value, and thereby
decreasing our issued and outstanding from 34,291,735 to 17,145,869.
On August 6, 2004 we filed a Certificate of Amendment with the Secretary of State of Nevada changing the name of our company
from E-Com Technologies Corp. to Eden Energy Corp. and increasing our authorized capital to 100,000,000 shares of common stock having a
$0.001 par value, and 10,000,000 shares of preferred stock having a $0.001 par value.
On November 1, 2004, we issued 500,000 shares to Fort Scott Energy Corp. in consideration for the assignment of our leases. We
relied upon Rule 506 of Regulation D of the Securities Act of 1933.
On November 12, 2004, we completed a private placement of 6,190,000 shares of common stock at $0.50 per share for gross
proceeds of $3,095,000. We relied on the exemptions from registration provided by Regulation S and/or Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of
1933 and upon Rule 506 of Regulation D of the Securities Act of 1933.
On November 24, 2004, we issued 20,000 shares pursuant to a private placement at $0.50 per share for gross proceeds $10,000. We
relied on the exemptions from registration provided by Regulation S and/or Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 and upon Rule 506 of
Regulation D of the Securities Act of 1933.
On April 4, 2005, we issued 3,840,067 shares of common stock and 1,920,034 share purchase warrants to the Selling Stockholders
listed herein pursuant to a private placement at $1.50 per share for gross proceeds of $5,760,100.50. Each warrant entitles the holder thereof to
purchase an additional share of common stock in the capital of our company at a price of $2.00 per share until April 4, 2006. We relied on the
exemptions from registration provided by Regulation S and/or Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933 and upon Rule 506 of Regulation D
of the Securities Act of 1933.
On April 27, 2005, we issued 200,000 shares of common stock and 100,000 share purchase warrants to one of the Selling
Stockholders listed herein pursuant to a private placement at $1.50 per share for gross proceeds of $300,000. Each warrant entitles the holder
thereof to purchase an additional share of common stock in the capital of our company at a price of $2.00 per share until April 27, 2006. We
relied on the exemptions from registration provided by Regulation S and/or Section 4(2) of the Securities Act of 1933.
Item 27 EXHIBITS
The following Exhibits are filed with this Prospectus:
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Exhibit Number

Description

(3)

(i) Articles of Incorporation; and (ii) Bylaws

3.1

Articles of Incorporation (incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form
10-SB, filed on September 11, 2000).

3.2

Bylaws (incorporated by reference from our Registration Statement on Form 10-SB, filed on
September 11, 2000).

3.3

Certificate of Amendment filed with the Secretary of State of Nevada on June 16, 2004
(incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB filed on November 22,
2004).

3.4

Certificate of Amendment filed with the Secretary of State of Nevada on August 6, 2004
(incorporated by reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB filed on November 22,
2004).

(4)

Instruments defining rights of security holders, including indentures

4.1

2004 Stock Option (incorporated by reference from our Form S-8, filed on October 8, 2004).

(5)

Opinion on Legality

5.1*

Opinion of Clark Wilson LLP regarding the legality of the securities being registered

(10)

Material Contracts

10.1

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated December 31, 2003 between E-Com Technologies
Corporation and Ron Jorgensen (incorporated by reference from our Annual Report on Form
10-KSB filed on April 14, 2004).

10.2

Assignment Agreement with Fort Scott Energy Corp. dated the 5th day of August, 2004
(incorporated by reference from our Current Report on Form 8-K filed on September 13, 2004).
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10.3

Convertible Debenture dated August 31, 2004 with Fort Scott Energy Corp. (incorporated by
reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB filed on November 22, 2004).

10.4

Share Transfer Agreement dated August 5, 2004 with Fort Scott Energy Corp. (incorporated by
reference from our Quarterly Report on Form 10-QSB filed on November 22, 2004).

10.5

Management Agreement dated September 1, 2004 with D. Sharpe Management Inc.
(incorporated by reference from our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB filed on April 14, 2005).

10.6

Management Agreement dated September 1, 2004 with Neil Maedel (incorporated by reference
from our Annual Report on Form 10-KSB filed on April 14, 2005).

10.7*

Form of Subscription Agreement entered into with the following persons:
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G. Scott Paterson
Stanley Case
Clarion Finanz AG
OPG
Christian Weyer
SPGP
Johan H. Pleines
Evergreen Investment Corp.
Radina De Lusignan Giustra
Steven Hanson
Maria Pedrosa
John Rybinski
Arbutus Gardens Apartments Corp.
John Prevedoros
Gregg Layton
Peter Ross
Randall Goddard
Andrew Best
Butterfield Bank (Guernsey) Limited as Custodian of the Canadian Opportunities Fund
Sara Relling
Dolwar Invest & Trade Corp.
Keats Investments Ltd.
John Tognetti
C-Quest Holdings Ltd.
Walter H. Berukoff
Chartwell Investment Services S.A.
Shalimar Business Services S.A.
Tradewinds Investments Overseas Inc.

10.8*

Form of Subscription Agreement with RAB Special Situations LP and Paul Masters

(14)

Code of Ethics

14.1

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (incorporated by reference from our Annual Report on
Form 10-KSB filed on April 14, 2004).

(23)

Consents

23.1*

Consent of Dale Matheson Carr-Hilton LaBonte
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23.2*

Consent of Amisano Hanson

* Filed herewith.
Item 28 UNDERTAKINGS
The undersigned company hereby undertakes that it will:
(1)

file, during any period in which offers or sales are being made, a post-effective amendment to this registration statement to include:
(a)

any prospectus required by Section 10(a)(3) of the Securities Act;

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

41

(b) reflect in the prospectus any facts or events which, individually or together, represent a fundamental change in the information in
the registration statement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any increase or decrease in volume of securities offered (if the total dollar
value of securities offered would not exceed that which was registered) and any deviation from the low or high end of the estimated
maximum offering range may be reflected in the form of prospectus filed with the Commission pursuant to Rule 424(b) if, in the
aggregate, the changes in volume and price represent no more than a 20% change in the aggregate offering price set forth in the
"Calculation of Registration Fee" table in the effective registration statement; and
(c) any additional or changed material information with respect to the plan of distribution not previously disclosed in the
registration statement;
(2)
for the purpose of determining any liability under the Securities Act, each of the post-effective amendment shall be deemed to be a
new registration statement relating to the securities offered therein, and the offering of the securities at that time shall be deemed to be the
initial bona fide offering thereof; and
(3)
remove from registration by means of a post-effective amendment any of the securities being registered which remain unsold at the
termination of the offering.
Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling
persons of Eden pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, Eden has been advised that in the opinion of the Commission that type of
indemnification is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for
indemnification against said liabilities (other than the payment by Eden of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer or controlling
person of Eden in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is asserted by the director, officer or controlling person in
connection with the securities being registered, Eden will, unless in the opinion of our counsel the matter has been settled by controlling
precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question whether such indemnification by it is against public policy as expressed in
the Securities Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of the issue.
For purposes of determining any liability under the Securities Act, the information omitted from the form of prospectus filed as part
of this registration statement in reliance upon Rule 430A and contained in a form of prospectus filed by the registrant pursuant to Rule
424(b)(1) or (4) or 497(h) under the Securities Act shall be deemed to be part of this registration statement as of the time it was declared
effective.
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SIGNATURES
In accordance with the requirements of the Securities Act, the registrant certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of
the requirements of filing on Form SB-2 and authorized this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, in the City of
Vancouver, British Columbia, Canada, on May 2, 2005
EDEN ENERGY CORP.
/s/ Donald Sharpe
By: Donald Sharpe, President and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)
Dated: May 2, 2005
POWER OF ATTORNEY
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person who signature appears below constitutes and appoints Donald Sharpe as
his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full power of substitution and re-substitution, for him and in his name, place and stead, in
any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments (including post-effective amendments) to this registration statement, and to file the
same, with all exhibits thereto, and other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto
said attorney-in-fact and agent, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in
connection therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said
attorney-in-fact and agent or any of them, or of their substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act, this registration statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on
the dates stated.
Signatures
By: /s/ Donald Sharpe
Donald Sharpe
President and Director (Principal Executive Officer)
Date: May 2, 2005
By: /s/ Drew Bonnell
Drew Bonnell,
Chief Financial Officer, Secretary, Treasurer and Director
(Principal Financial Officer
and Principal Accounting Officer)
Date: May 2, 2005
By: /s/ Michael Bodino
Michael Bodino
Director
Date: May 2, 2005
By: /s/ John Martin
John Martin
Director
Date: May 2, 2005
Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

Clark Wilson LLP
Barristers & Solicitors
Patent & Trade-mark Agents
800-885 W Georgia Street
Vancouver, BC V6C 3H1
Tel.

604.687.5700

Fax

604.687.6314

Reply Attention of William L. Macdonald
Direct Tel.

604.643.3118

EMail Address

wlm@cwilson.com

Our File No.

23747-7 / D/WLM/710097.1

May 2, 2005
Eden Energy Corp.
1925  200 Burrard Street
Vancouver, B.C., V6C 3L6
Dear Sirs:
Re:

Common Stock of Eden Energy Corp. Registered on Form SB-2

We have acted as counsel to Eden Energy Corp., a Nevada corporation (the "Company"), in connection with the filing of a
registration statement on Form SB-2 (the "Registration Statement") in regards to the registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
of up to 6,060,101 shares of the Companys common stock for resale by certain selling stockholders named in the Registration Statement. As
further described in the Registration Statement, filed on May 2, 2005, the Company is registering for resale:
(a)

4,040,067 shares of common stock (the Financing Shares) which were issued to certain selling stockholders in connection
with the private placements on April 4 and April 27, 2005; and

(b)

up to 2,020,034 shares of common stock (the Warrant Shares) which are issuable to certain selling stockholders upon
exercise of certain share purchase warrants issued in connection with the private placements on April 4 and April 27, 2005.
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We have examined the originals or certified copies of such corporate records, certificates of officers of the Company and/or
public officials and such other documents and have made such other factual and legal investigations as we have deemed relevant and necessary
as the basis for the opinions set forth below. In our examination, we have assumed the genuineness of all signatures, the authenticity of all
documents submitted to us as originals, and the conformity to authentic original documents of all documents submitted to us as copies or as
facsimiles of copies or originals, which assumptions we have not independently verified.
Based upon the foregoing and the examination of such legal authorities as we have deemed relevant, and subject to the
qualifications and further assumptions set forth below, we are of the opinion that:
(i)

the Financing Shares were duly and validly authorized and issued, fully paid and non-assessable; and

(ii)

the Warrant Shares have been duly authorized and, if and when issued upon the exercise of the related warrants in
accordance with their terms, will be duly and validly authorized and issued, fully paid and non-assessable.

We are familiar with the General Corporation Law of the State of Nevada, the applicable provisions of the Nevada Constitution
and reported judicial decisions interpreting these laws, and we have made such inquiries with respect thereto as we consider necessary to render
this opinion with respect to a
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Nevada corporation. This opinion letter is opining upon and is limited to the current federal laws of the United States and, as set forth above,
Nevada law, including the statutory provisions, all applicable provisions of the Nevada Constitution and reported judicial decisions interpreting
those laws, as such laws presently exist and to the facts as they presently exist. We express no opinion with respect to the effect or applicability
of the laws of any other jurisdiction. We assume no obligation to revise or supplement this opinion letter should the laws of such jurisdiction be
changed after the date hereof by legislative action, judicial decision or otherwise.
We hereby consent to the filing of this opinion as an exhibit to the Registration Statement. In giving this consent, we do not
admit that we are within the category of persons whose consent is required under Section 7 of the Securities Act of 1933 or the General Rules
and Regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Yours truly,
CLARK WILSON LLP
/s/ Clark Wilson LLP

D/WLM/710097.1
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Exhibit 10.7
THIS PRIVATE PLACEMENT SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT RELATES TO AN OFFERING OF SECURITIES IN AN
OFFSHORE TRANSACTION TO PERSONS WHO ARE NOT U.S. PERSONS (AS DEFINED HEREIN) PURSUANT TO
REGULATION S UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE 1933 ACT).
NONE OF THE SECURITIES TO WHICH THIS PRIVATE PLACEMENT SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT (THE
SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT) RELATES HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 1933 ACT, OR ANY U.S. STATE
SECURITIES LAWS, AND, UNLESS SO REGISTERED, NONE MAY BE OFFERED OR SOLD, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY,
IN THE UNITED STATES OR TO U.S. PERSONS (AS DEFINED HEREIN) EXCEPT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
PROVISIONS OF REGULATION S UNDER THE 1933 ACT, PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT
UNDER THE 1933 ACT, OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT
TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE 1933 ACT AND IN EACH CASE ONLY IN ACCORDANCE WITH
APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. IN ADDITION, HEDGING TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING THE SECURITIES MAY
NOT BE CONDUCTED UNLESS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 1933 ACT.

CONFIDENTIAL
PRIVATE PLACEMENT SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT
(Subscribers Resident in Alberta, British Columbia, Ontario or Overseas)

TO:

Eden Energy Corp. (the Company)
1925  200 Burrard Street
Vancouver, BC V6C 3L6
Purchase of Units

1.

Subscription

1.1
On the basis of the representations and warranties and subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the undersigned
(the Subscriber) hereby irrevocably subscribes for and agrees to purchase __________________ units (the Units) at a price per Unit of
US$1.50 (such subscription and agreement to purchase being the Subscription), for an aggregate purchase price of US$_________________
(the Subscription Proceeds).
1.2
Each Unit will consist of one common share in the capital of the Company (each, a Share) and one-half of one common
share purchase warrant (each whole share purchase warrant, a Warrant) subject to adjustment. Each whole Warrant shall be non-transferable
and shall entitle the holder thereof to purchase one share of common stock in the capital of the Company (each, a Warrant Share), as presently
constituted, for a period of twelve months commencing from the Closing (as defined hereafter), at a price per Warrant Share of US$2.00.
Certificate(s) representing the Warrants will be in the form attached as Exhibit A. The Shares, Warrants and the Warrant Shares are referred to
as the Securities.
1.3
After the Warrant Shares have been registered and qualified for resale in accordance with Section 10.1, the Company may
require holders of Warrants, at any time following the date that the closing bid price of the Shares as listed on a Principal Market (as defined
herein), as quoted by Bloomberg L.P. (the Closing Bid Price) has averaged at or above US$2.50 for a period of twenty consecutive trading
days, to exercise the Warrants and acquire Warrant Shares at the applicable price per Warrant Share. The Warrants must be exercised within
five (5) business days of receipt of notice from the Company, after which time the Warrants shall be cancelled if unexercised. As used herein,
Principal Market shall mean The National Association of Securities Dealers Inc.'s OTC Bulletin Board, the Nasdaq SmallCap Market, or the
American Stock Exchange. If the Common Shares are not traded on a Principal Market, the Closing Bid Price shall mean the reported Closing
Bid Price for the Common Shares, as furnished by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., for the applicable periods.
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1.4
On the basis of the representations and warranties and subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Company
hereby irrevocably agrees to sell the Units to the Subscriber.
1.5
Subject to the terms hereof, the Subscription will be effective upon its acceptance by the Company. The Subscriber
acknowledges that the offering of Units contemplated hereby is part a private placement of Units having an aggregate subscription level of
US$7,500,000 (the Offering). The Offering is not subject to any minimum aggregate subscription level.
2.

Payment

2.1
The Subscription Proceeds must accompany this Subscription and shall be paid by certified cheque or bank draft drawn
on a Canadian chartered bank, or a bank in the United States reasonably acceptable to the Company, and made payable and delivered to the
Company. Alternatively, the Subscription Proceeds may be wired to the Company or its lawyers pursuant to the wiring instructions attached
hereto as Exhibit B. If the funds are wired to the Companys lawyers, those lawyers are authorized to immediately deliver the funds to the
Company.
2.2
The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that this Subscription Agreement, the Subscription Proceeds and any other
documents delivered in connection herewith will be held on behalf of the Company. In the event that this Subscription Agreement is not
accepted by the Company for whatever reason, which the Company expressly reserves the right to do, within 30 days of the delivery of an
executed Subscription Agreement by the Subscriber, this Subscription Agreement, the Subscription Proceeds (without interest thereon) and
any other documents delivered in connection herewith will be returned to the Subscriber at the address of the Subscriber as set forth in this
Subscription Agreement.
2.3
Where the Subscription Proceeds are paid to the Company, the Company is entitled to treat such Subscription Proceeds as
an interest free loan to the Company until such time as the Subscription is accepted and the certificates representing the Shares have been issued
to the Subscriber.
3.

Documents Required from Subscriber

3.1

The Subscriber must complete, sign and return to the Company:
(a)

two (2) executed copies of this Subscription Agreement;

(b)

if the Subscriber is resident in Ontario and must be an Accredited Investor as that term is
defined in Ontario Securities Commission Rule 45-501, an Accredited Investor Questionnaire in
the form attached as Exhibit C; and

(c)

if the Subscriber is resident in Alberta or British Columbia and must be an Accredited Investor,
as that term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 45-103, an Accredited Investor Questionnaire in
the form attached as Exhibit D.

3.2
The Subscriber shall complete, sign and return to the Company as soon as possible, on request by the Company, any
documents, questionnaires, notices and undertakings as may be required by regulatory authorities, the OTC Bulletin Board and applicable law.
4.

Closing

4.1
Closing of the offering of the Securities (the Closing) shall occur on or before March 1, 2005, or on such other date as
may be determined by the Company (the Closing Date).
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4.2
The Company may, at its discretion, elect to close the Offering in one or more closings, in which event the Company
may agree with one or more subscribers (including the Subscriber hereunder) to complete delivery of the Shares and the Warrants to such
subscriber(s) against payment therefor at any time on or prior to the Closing Date.
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5.

Acknowledgements of Subscriber

5.1

The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that:
(a)

none of the Securities have been registered under the 1933 Act, or under any state securities or
blue sky laws of any state of the United States, and, unless so registered, may not be offered or
sold in the United States or, directly or indirectly, to U.S. Persons, as that term is defined in
Regulation S under the 1933 Act (Regulation S), except in accordance with the provisions of
Regulation S, pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 1933 Act, or pursuant to an
exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the 1933 Act;

(b)

the decision to execute this Agreement and acquire the Securities hereunder has not been based
upon any oral or written representation as to fact or otherwise made by or on behalf of the
Company, and such decision is based entirely upon a review of information (the receipt of which
is hereby acknowledged) which has been filed by the Company with the United States Securities
and Exchange Commission and in compliance, or intended compliance, with applicable securities
legislation (collectively, the "Public Record");

(c)

if the Company has presented a business plan to the Subscriber, the Subscriber acknowledges that
the business plan may not be achieved or be achievable;

(d)

no securities commission or similar regulatory authority has reviewed or passed on the merits of
the Securities;

(e)

there is no government or other insurance covering the Securities;

(f)

there are risks associated with an investment in the Securities, as more fully described in certain
information forming part of the Public Record;

g)

the Company has advised the Subscriber that the Company is relying on an exemption from the
requirements to provide the Subscriber with a prospectus and to sell the Securities through a
person registered to sell securities under the Securities Act (Alberta) (the Alberta Act) or the
Securities Act (British Columbia) (the B.C. Act) or the Securities Act (Ontario) (the Ontario
Act) and, as a consequence of acquiring the Securities pursuant to this exemption, certain
protections, rights and remedies provided by the Alberta Act, the B.C. Act or the Ontario Act,
including statutory rights of rescission or damages, will not be available to the Subscriber;

(h)

the Subscriber has not acquired the Securities as a result of, and will not itself engage in, any
directed selling efforts (as defined in Regulation S under the 1933 Act) in the United States in
respect of any of the Securities which would include any activities undertaken for the purpose of,
or that could reasonably be expected to have the effect of, conditioning the market in the United
States for the resale of any of the Shares or Warrant Shares; provided, however, that the
Subscriber may sell or otherwise dispose of any of the Shares or Warrant Shares pursuant to
registration thereof under the 1933 Act and any applicable state securities laws or under an
exemption from such registration requirements;

(i)

the Subscriber and the Subscribers advisor(s) have had a reasonable opportunity to ask questions
of and receive answers from the Company in connection with the distribution of the Securities
hereunder, and to obtain additional information, to the extent possessed or obtainable without
Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
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unreasonable effort or expense, necessary to verify the accuracy of the information about the
Company;
(j)

the books and records of the Company were available upon reasonable notice for inspection,
subject to certain confidentiality restrictions, by the Subscriber during reasonable business hours at
its principal place of business, and all documents, records and books in connection with the
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distribution of the Securities hereunder have been made available for inspection by the Subscriber, the Subscribers lawyer
and/or advisor(s);
(k)

the Subscriber will indemnify and hold harmless the Company and, where applicable, its directors, officers, employees,
agents, advisors and shareholders, from and against any and all loss, liability, claim, damage and expense whatsoever
(including, but not limited to, any and all fees, costs and expenses whatsoever reasonably incurred in investigating,
preparing or defending against any claim, lawsuit, administrative proceeding or investigation whether commenced or
threatened) arising out of or based upon any representation or warranty of the Subscriber contained herein, or in any
document furnished by the Subscriber to the Company in connection herewith being untrue in any material respect or any
breach or failure by the Subscriber to comply with any covenant or agreement made by the Subscriber to the Company in
connection therewith;

(l)

none of the Securities are listed on any stock exchange or automated dealer
quotation system and no representation has been made to the Subscriber that
any of the Securities will become listed on any stock exchange or automated
dealer quotation system; except that currently the common shares of the
Company are quoted for trading on the OTC Bulletin Board;

(m)

in addition to resale restrictions imposed under U.S. securities laws, there are
additional restrictions on the Subscriber's ability to resell the Shares and
Warrant Shares under the Alberta Act, the B.C. Act or the Ontario Act and
Multilateral Instrument 45-102 adopted by the Alberta, British Columbia and
Ontario Securities Commissions;

(n)

the Company will refuse to register any transfer of the Shares or the Warrant
Shares not made in accordance with the provisions of Regulation S, pursuant to
an effective registration statement under the 1933 Act or pursuant to an
available exemption from the registration requirements of the 1933 Act;

(o)

the statutory and regulatory basis for the exemption claimed for the offer
Securities, although in technical compliance with Regulation S, would not be
available if the offering is part of a plan or scheme to evade the registration
provisions of the 1933 Act;

(p)

the Subscriber has been advised to consult the Subscribers own legal, tax and
other advisors with respect to the merits and risks of an investment in the
Securities and with respect to applicable resale restrictions, and it is solely
responsible (and the Company is not in any way responsible) for compliance
with:

(q)

(i)

any applicable laws of the jurisdiction in which the Subscriber is
resident in connection with the distribution of the Securities
hereunder, and

(ii)

applicable resale restrictions; and

this Subscription Agreement is not enforceable by the Subscriber unless it has
been accepted by the Company.
Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
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6.

Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Subscriber

6.1
The Subscriber hereby represents and warrants to and covenants with the Company (which representations, warranties and
covenants shall survive the Closing) that:
(a)

the Subscriber has the legal capacity and competence to enter into and execute this Subscription Agreement and to take all
actions required pursuant hereto and, if the Subscriber is a corporation, it is duly incorporated and validly subsisting under
the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation and all necessary approvals by its directors, shareholders and others have been
obtained to authorize execution and performance of this Subscription Agreement on behalf of the Subscriber;
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(b)

the entering into of this Subscription Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby do not result in the violation of
any of the terms and provisions of any law applicable to, or the constating documents of, the Subscriber or of any
agreement, written or oral, to which the Subscriber may be a party or by which the Subscriber is or may be bound;

(c)

the Subscriber has duly executed and delivered this Subscription Agreement and it constitutes a valid and binding
agreement of the Subscriber enforceable against the Subscriber;

(d)

the Subscriber is not a U.S. Person;

(e)

the Subscriber is not acquiring the Securities for the account or benefit of, directly or indirectly, any U.S. Person;

(f)

the Subscriber is resident in the jurisdiction set out under the heading Name and Address of Subscriber on the signature
page of this Subscription Agreement;

(g)

the sale of the Securities to the Subscriber as contemplated in this Subscription Agreement complies with or is exempt from
the applicable securities legislation of the jurisdiction of residence of the Subscriber;

(h)

if the Subscriber is resident in British Columbia or Alberta, the Subscriber is:

(i)

(i)

acquiring sufficient Securities such that the aggregate purchase price for the subscriber is not less than
CDN$97,000, or

(ii)

an Accredited Investor, as that term is defined in Multilateral Instrument 45-103;

if the Subscriber is resident in Ontario, the Subscriber is
(i)

acquiring sufficient Securities such that the aggregate purchase price for the Subscriber is not less than
CDN$150,000, or

(ii)

an Accredited Investor as that term is defined in Ontario Securities Commission Rule Number 45-501;

(j)

the Subscriber is acquiring the Securities for investment only and not with a view to resale or distribution and, in particular,
it has no intention to distribute either directly or indirectly any of the Securities in the United States or to U.S. Persons;

(k)

the Subscriber is outside the United States when receiving and executing this Subscription Agreement and is acquiring the
Securities as principal for the Subscribers own account, for investment purposes only, and not with a view to, or for,
resale, distribution or fractionalisation thereof, in whole or in part, and no other person has a direct or indirect beneficial
interest in such Securities;

(l)

the Subscriber is not an underwriter of, or dealer in, the common shares of the Company, nor is the Subscriber participating,
pursuant to a contractual agreement or otherwise, in the distribution of the Securities;

(m)

the Subscriber (i) is able to fend for him/her/itself in the Subscription; (ii) has such knowledge and experience in business
matters as to be capable of evaluating the merits and risks of its prospective investment in the Securities; and (iii) has the
ability to bear the economic risks of its prospective investment and can afford the complete loss of such investment;
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7.

(n)

the Subscriber acknowledges that the Subscriber has not acquired the Securities as a result of, and will not itself engage in,
any directed selling efforts (as defined in Regulation S under the 1933 Act) in the United States in respect of any of the
Securities which would include any activities undertaken for the purpose of, or that could reasonably be expected to have
the effect of, conditioning the market in the United States for the resale of any of the Securities; provided, however, that the
Subscriber may sell or otherwise dispose of any of the Securities pursuant to registration of any of the Securities pursuant
to the 1933 Act and any applicable state securities laws or under an exemption from such registration requirements and as
otherwise provided herein;

(o)

the Subscriber is not aware of any advertisement of any of the Securities; and

(p)

no person has made to the Subscriber any written or oral representations:
(i)

that any person will resell or repurchase any of the Securities;

(ii)

that any person will refund the purchase price of any of the Securities;

(iii)

as to the future price or value of any of the Securities; or

(iv)

that any of the Securities will be listed and posted for trading on any stock exchange or automated dealer
quotation system or that application has been made to list and post any of the Securities of the Company on
any stock exchange or automated dealer quotation system, except that currently certain market makers make
market in the common shares of the Company on the OTC Bulletin Board.

Acknowledgement and Waiver

7.1
The Subscriber has acknowledged that the decision to purchase the Securities was solely made on the basis of publicly
available information contained in the Public Record. The Subscriber hereby waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any rights of
withdrawal, rescission or compensation for damages to which the Subscriber might be entitled in connection with the distribution of any of the
Securities.
8.

Alberta, British Columbia and Ontario Resale Restrictions

8.1
The Subscriber acknowledges that the Securities are subject to resale restrictions in Alberta, British Columbia and Ontario
and may not be traded in Alberta or British Columbia or Ontario except as permitted by the Alberta Act, the B.C. Act or the Ontario Act and
the rules made thereunder.
8.2
Pursuant to Multilateral Instrument 45-102, as adopted by the Alberta, B.C. and Ontario Securities Commission, a
subsequent trade in the Shares or the Warrant Shares will be a distribution subject to the prospectus and registration requirements of applicable
Canadian securities legislation (including the Alberta Act, the B.C. Act and Ontario Act) unless certain conditions are met, which conditions
include a hold period (the Canadian Hold Period) that shall have elapsed from the date on which the Securities were issued to the Subscriber
and, during the currency of the Canadian Hold Period, any certificate representing the Securities is to be imprinted with a restrictive legend (the
Canadian Legend).
8.3
By executing and delivering this Agreement, the Subscriber will have directed the Company not to include the Canadian
Legend on any certificates representing the Shares or the Warrant Shares to be issued to the Subscriber.
8.4
As a consequence, the Subscriber will not be able to rely on the resale provisions of Multilateral Instrument 45-102, and
any subsequent trade in the Shares or the Warrant Shares during or after the Canadian Hold Period will be a distribution subject to the prospectus
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9.

Registration Rights

9.1

Registration Procedures and Other Matters
(a)

The Company shall:
(i)

as soon as possible but in any event not later than the 45th day after the Closing Date (or,
if such day is a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, then by the next succeeding business day),
file a registration statement on Form S-3 (or, if Form S-3 is not then available, on such
form of registration statement as is then available to effect a registration of the Shares and
Warrant Shares) to enable the resale of the Shares and the Warrant Shares by the
Subscribers from time to time (the "Registration Statement");

(ii)

use commercially reasonable efforts to cause a Registration Statement to be declared
effective by the SEC as soon as possible, but in any event not later than the earlier of (a)
the 120th day following the Closing Date, and (b) the fifth trading day following the date
on which the Company is notified by the SEC that the Registration Statement will not be
reviewed or is no longer subject to further review and comments;

(iii)

use commercially reasonable efforts to prepare and file with the SEC such amendments
and supplements to the Registration Statement and the prospectus used in connection
therewith (the "Prospectus") as may be necessary to keep the Registration Statement
continuously current, effective and free from any material misstatement or omission to
state a material fact for a period not exceeding, with respect to the Subscribers Shares
and Warrant Shares purchased hereunder from the date it is first declared effective until,
the earlier of (A) two years from the date of the final exercise of all of the Warrants, (B)
the date on which the Subscriber may sell all Shares and Warrant Shares then held by the
Subscriber pursuant to Rule 144 without any restriction as to the number of securities as
of a particular date that can then be immediately sold, or (C) the public sale of all of the
Shares and the Warrant Shares (such period, the "Effectiveness Period");

(iv)

if (A) the Registration Statement is not filed on or prior to the date of filing required
pursuant to Section 9.1(a)(i), (B) the Registration Statement is not declared effective on
or prior to the date required by Section 9.1(a)(ii), or (C) notwithstanding Section 9.2,
after the date first declared effective by the SEC and prior to the expiration of the
Effectiveness Period, the Registration Statement ceases to be effective and available to
each Subscriber as to its Shares and Warrant Shares (whether pursuant to Section 9.2(c),
or otherwise) without being succeeded within 20 trading days by an effective amendment
thereto or by a subsequent registration statement filed with and declared effective by the
SEC, (any such failure being referred to as an "Event" and the date of such failure being
the "Event Date"), then, in addition to any other rights available to the Subscriber under
this Agreement or applicable law: (w) on the failure by the Company to comply with the
Event required pursuant to Section 9.1(a)(i) the Company shall pay to the Subscriber an
amount in cash, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, equal to two percent of the
Subscription Price paid by the Subscriber and on each monthly anniversary of such Event
Date (if the Event has not been cured by such date) until the applicable Event is cured,
the Company shall pay to the Subscriber a further amount in cash, as liquidated damages
and not as a penalty, equal to two percent of the Subscription Price paid by the
Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
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Subscriber; (x) on the failure by the Company to comply with the Event required
pursuant to Section 9.1(a)(ii) or the occurrence of the Event set forth in Section
9.1(a)(iv)(C) and on each monthly anniversary of such Event Dates (if the Event has not
been cured by such date) until the applicable Event is cured, an amount shall accrue and
be payable by the Company to the Subscriber, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty,
equal to two percent of the Subscription Price paid by the Subscriber; (y) provided
however that if the foregoing Events set forth in (x) is cured by the Company within 90
days of the applicable Event Date, all liquidated damages that have accrued and are due
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and owing by the Company to the Subscriber shall be payable in Units (to be registered in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement), as liquidated damages and not as a penalty; and (z) if an Event is not cured within 90
days of the applicable Event Date, all liquidated damages that have accrued and are owed and continue to accrue to
the Subscriber shall be paid in cash, and any liquidated damages that accrue after one year from the Closing Date
shall not exceed six percent of the Subscription Price paid by the Subscriber. The liquidated damages pursuant to the
terms hereof shall apply on a pro rata basis for any portion of a month prior to the cure of an Event;

(b)

9.2

(v)

furnish to the Subscriber with respect to the Shares and the Warrant Shares registered under the Registration
Statement such number of copies of the Registration Statement, Prospectuses and Preliminary Prospectuses in
conformity with the requirements of the 1933 Act and such other documents as the Subscriber may reasonably
request in writing, in order to facilitate the public sale or other disposition of all or any of the Shares or Warrant
Shares by the Subscriber; provided, however, that the obligation of the Company to deliver copies of
Prospectuses or Preliminary Prospectuses to the Subscriber shall be subject to the receipt by the Company of
reasonable assurances from the Subscriber that the Subscriber will comply with the applicable provisions of the
1933 Act and of such other securities or blue sky laws as may be applicable in connection with any use of such
Prospectuses or Preliminary Prospectuses;

(vi)

file documents required of the Company for blue sky clearance in states specified in writing by the Subscriber
and use its commercially reasonable efforts to maintain such blue sky qualifications during the period the
Company is required to maintain the effectiveness of the Registration Statement pursuant to Section 9.1(a)(iii);
provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to qualify to do business or consent to service of
process in any jurisdiction in which it is not now so qualified or has not so consented;

(vii)

bear all expenses in connection with the procedures in paragraph (i) through (vi) of this Section 9.1 (other than
any underwriting discounts or commissions, brokers fees and similar selling expenses, and any other fees or
expenses incurred by the Subscriber, including attorneys fees); and

(viii)

advise the Subscriber in writing promptly after it shall receive notice or obtain knowledge of the issuance of any
stop order by the SEC delaying or suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement or of the initiation
or threat of any proceeding for that purpose; and it will promptly use its commercially reasonable efforts to
prevent the issuance of any stop order or to obtain its withdrawal at the earliest possible moment if such stop
order should be issued.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Registration Statement shall cover only the Shares and the Warrant
Shares and such other securities issued by the Company subject to registration rights. In no event at any time before the
Registration Statement becomes effective with respect to the Shares and Warrant Shares shall the Company publicly
announce or file any other registration statement, other than registrations on Form S-8 or registrations for other securities
issued by the Company subject to registration rights, without the prior written consent of 66-2/3% in interest of the
Subscribers.
Transfer of Shares After Registration; Suspension

(a)

The Subscriber agrees that it will not effect any disposition of the Securities or its right to purchase the Securities that
would constitute a "sale" within the meaning of the 1933 Act, except as contemplated in the Registration Statement
referred to in Section 9.1 and as described below or as otherwise permitted by law, and that it will promptly notify the
Company of any material
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changes in the information set forth in the Registration Statement regarding the Subscriber or its plan of distribution.
(b)

Except in the event that paragraph (c) below applies, the Company shall (i) if deemed necessary by the Company, prepare
and file from time to time with the SEC a post-effective amendment to the Registration Statement or a supplement to the
related Prospectus or a supplement or amendment to any document incorporated therein by reference or file any other
required document so that such Registration Statement will not contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, and so that, as
thereafter delivered to purchasers of the Shares and Warrant Shares being sold thereunder, such Prospectus will not contain
an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; (ii) provide the Subscriber
copies of any documents filed pursuant to Section 9.2(b)(i) as the Subscriber may reasonably request; and (iii) inform each
Subscriber that the Company has complied with its obligations in Section 9.2(b)(i) (or that, if the Company has filed a posteffective amendment to the Registration Statement which has not yet been declared effective, the Company will notify the
Subscriber to that effect, will use its commercially reasonable efforts to secure the effectiveness of such post-effective
amendment as promptly as possible and will promptly notify the Subscriber pursuant to Section 9.2(b)(i) hereof when the
amendment has become effective).

(c)

Subject to paragraph (d) below, in the event of: (i) any request by the SEC or any other federal or state governmental
authority during the period of effectiveness of the Registration Statement for amendments or supplements to a Registration
Statement or related Prospectus or for additional information; (ii) the issuance by the SEC or any other federal or state
governmental authority of any stop order suspending the effectiveness of a Registration Statement or the initiation of any
proceedings for that purpose; (iii) the receipt by the Company of any notification with respect to the suspension of the
qualification or exemption from qualification of any of the Shares for sale in any jurisdiction or the initiation or threatening
of any proceeding for such purpose; or (iv) any event or circumstance which, upon the advice of its counsel, necessitates the
making of any changes in the Registration Statement or Prospectus, or any document incorporated or deemed to be
incorporated therein by reference, so that, in the case of the Registration Statement, it will not contain any untrue statement
of a material fact or any omission to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements
therein not misleading, and that in the case of the Prospectus, it will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
any omission to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of
the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; then the Company shall deliver a certificate in writing to the
Subscriber (the "Suspension Notice") to the effect of the foregoing and, upon receipt of such Suspension Notice, the
Subscriber will refrain from selling any Shares and Warrant Shares pursuant to the Registration Statement (a "Suspension")
until the Subscriber's receipt of copies of a supplemented or amended Prospectus prepared and filed by the Company, or
until it is advised in writing by the Company that the current Prospectus may be used, and has received copies of any
additional or supplemental filings that are incorporated or deemed incorporated by reference in any such Prospectus. In the
event of any Suspension, the Company will use its commercially reasonable efforts to cause the use of the Prospectus so
suspended to be resumed as soon as reasonably practicable within 20 trading days after the delivery of a Suspension Notice
to the Subscriber.

(d)

Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraphs of this Section 9.2, the Subscriber shall not be prohibited from selling Shares
under the Registration Statement as a result of Suspensions on more than two occasions of not more than 20 trading days
each in any twelve month period.

(e)

Provided that a Suspension is not then in effect, the Subscriber may sell the Shares and the Warrant Shares under the
Registration Statement, provided that it arranges for delivery of a current Prospectus to the transferee of such Shares or
Warrant Shares, as applicable. The Company shall provide such number of current Prospectuses to the Subscriber as the
Subscriber may
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reasonably request, and shall supply copies to any other parties reasonably requiring such Prospectuses.
9.3

Indemnification
(a)

The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Subscriber and the officers, directors,
agents and employees of the Subscriber, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law from and
against any losses, claims, damages or liabilities to which any such person(s) may become subject
(under the 1933 Act or otherwise) insofar as such losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actions
or proceedings in respect thereof) arise out of, or are based upon (i) any Untrue Statement (defined
below), or (ii) any failure by the Company to fulfill any undertaking included in the Registration
Statement, as amended or supplemented from time to time, which indemnification will include
reimbursement for any reasonable legal or other expenses reasonably incurred in investigating,
defending or preparing to defend any such action, proceeding or claim, or preparing to defend any
such action, proceeding or claim, provided, however, that the Company shall not be liable in any
such case to the extent that such loss, claim, damage or liability arises out of, or is based upon, an
Untrue Statement made in reliance upon and in conformity with written information furnished to
the Company by or on behalf of the Subscriber specifically for use in preparation of the
Registration Statement, as amended or supplemented from time to time (including, without
limitation, information set forth in the Investor Questionnaire), or the failure of the Subscriber to
comply with its covenants and agreements contained in Section 9.2 hereof respecting sale of the
Shares or Warrant Shares or any statement or omission in any Prospectus that is corrected in any
subsequent Prospectus that was delivered to the Subscriber prior to the pertinent sale or sales by
the Subscriber. The Company shall reimburse the Subscriber for the indemnifiable amounts
provided for herein on demand as such expenses are incurred. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Company's aggregate obligation to indemnify the Subscriber and such officers, directors and
controlling persons shall be limited to the amount of the Subscription Price received by the
Company from the Subscriber.

(b)

The Subscriber agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company (and each person, if any, who
controls the Company within the meaning of Section 15 of the 1933 Act, each officer of the
Company who signs the Registration Statement and each director of the Company) from and
against any losses, claims, damages or liabilities to which the Company (or any such officer,
director or controlling person) may become subject (under the 1933 Act or otherwise), insofar as
such losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) arise out
of, or are based upon, (i) any Untrue Statement if such Untrue Statement was made in reliance
upon and in conformity with written information furnished by or on behalf of the Subscriber
specifically for use in preparation of the Registration Statement, as amended or supplemented
from time to time (including, without limitation, information set forth in the Investor
Questionnaire), or (ii) the failure of the Subscriber to comply with its covenants and agreements
contained in Section 9.2 hereof respecting sale of the Shares or Warrant Shares or any statement or
omission in any Prospectus that is corrected in any subsequent Prospectus that was delivered to the
Subscriber prior to the pertinent sale or sales by the Subscriber; and the Subscriber will reimburse
the Company or such officer, director or controlling person, as the case may be, for any reasonable
legal or other expenses reasonably incurred in investigating, defending or preparing to defend any
such action, proceeding or claim. The Subscriber shall reimburse the Company or such officer,
director or controlling person, as the case may be, for the indemnifiable amounts provided for
herein on demand as such expenses are incurred. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Subscriber's
aggregate obligation to indemnify the Company and such officers, directors and controlling
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persons shall be limited to the amount received by the Subscriber from the sale of Shares or
Warrant Shares that are the subject of such loss.
(c)

Promptly after receipt by any indemnified person of a notice of a claim or the beginning of any
action in respect of which indemnity is to be sought against an indemnifying person pursuant to
this Section 9.3, such indemnified person shall notify the indemnifying person in writing of such
claim or of the commencement of such action, but the omission to so notify the indemnifying
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person will not relieve it from any liability which it may have to any indemnified person under this Section 9.3 (except to
the extent that such omission materially and adversely affects the indemnifying person's ability to defend such action) or
from any liability otherwise than under this Section 9.3. Subject to the provisions hereinafter stated, in case any such action
shall be brought against an indemnified person, the indemnifying person shall be entitled to participate therein, and, to the
extent that it shall elect by written notice delivered to the indemnified person promptly after receiving the aforesaid notice
from such indemnified person, shall be entitled to assume the defense thereof, with counsel reasonably satisfactory to such
indemnified person. After notice from the indemnifying person to such indemnified person of its election to assume the
defense thereof, such indemnifying person shall not be liable to such indemnified person for any legal expenses subsequently
incurred by such indemnified person in connection with the defense thereof, provided, however, that if there exists or shall
exist a conflict of interest that would make it inappropriate, in the opinion of counsel to the indemnified person, for the
same counsel to represent both the indemnified person and such indemnifying person or any affiliate or associate thereof,
the indemnified person shall be entitled to retain its own counsel at the expense of such indemnifying person; provided,
however, that no indemnifying person shall be responsible for the fees and expenses of more than one separate counsel
(together with appropriate local counsel) for all indemnified parties. In no event shall any indemnifying person be liable in
respect of any amounts paid in settlement of any action unless the indemnifying person shall have approved the terms of such
settlement; provided that such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. No indemnifying person shall, without
the prior written consent of the indemnified person, effect any settlement of any pending or threatened proceeding in respect
of which any indemnified person is or could have been a party and indemnification could have been sought hereunder by such
indemnified person, unless such settlement includes an unconditional release of such indemnified person from all liability on
claims that are the subject matter of such proceeding.
(d)

If the indemnification provided for in this Section 9.3 is unavailable to or insufficient to hold harmless an indemnified
person under subsection (a) or (b) above in respect of any losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in
respect thereof) referred to therein, then each indemnifying person shall contribute to the amount paid or payable by such
indemnified person as a result of such losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actions in respect thereof) in such proportion
as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the Company on the one hand and the Subscriber, as well as any other
Subscribers under such Registration Statement on the other in connection with the statements or omissions or other matters
which resulted in such losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actions in respect thereof), as well as any other relevant
equitable considerations. The relative fault shall be determined by reference to, among other things, in the case of an Untrue
Statement, whether the Untrue Statement relates to information supplied by the Company on the one hand or the Subscriber
on the other and the parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent such
Untrue Statement. The Company and the Subscriber agree that it would not be just and equitable if contribution pursuant to
this subsection (d) were determined by pro rata allocation (even if the Subscriber and other subscribers were treated as one
entity for such purpose) or by any other method of allocation which does not take into account the equitable considerations
referred to above in this subsection (d). The amount paid or payable by an indemnified person as a result of the losses,
claims, damages or liabilities (or actions in respect thereof) referred to above in this subsection (d) shall be deemed to
include any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred by such indemnified person in connection with investigating or
defending any such action or claim. Notwithstanding the provisions of this subsection (d), the Subscriber shall not be
required to contribute any amount in excess of the amount by which the net amount received by the Subscriber from any and
all sales of the Securities to which such loss relates exceeds the amount of any damages which such Subscriber has
otherwise been required to pay by reason of such Untrue Statement. No person guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation
(within the meaning of Section 11(f) of the 1933 Act) shall be entitled to contribution from any person who was not guilty of
such fraudulent misrepresentation. The Subscriber's obligations in this subsection to contribute shall be in proportion to its
sale of Securities to which such loss relates and shall not be joint with any other Subscribers.
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(e)

The parties to this Agreement hereby acknowledge that they are sophisticated business persons who were represented by
counsel during the negotiations regarding the provisions hereof including, without limitation, the provisions of this Section
9.3, and are fully informed regarding said provisions. They further acknowledge that the provisions of this Section 9.3 fairly
allocate the risks in light of the ability of the parties to investigate the Company and its business in order to assure that
adequate disclosure is made in the Registration Statement as required by the 1933 Act and the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the 1934 Act). The parties are advised that federal or state public policy as interpreted by the courts in
certain jurisdictions may be contrary to certain of the provisions of this Section 9.3, and the parties hereto hereby expressly
waive and relinquish any right or ability to assert such public policy as a defense to a claim under this Section 9.3 and
further agree not to attempt to assert any such defense.

(f)

For the purpose of this Section 9.3:
(i)

the term "Registration Statement" shall include the Prospectus in the form first filed with the SEC pursuant to
Rule 424(b) of the 1933 Act or filed as part of the Registration Statement at the time of effectiveness if no Rule
424(b) filing is required, and any exhibit, supplement or amendment included in or relating to the Registration
Statement referred to in Section 9.1; and

(ii)

the term "Untrue Statement" means any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement, or any omission or alleged
omission to state in the Registration Statement, as amended or supplemented from time to time, a material fact
required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading.

9.4
Information Available. So long as the Registration Statement is effective covering the resale of Shares and Warrant Shares
owned by the Subscriber, the Company will, at Subscriber's written request, furnish to the Subscriber:

10.

(a)

as soon as practicable after it is available,
one copy of (i) its Annual Report to
Shareholders (which Annual Report shall
contain financial statements audited in
accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles by a national firm
of certified public accountants), (ii) its
Annual Report on Form 10-KSB and (iii)
its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-QSB
(the foregoing, in each case, excluding
exhibits);

(b)

any and all exhibits to the reports set
forth in Section 9.4(a) as filed with the
SEC and all other information that is
made available to shareholders; and

(c)

an adequate number of copies of the
Prospectuses to supply to any other party
requiring such Prospectuses.
Company Representations
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10.1
The Company is a corporation duly incorporated and in good standing under the laws of the State of Nevada, and has the
requisite corporate power and authority to conduct its business as it is currently being conducted.
10.2
The Company is a reporting issuer under the 1934 Act, and at the Closing Date, the Company will have filed all documents
that it is required to file under the provisions of the 1934 Act during a period of at least five years prior to the date hereof (the SEC Reports).
10.3
As of their respective filing dates, each of the Companys SEC Filings (and if any SEC Report filed prior to the date of
this Agreement was amended or superseded by a filing prior to the date of the Closing Date, then also on the date of filing of such amendment
or superseding filing) filed on or after January 1, 2004, (i) where
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required, were prepared in all material respects in accordance with the requirements of the 1933 Act or the 1934 Act, as the case may be, and
the rules and regulations promulgated under such Acts applicable to such SEC Reports, (ii) did not contain any untrue statements of a material
fact and did not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made,
not misleading and (iii) are all the forms, reports and documents required to be filed by the Company with the SEC since that time.
10.4
Each set of audited consolidated financial statements and unaudited interim financial statements of the Company (including
any notes thereto) included in the SEC Reports (i) complies as to form in all material respects with the published rules and regulations of the
SEC with respect thereto, and (ii) have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles applied on a
consistent basis (except as may be indicated therein or in the notes thereto) and fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as of the dates thereof and the results of its operations and cash flows for the periods then ended subject, in the case of the
unaudited interim financial statements, to normal year-end adjustments which were not or are not expected to be material in amount. To the
Companys knowledge, no events or other factual matters exist which would require the Company to file any amendments or modifications to
any SEC Reports which have not yet been filed with the SEC but which are required to be filed with the SEC pursuant to the 1933 Act or the
1934 Act. As used herein, the words knowledge of the Company (or any substantially similar phrase) means the active knowledge (with
reasonable investigation) of the executive officers of the Company.
10.5
The SEC Reports describes each of the Companys material subsidiaries, and each such subsidiary is a corporation duly
incorporated and in good standing under the laws of its incorporating jurisdiction, and has the requisite corporate power and authority to conduct
its business as it is currently being conducted. Except as otherwise disclosed in the SEC Reports, all of the issued and outstanding shares of
capital stock of each of the Companys material subsidiaries are validly issued and are fully paid, non-assessable and free of preemptive and
similar rights.
10.6
The Company and each of its subsidiaries has obtained all certificates, authorizations, permits or licenses necessary to
conduct the business now owned or operated by it and the Company has not received any notice of proceedings relating to the revocation or
modification of any material certificate, authority, permit or license necessary which, if the subject of an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding
would materially and adversely affect the conduct of the business, operations, financial condition or income of the Company (on a consolidated
basis).
10.7
The authorized capital of the Company consists of 100,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, of
which there were 23,855,869 shares issued and outstanding as of the date hereof. In addition, as of the date hereof there are (and as of the
Closing Date there will be) options to purchase in the aggregate 1,330,000 Common Shares.
10.8
The Company has the requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and to consummate the transactions
contemplated by the Transaction Documents. The execution and delivery by the Company of the Transaction Documents have been duly
authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Company, and no further consent or action is required by the Company, its Board of
Directors or its stockholders. Each of the Transaction Documents constitutes, or will when duly authorized, executed and delivered by all parties
thereto other than the Company constitute, a valid and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance
with the terms thereof, except that (i) the enforcement thereof may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium
or similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally, (ii) equitable remedies, including, without limitation, specific performance and
injunction, may be granted only in the discretion of a court of competent jurisdiction, (iii) rights of indemnity, contribution and the waiver of
contribution provided for herein, and any provisions exculpating a party from a liability or duty otherwise owed by it, may be limited under
applicable law, and (iv) the enforceability of provisions in any Transaction Document which purport to sever any provision which is prohibited
or unenforceable under applicable law without affecting the enforceability or validity of the remainder of such Transaction Document would be
determined only in the discretion of the court.
10.9
Except as disclosed herein, in the SEC Reports or as contemplated in the Offering, as of the Closing Date, no person, firm
or corporation has any agreement or option or right or privilege (whether preemptive
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or contractual) capable of becoming an agreement for the purchase, subscription or issuance of any unissued shares, securities or warrants of
the Company;
10.10
Except as qualified in the SEC Reports, the Company or a subsidiary is the beneficial owner of the properties, business
and assets or the interests in the properties, business or assets referred to as owned by it in the SEC Report, all agreements under which the
Company or a subsidiary holds an interest in a property, business or asset are in good standing according to their terms except where the failure
to be in such good standing does not and will not have a material adverse effect on the Company (on a consolidated basis) or its properties,
business or assets.
10.11
Each SEC Report containing financial statements that has been filed with or submitted to the SEC since July 31, 2002, was
accompanied by the certifications required to be filed or submitted by the Companys chief executive officer and chief financial officer pursuant
to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the "Sarbanes-Oxley Act"); at the time of filing or submission of each such certification, such certification
was true and accurate and complied with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder to the knowledge of the
Company; such certifications contain no qualifications or exceptions to the matters certified therein and have not been modified or withdrawn;
and neither the Company nor any of its officers has received notice from any governmental entity questioning or challenging the accuracy,
completeness, form or manner of filing or submission of such certification.
10.12
The Company and each of its subsidiaries has filed all federal, state, local and other tax returns that are required to be filed
or have requested extensions thereof (except in any case in which the failure so to file would not have a material adverse effect on the assets and
properties, business, results of operations or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company) on a consolidated basis and has paid all taxes
required to be paid by it and any other assessment, fine or penalty levied against it, to the extent that any of the foregoing is due and payable,
except for any such assessment, fine or penalty that is currently being contested in good faith.
10.13
The Company and each of its subsidiaries has established on its books and records reserves that are adequate for the
payment of all taxes not yet due and payable and there are no liens for taxes on the assets of the Company or any subsidiary and there are no
audits known by the Company's management to be pending of the tax returns of the Company or any subsidiary (whether federal, state, local
or foreign) and there are no claims which have been or may be asserted relating to any such tax returns, which audits and claims, if determined
adversely, would result in the assertion by any governmental agency of any deficiency that would have a material adverse effect on the assets
or properties, business, results of operations or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company (on a consolidated basis).
10.14
No taxation authority has asserted or, to the best of the Company's knowledge, threatened to assert any assessment, claim
or liability for taxes due or to become due in connection with any review or examination of the tax returns of the Company or each of its
subsidiaries (including, without limitation, any predecessor companies) filed for any year which would have a material adverse effect on the
assets or properties, business, results of operations or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company (on a consolidated basis).
10.15
The Company and its subsidiary maintains a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable
assurance that: (i) transactions are executed in accordance with management's general or specific authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and to maintain asset
accountability, (iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management's general or specific authorization and (iv) the recorded
accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any
differences.
10.16
The Company is not aware of any legislation, or proposed legislation (published by a legislative body), which it anticipates
will materially and adversely affect the business, affairs, operations, assets or liabilities (contingent or otherwise) of the Company and its
subsidiaries, considered as a whole.
10.17
Except as disclosed in the Companys annual report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2003, to the
Companys knowledge: (i) the operations carried on by the Company are in material compliance with all applicable federal, state and municipal
environmental, health and safety statutes, regulations and
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permits; (ii) none of such operations is subject to any judicial or administrative proceeding alleging the violation of any federal, state or
municipal environmental, health or safety statute or regulation or is subject to any investigation concerning whether any remedial action is
needed to respond to a release of any Hazardous Material (as defined below) into the environment; (iii) except in material compliance with
applicable environmental laws, none of the premises currently occupied by the Company has at any time been used by the Company or by
any other occupier, as a waste storage or waste disposal site or to operate a waste management business; (iv) the Company has no material
contingent liability in connection with any release of any Hazardous Material on or into the environment from any of the premises currently
occupied by the Company or from the operations carried out thereon except to the extent such release is in material compliance with all
applicable laws; (v) neither the Company nor any occupier of the premises currently occupied by the Company, generates, transports, treats,
stores or disposes of any waste, subject waste, hazardous waste, deleterious substance, industrial waste (as defined in applicable federal, state
or municipal legislation) on any of the premises currently occupied by the Company in material contravention of applicable federal, state or
municipal laws or regulations enacted for the protection of the natural environment or human health; and (vi) no underground storage tanks or
surface impoundments containing a petroleum product or Hazardous Material are located on any of the Company or its subsidiaries properties
in material contravention of applicable federal, state or municipal laws or regulations enacted for the protection of the natural environment
or human health. For the purposes of this subparagraph, Hazardous Material means any contaminant, pollutant, subject waste, hazardous
waste, deleterious substance, industrial waste, toxic matter or any other substance that when released into the natural environment is likely to
cause, at some immediate or future time, material harm or degradation to the natural environment or material risk to human health and, without
restricting the generality of the foregoing, includes any contaminant, pollutant, subject waste, deleterious substance, industrial waste, toxic
matter or hazardous waste as defined by applicable federal, provincial, state or municipal laws or regulations enacted for the protection of the
natural environment or human health.
10.18
The issue and sale of the Securities by the Company does not and will not conflict with, and does not and will not result in
a breach of, any of the terms of its incorporating documents or any agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party.
10.19
There are no actions, suits, proceedings or inquiries pending or to the Company's knowledge threatened against or affecting
the Company or any of its subsidiaries at law or in equity or before or by any federal, provincial, municipal or other governmental department,
commission, board, bureau, agency or instrumentality which in any way materially adversely affect, or may in any way materially adversely
affect, the business, operations or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company (on a consolidated basis) or its properties or assets or which
affects or may affect the distribution of the Securities.
10.20
The Common Shares are currently quoted for trading on the OTC Bulletin Board operated by the National Association of
Securities Dealers. No order ceasing or suspending trading in securities of the Company nor prohibiting the sale of such securities has been
issued to and is outstanding against the Company or its directors, officers or promoters or against any other companies that have common
directors, officers or promoters and, to the best of the Companys knowledge, no investigations or proceedings for such purposes are pending
or threatened.
10.21
Except as otherwise disclosed in the Subscription Agreement, no person, firm or corporation acting or purporting to act
at the request of the Company is entitled to any brokerage, agency or finders fee in connection with the purchase and sale of the Securities
described herein.
10.22
The Company agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the Subscriber (which term shall, for the purposes of this Paragraph,
include the Subscriber and its shareholders, managers, partners, directors, officers, members, employees, direct or indirect investors, agents
and affiliates and assignees and the stockholders, partners, directors, members, managers, officers, employees direct or indirect investors
and agents of such affiliates and assignees) harmless against any and all liabilities, loss, cost or damage, together with all reasonable costs
and expenses related thereto (including reasonable legal and accounting fees and expenses), arising from, relating to, or connected with the
untruth, inaccuracy or breach of any statement, representation, warranty or covenant of the Company contained in this Subscription Agreement,
provided that the amount of such indemnification shall be limited to the Subscription Proceeds set forth in Section 1.1 hereof. The Company
undertakes to notify the Subscriber immediately of any change in any representation, warranty or other information relating to the Company set
forth in this Agreement which takes place prior to the Closing Date.
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11.

Legending of Subject Securities

11.1
The Subscriber hereby acknowledges that that upon the issuance thereof, and until such time as the same is no longer
required under the applicable securities laws and regulations, the certificates representing any of the Securities will bear a legend in substantially
the following form:
THESE SECURITIES WERE ISSUED IN AN OFFSHORE TRANSACTION TO PERSONS WHO ARE NOT U.S. PERSONS
(AS DEFINED HEREIN) PURSUANT TO REGULATION S UNDER THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS
AMENDED (THE 1933 ACT). ACCORDINGLY, NONE OF THE SECURITIES TO WHICH THIS CERTIFICATE RELATES
HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 1933 ACT, OR ANY U.S. STATE SECURITIES LAWS, AND, UNLESS SO
REGISTERED, NONE MAY BE OFFERED OR SOLD IN THE UNITED STATES OR, DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY, TO
U.S. PERSONS (AS DEFINED HEREIN) EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT OR
PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION
REQUIREMENTS OF THE 1933 ACT AND IN EACH CASE ONLY IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES LAWS. IN ADDITION, HEDGING TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE
CONDUCTED UNLESS IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 1933 ACT.
11.2
The Subscriber hereby acknowledges and agrees to the Company making a notation on its records or giving instructions
to the registrar and transfer agent of the Company in order to implement the restrictions on transfer set forth and described in this Subscription
Agreement.
12.

Commission to the Agent

12.1
The Subscriber understands that upon Closing, the Company will pay a commission of up to seven percent (7%) of the
gross proceeds raised from the Offering, payable in cash.
13.

Costs

13.1
The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that all costs and expenses incurred by the Subscriber (including any fees and
disbursements of any special counsel retained by the Subscriber) relating to the purchase of the Shares shall be borne by the Subscriber.
14.

Governing Law

14.1
This Subscription Agreement is governed by the laws of the Province of British Columbia. The Subscriber, in its personal
or corporate capacity and, if applicable, on behalf of each beneficial purchaser for whom it is acting, irrevocably attorns to the jurisdiction of
the courts of the Province of British Columbia.
15.

Survival

15.1
This Subscription Agreement, including without limitation the representations, warranties and covenants contained herein,
shall survive and continue in full force and effect and be binding upon the parties hereto notwithstanding the completion of the purchase of the
Units by the Subscriber pursuant hereto.
16.

Assignment

16.1

This Subscription Agreement is not transferable or assignable.

17.

Severability

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

17.1
The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Subscription Agreement shall not affect or limit the
validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Subscription Agreement.
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18.

Entire Agreement

18.1
Except as expressly provided in this Subscription Agreement and in the agreements, instruments and other documents
contemplated or provided for herein, this Subscription Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the sale
of the Units and there are no other terms, conditions, representations or warranties, whether expressed, implied, oral or written, by statute or
common law, by the Company or by anyone else.
19.

Notices

19.1
All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if mailed
or transmitted by any standard form of telecommunication. Notices to the Subscriber shall be directed to the address on page 18 and notices
to the Company shall be directed to it at Eden Energy Corp., 1925  200 Burrard Street, Vancouver, BC V6C 3L6 Attention: Don Sharpe, Fax
No. (604) 638-3525.
20.

Counterparts and Electronic Means

20.1
This Subscription Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which, when so executed and
delivered, shall constitute an original and all of which together shall constitute one instrument. Delivery of an executed copy of this Agreement
by electronic facsimile transmission or other means of electronic communication capable of producing a printed copy will be deemed to be
execution and delivery of this Agreement as of the date hereinafter set forth.
21.

Delivery Instructions

21.1

The Subscriber hereby directs the Company to deliver the Share and Warrant Certificates to:

(name)
(address)
21.2

The Subscriber hereby directs the Company to cause the Shares to be registered on the books of the Company as follows:

(name)
(address)
D/WLM/683339.2
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Subscriber has duly executed this Subscription Agreement as of the date of acceptance by the Company.

(Name of Subscriber  Please type or print)
(Signature and, if applicable, Office)
(Address of Subscriber)
(City, State or Province, Postal Code of Subscriber)
(Country of Subscriber)
D/WLM/683339.2
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ACCEPTANCE
The above-mentioned Subscription Agreement in respect of the Shares is hereby accepted by Eden Energy Corp.
DATED at Vancouver, British Columbia, the __________ day of ________________, 2005
EDEN ENERGY CORP.

Per:
Authorized Signatory
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EXHIBIT A
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE BEEN OFFERED IN AN OFFSHORE TRANSACTION TO A PERSON
WHO IS NOT A U.S. PERSON (AS DEFINED HEREIN) PURSUANT TO REGULATION S UNDER THE UNITED STATES
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "1933 ACT").
NONE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 1933 ACT, OR ANY U.S.
STATE SECURITIES LAWS, AND, UNLESS SO REGISTERED, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD, DIRECTLY OR
INDIRECTLY, IN THE UNITED STATES (AS DEFINED HEREIN) OR TO U.S. PERSONS EXCEPT IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE PROVISIONS OF REGULATION S UNDER THE 1933 ACT, PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION
STATEMENT UNDER THE 1933 ACT, OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION
NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE 1933 ACT AND IN EACH CASE ONLY IN
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. IN ADDITION, HEDGING TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING
THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE CONDUCTED UNLESS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE 1933 ACT. "UNITED STATES" AND
"U.S. PERSON" ARE AS DEFINED BY REGULATION S UNDER THE 1933 ACT.
THESE WARRANTS WILL EXPIRE AND BECOME NULL AND VOID
AT 4:30 P.M. (VANCOUVER TIME) ON ______________, 2006.
SHARE PURCHASE WARRANTS
TO PURCHASE COMMON SHARES OF
EDEN ENERGY CORP.
incorporated in the State of Nevada
THIS
IS
TO
CERTIFY
THAT
___________________________________,
(the
Holder)
of
________________________________________________________________________, has the right to purchase, upon and subject to the
terms and conditions hereinafter referred to, up to ________________________________ fully paid and non-assessable common shares
(the Shares) in the capital of Eden Energy Corp. (hereinafter called the Company) on or before 4:30 p.m. (Vancouver time) on
__________________, 2006 (the Expiry Date) at a price per Share (the Exercise Price) of US$2.00 on the terms and conditions attached
hereto as Appendix A (the Terms and Conditions).
1.

ONE (1) WHOLE WARRANT AND THE EXERCISE PRICE ARE REQUIRED TO PURCHASE ONE SHARE. THIS
CERTIFICATE REPRESENTS __________________________ WARRANTS.

2.

These Warrants are issued subject to the Terms and Conditions, and the Warrant Holder may exercise the right to purchase
Shares only in accordance with those Terms and Conditions.

3.

Nothing contained herein or in the Terms and Conditions will confer any right upon the Holder hereof or any other person to
subscribe for or purchase any Shares at any time subsequent to the Expiry Date, and from and after such time, this Warrant
and all rights hereunder will be void and of no value.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Company has executed this Warrant Certificate this ____________ day of
______________________, 2005.
EDEN ENERGY CORP.
Per:
Don Sharpe, President
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PLEASE NOTE THAT ALL SHARE CERTIFICATES MUST BE LEGENDED AS FOLLOWS DURING THE CURRENCY OF
APPLICABLE HOLD PERIODS:
THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE BEEN OFFERED IN AN OFFSHORE TRANSACTION TO A PERSON
WHO IS NOT A U.S. PERSON (AS DEFINED HEREIN) PURSUANT TO REGULATION S UNDER THE UNITED STATES
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE "1933 ACT").
NONE OF THE SECURITIES REPRESENTED HEREBY HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE 1933 ACT, OR ANY U.S.
STATE SECURITIES LAWS, AND, UNLESS SO REGISTERED, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD, DIRECTLY OR
INDIRECTLY, IN THE UNITED STATES (AS DEFINED HEREIN) OR TO U.S. PERSONS EXCEPT IN ACCORDANCE WITH
THE PROVISIONS OF REGULATION S UNDER THE 1933 ACT, PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION
STATEMENT UNDER THE 1933 ACT, OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION
NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE 1933 ACT AND IN EACH CASE ONLY IN
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS. IN ADDITION, HEDGING TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING
THE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE CONDUCTED UNLESS IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE 1933 ACT. "UNITED STATES" AND
"U.S. PERSON" ARE AS DEFINED BY REGULATION S UNDER THE 1933 ACT.
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APPENDIX A
TERMS AND CONDITIONS dated _______________________, 2005, attached to the Warrants issued by Eden Energy Corp.
1.

INTERPRETATION

1.1

Definitions

In these Terms and Conditions, unless there is something in the subject matter or context inconsistent therewith:
(a)

Company means Eden Energy Corp. until a successor corporation will have become such as a result of
consolidation, amalgamation or merger with or into any other corporation or corporations, or as a result of the
conveyance or transfer of all or substantially all of the properties and estates of the Company as an entirety to
any other corporation and thereafter Company will mean such successor corporation;

(b)

Companys Auditors means an independent firm of accountants duly appointed as auditors of the
Company;

(c)

Director means a director of the Company for the time being, and reference, without more, to action by the
directors means action by the directors of the Company as a Board, or whenever duly empowered, action by
an executive committee of the Board;

(d)

herein, hereby and similar expressions refer to these Terms and Conditions as the same may be amended
or modified from time to time; and the expression Article and Section, followed by a number refer to the
specified Article or Section of these Terms and Conditions;

(e)

person means an individual, corporation, partnership, trustee or any unincorporated organization and words
importing persons have a similar meaning;

(f)

shares means the common shares in the capital of the Company as constituted at the date hereof and any
shares resulting from any subdivision or consolidation of the shares;

(g)

Warrant Holders or Holders means the holders of the Warrants; and

(h)

Warrants means the warrants of the Company issued and presently authorized and for the time being
outstanding.

1.2

Gender

Words importing the singular number include the plural and vice versa and words importing the masculine gender include the feminine and
neuter genders.
1.3

Interpretation not affected by Headings

The division of these Terms and Conditions into Articles and Sections, and the insertion of headings are for convenience of reference only and
will not affect the construction or interpretation thereof.
1.4

Applicable Law

The Warrants will be construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of British Columbia.
D/WLM/683339.2
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2.

ISSUE OF WARRANTS

2.1

Additional Warrants

The Company may at any time and from time to time issue additional warrants or grant options or similar rights to purchase shares of its capital
stock.
2.2

Warrant to Rank Pari Passu

All Warrants and additional warrants, options or similar rights to purchase shares from time to time issued or granted by the Company, will
rank pari passu whatever may be the actual dates of issue or grant thereof, or of the dates of the certificates by which they are evidenced.
2.3

2.4

Issue in substitution for Lost Warrants
(a)

In case a Warrant becomes mutilated, lost, destroyed or stolen, the Company, at its discretion, may
issue and deliver a new Warrant of like date and tenor as the one mutilated, lost, destroyed or
stolen, in exchange for and in place of and upon cancellation of such mutilated Warrant, or in lieu
of, and in substitution for such lost, destroyed or stolen Warrant and the substituted Warrant will
be entitled to the benefit hereof and rank equally in accordance with its terms with all other
Warrants issued or to be issued by the Company.

(b)

The applicant for the issue of a new Warrant pursuant hereto will bear the cost of the issue thereof
and in case of loss, destruction or theft furnish to the Company such evidence of ownership and of
loss, destruction, or theft of the Warrant so lost, destroyed or stolen as will be satisfactory to the
Company in its discretion and such applicant may also be required to furnish indemnity in amount
and form satisfactory to the Company in its discretion, and will pay the reasonable charges of the
Company in connection therewith.
Warrant Holder Not a Shareholder

The holding of a Warrant will not constitute the Holder thereof a shareholder of the Company, nor entitle him to any right or interest in respect
thereof except as in the Warrant expressly provided.
3.

NOTICE

3.1

Notice to Warrant Holders

Any notice required or permitted to be given to the Holders will be in writing and may be given by prepaid registered post, electronic facsimile
transmission or other means of electronic communication capable of producing a printed copy to the address of the Holder appearing on the
Holders Warrant or to such other address as any Holder may specify by notice in writing to the Company, and any such notice will be deemed
to have been given and received by the Holder to whom it was addressed if mailed, on the third day following the mailing thereof, if by facsimile
or other electronic communication, on successful transmission, or, if delivered, on delivery; but if at the time or mailing or between the time of
mailing and the third business day thereafter there is a strike, lockout, or other labour disturbance affecting postal service, then the notice will
not be effectively given until actually delivered.
3.2

Notice to the Company
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Any notice required or permitted to be given to the Company will be in writing and may be given by prepaid registered post, electronic facsimile
transmission or other means of electronic communication capable of producing a printed copy to the address of the Company set forth below or
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received by the Company to whom it was addressed if mailed, on the third day following the mailing thereof, if by facsimile or other
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electronic communication, on successful transmission, or, if delivered, on delivery; but if at the time or mailing or between the time of mailing
and the third business day thereafter there is a strike, lockout, or other labour disturbance affecting postal service, then the notice will not be
effectively given until actually delivered:
Eden Energy Corp.
1925  200 Burrard Street
Vancouver, British Columbia
Canada V6C 3L6
Attention: Don Sharpe
Fax No. (604) 638-3525
with a copy to:
Clark, Wilson
Barristers and Solicitors
800  885 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, British Columbia
Canada V6C 3H1
Attention: William L. Macdonald
Fax: (604) 687-6314
4.

EXERCISE OF WARRANTS

4.1

Method of Exercise of Warrants

The right to purchase shares conferred by the Warrants may be exercised by the Holder surrendering the Warrant Certificate representing same,
with a duly completed and executed subscription in the form attached hereto and a bank draft or certified cheque payable to or to the order
Company, at par, in Vancouver, Canada, for the purchase price applicable at the time of surrender in respect of the shares subscribed for in
lawful money of the United States of America, to the Company at the address set forth in, or from time to time specified by the Company
pursuant to, Section 3.2.
4.2

Effect of Exercise of Warrants
(a)

Upon surrender and payment as aforesaid the shares so subscribed for will be deemed to have been
issued and such person or persons will be deemed to have become the Holder or Holders of record
of such shares on the date of such surrender and payment, and such shares will be issued at the
subscription price in effect on the date of such surrender and payment.

(b)

Within ten business days after surrender and payment as aforesaid, the Company will forthwith
cause to be delivered to the person or persons in whose name or names the shares so subscribed
for are to be issued as specified in such subscription or mailed to him or them at his or their
respective addresses specified in such subscription, a certificate or certificates for the appropriate
number of shares not exceeding those which the Warrant Holder is entitled to purchase pursuant to
the Warrant surrendered.
Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
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Subscription for Less Than Entitlement

The Holder of any Warrant may subscribe for and purchase a number of shares less than the number which he is entitled to purchase pursuant
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addition be entitled to receive a new Warrant in respect of the balance of the shares which he was entitled to purchase pursuant to the surrendered
Warrant and which were not then purchased.
4.4

Warrants for Fractions of Shares

To the extent that the Holder of any Warrant is entitled to receive on the exercise or partial exercise thereof a fraction of a share, such right may
be exercised in respect of such fraction only in combination with another Warrant or other Warrants which in the aggregate entitle the Holder
to receive a whole number of such shares.
4.5

Expiration of Warrants

After the expiration of the period within which a Warrant is exercisable, all rights thereunder will wholly cease and terminate and such Warrant
will be void and of no effect.
4.6

Time of Essence

Time will be of the essence hereof.
4.7

Subscription Price

Each Warrant is exercisable at a price per share (the Exercise Price) of US$2.00. One (1) Warrant and the Exercise Price are required to
subscribe for each share during the term of the Warrants.
4.8

Adjustment of Exercise Price
(a)

The Exercise Price and the number of shares deliverable upon the exercise of the Warrants will be
subject to adjustment in the event and in the manner following:
(i)

If and whenever the shares at any time outstanding are subdivided into a greater or
consolidated into a lesser number of shares the Exercise Price will be decreased or
increased proportionately as the case may be; upon any such subdivision or consolidation
the number of shares deliverable upon the exercise of the Warrants will be increased or
decreased proportionately as the case may be.

(ii)

In case of any capital reorganization or of any reclassification of the capital of the
Company or in the case of the consolidation, merger or amalgamation of the Company
with or into any other Company (hereinafter collectively referred to as a
Reorganization), each Warrant will after such Reorganization confer the right to
purchase the number of shares or other securities of the Company (or of the Companys
resulting from such Reorganization) which the Warrant Holder would have been entitled
to upon Reorganization if the Warrant Holder had been a shareholder at the time of such
Reorganization.
In any such case, if necessary, appropriate adjustments will be made in the application of the provisions of this
Article Four relating to the rights and interest thereafter of the Holders of the Warrants so that the provisions of this
Article Four will be made applicable as nearly as reasonably possible to any shares or other securities deliverable
after the Reorganization on the exercise of the Warrants.
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The subdivision or consolidation of shares at any time outstanding into a greater or lesser number of shares (whether
with or without par value) will not be deemed to be a Reorganization for the purposes of this clause 4.8(a)(ii).
(b)

Anti-Dilution Provisions. Until such time as a registration statement has been declared effective to enable the resale of the
Shares to be received on exercise of the Warrants, the Exercise Price
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shall be subject to adjustment from time to time as provided in this Section 4.8(b). In the event that any adjustment of the
Exercise Price as required herein results in a fraction of a cent, such Exercise Price shall be rounded up or down to the nearest
cent.
(i)

Adjustment of Exercise Price. If and whenever the Company issues or sells any shares of Common Stock for a
consideration per share of less than the then the Exercise Price or for no consideration (such lower price, the Base
Share Price and such issuances collectively, a "Dilutive Issuance"), then, the Exercise Price shall be reduced to
equal the Base Share Price. Such adjustment shall be made whenever such shares of Common Stock or Capital
Share Equivalents are issued.

(ii)

Effect on Exercise Price of Certain Events. For purposes of determining the adjusted Exercise Price under Section
4.8(b) hereof, the following will be applicable:
A.

Issuance of Rights or Options. If the Company in any manner issues or grants any warrants, rights or
options, whether or not immediately exercisable, to subscribe for or to purchase Common Stock or other
securities exercisable, convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock (Convertible Securities)
(such warrants, rights and options to purchase Common Stock or Convertible Securities are hereinafter
referred to as Options) and the price per share for which Common Stock is issuable upon the exercise of
such Options is less than the Exercise Price (Below Base Price Options), then the maximum total
number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of all such Below Base Price Options
(assuming full exercise, conversion or exchange of Convertible Securities, if applicable) will, as of the
date of the issuance or grant of such Below Base Price Options, be deemed to be outstanding and to have
been issued and sold by the Company for such price per share. For purposes of the preceding sentence, the
price per share for which Common Stock is issuable upon the exercise of such Below Base Price
Options is determined by dividing (i) the total amount, if any, received or receivable by the Company as
consideration for the issuance or granting of all such Below Base Price Options, plus the minimum
aggregate amount of additional consideration, if any, payable to the Company upon the exercise of all
such Below Base Price Options, plus, in the case of Convertible Securities issuable upon the exercise of
such Below Base Price Options, the minimum aggregate amount of additional consideration payable upon
the exercise, conversion or exchange thereof at the time such Convertible Securities first become
exercisable, convertible or exchangeable, by (ii) the maximum total number of shares of Common Stock
issuable upon the exercise of all such Below Base Price Options (assuming full conversion of Convertible
Securities, if applicable). No further adjustment to the Exercise Price will be made upon the actual
issuance of such Common Stock upon the exercise of such Below Base Price Options or upon the
exercise, conversion or exchange of Convertible Securities issuable upon exercise of such Below Base
Price Options.

B.

Issuance of Convertible Securities. If the Company in any manner issues or sells any Convertible
Securities, whether or not immediately convertible (other than where the same are issuable upon the
exercise of Options) and the price per share for which Common Stock is issuable upon such exercise,
conversion or exchange is less than the Exercise Price, then the maximum total number of shares of
Common Stock issuable upon the exercise, conversion or exchange of all such Convertible Securities will,
as of the date of the issuance of such Convertible Securities, be deemed to be outstanding and to have been
issued and sold by the Company for such price per share. For the purposes of the preceding sentence, the
price per share for which Common Stock is issuable upon such exercise, conversion or exchange is
determined by dividing (i) the total
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amount, if any, received or receivable by the Company as consideration for the issuance or sale of all such
Convertible Securities, plus the minimum aggregate amount of additional consideration, if any, payable to
the Company upon the exercise, conversion or exchange thereof at the time such Convertible Securities first
become exercisable, convertible or exchangeable, by (ii) the maximum total number of shares of Common
Stock issuable upon the exercise, conversion or exchange of all such Convertible Securities. No further
adjustment to the Exercise Price will be made upon the actual issuance of such Common Stock upon
exercise, conversion or exchange of such Convertible Securities.
C.

Change in Option Price or Conversion Rate. If there is a change at any time in (i) the amount of additional
consideration payable to the Company upon the exercise of any Options; (ii) the amount of additional
consideration, if any, payable to the Company upon the exercise, conversion or exchange of any
Convertible Securities; or (iii) the rate at which any Convertible Securities are convertible into or
exchangeable for Common Stock (in each such case, other than under or by reason of provisions designed
to protect against dilution), the Exercise Price in effect at the time of such change will be readjusted to the
Exercise Price which would have been in effect at such time had such Options or Convertible Securities
still outstanding provided for such changed additional consideration or changed conversion rate, as the
case may be, at the time initially granted, issued or sold.

D.

Calculation of Consideration Received. If any Common Stock, Options or Convertible Securities are
issued, granted or sold for cash, the consideration received therefor for purposes of this Warrant will be
the amount received by the Company therefor, before deduction of reasonable commissions, underwriting
discounts or allowances or other reasonable expenses paid or incurred by the Company in connection with
such issuance, grant or sale. In case any Common Stock, Options or Convertible Securities are issued or
sold for a consideration part or all of which shall be other than cash, the amount of the consideration other
than cash received by the Company will be the fair market value of such consideration, except where such
consideration consists of securities, in which case the amount of consideration received by the Company
will be the fair market value (average of the closing bid and ask price, if traded on any market) thereof as
of the date of receipt. In case any Common Stock, Options or Convertible Securities are issued in
connection with any merger or consolidation in which the Company is the surviving corporation, the
amount of consideration therefor will be deemed to be the fair market value of such portion of the net
assets and business of the non-surviving corporation as is attributable to such Common Stock, Options or
Convertible Securities, as the case may be. The fair market value of any consideration other than cash or
securities will be determined in good faith by an investment banker or other appropriate expert of national
reputation selected by the Company and reasonably acceptable to the holder hereof, with the costs of such
appraisal to be borne by the Company.

E.

Exceptions to Adjustment of Exercise Price. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no adjustment will be made
under this Section 4.8(b) in respect of (1) the granting of options to employees, officers and directors of
the Company pursuant to any stock option plan duly adopted by a majority of the non-employee members
of the Board of Directors of the Company or a majority of the members of a committee of non-employee
directors established for such purpose, (2) upon the exercise of the Debentures or any Debentures of this
series or of any other series or security issued by the Company in connection with the offer and sale of this
Company's securities pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, or (3) upon the exercise of or conversion of
any convertible securities, options or warrants
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issued and outstanding on the Original Issue Date, provided that the securities have not been amended since
the date of the Purchase Agreement, or (4) acquisitions or strategic investments, the primary purpose of
which is not to raise capital.
(c)

4.9

The adjustments provided for in this
Section 4.8 are cumulative and will
become effective immediately after the
record date or, if no record date is fixed,
the effective date of the event which
results in such adjustments.
Determination of Adjustments

If any questions will at any time arise with respect to the Exercise Price or any adjustment provided for in Section 4.8, such questions will be
conclusively determined by the Companys Auditors, or, if they decline to so act any other firm of certified public accountants in the United
States of America that the Company may designate and who will have access to all appropriate records and such determination will be binding
upon the Company and the Holders of the Warrants.
5.

MANDATORY WARRANT EXERCISE

5.1

Exercise at the option of the Company

After a registration statement qualifying the resale of the Shares has been filed with the SEC and declared effective, the Company may require
the Holder, at any time following the date that the closing bid price of the Shares as listed on a Principal Market (as defined herein), as quoted
by Bloomberg L.P. (the Closing Bid Price) has been averaged or above US$2.50 for a period of twenty consecutive trading days, to exercise
the Warrants and acquire the Shares at the Exercise Price. The Holder must exercise the Warrants in accordance with Section 4.1 within five
(5) business days of the receipt of notice from the Company, after which time the Warrants shall be cancelled if unexercised. As used herein,
Principal Market shall mean The National Association of Securities Dealers Inc.'s OTC Bulletin Board, the Nasdaq SmallCap Market, or the
American Stock Exchange. If the Common Shares are not traded on a Principal Market, the Closing Bid Price shall mean the reported Closing
Bid Price for the Common Shares, as furnished by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., for the applicable periods.
6.

COVENANTS BY THE COMPANY

6.1

Reservation of Shares

The Company will reserve and there will remain unissued out of its authorized capital a sufficient number of shares to satisfy the rights of
purchase provided for herein and in the Warrants should the Holders of all the Warrants from time to time outstanding determine to exercise
such rights in respect of all shares which they are or may be entitled to purchase pursuant thereto and hereto.
7.

WAIVER OF CERTAIN RIGHTS

7.1

Immunity of Shareholders, etc.

The Warrant Holder, as part of the consideration for the issue of the Warrants, waives and will not have any right, cause of action or remedy
now or hereafter existing in any jurisdiction against any past, present or future incorporator, shareholder, Director or Officer (as such) of the
Company for the issue of shares pursuant to any Warrant or on any covenant, agreement, representation or warranty by the Company herein
contained or in the Warrant.
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Modification of Terms and Conditions for Certain Purposes
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From time to time the Company may, subject to the provisions of these presents, modify the Terms and Conditions hereof, for the purpose of
correction or rectification of any ambiguities, defective provisions, errors or omissions herein.
8.2

Warrants Not Transferable

The Warrant and all rights attached to it are not transferable.
DATED as of the date first above written in these Terms and Conditions.
EDEN ENERGY CORP.

By:
Don Sharpe, President
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FORM OF SUBSCRIPTION
TO:

Eden Energy Corp.
1925  200 Burrard Street
Vancouver, BC
V6C 3L6

The undersigned Holder of the within Warrants hereby subscribes for ____________ common shares (the Shares) of Eden Energy Corp. (the
Company) pursuant to the within Warrants at US$2.00 per Share on the terms specified in the said Warrants. This subscription is accompanied
by a certified cheque or bank draft payable to or to the order of the Company for the whole amount of the purchase price of the Shares.
The undersigned hereby directs that the Shares be registered as follows:
The undersigned hereby warrants that the undersigned is not a U.S. person and the Warrants are not being exercised on behalf of a U.S. person.

NAME(S) IN FULL

ADDRESS(ES)

NUMBER OF SHARES

TOTAL:
(Please print full name in which share certificates are to be issued, stating whether Mr., Mrs. or Miss is applicable).
DATED this ____________ day of ___________________, 2005.
In the presence of:

Signature of Witness

Signature of Warrant Holder

Please print below your name and address in full.
Name (Mr./Mrs./Miss)
Address

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBSCRIPTION
The signature to the subscription must correspond in every particular with the name written upon the face of the Warrant without alteration or
enlargement or any change whatever. If there is more than one subscriber, all must sign.
In the case of persons signing by agent or attorney or by personal representative(s), the authority of such agent, attorney or representative(s) to
sign must be proven to the satisfaction of the Company.
If the Warrant certificate and the form of subscription are being forwarded by mail, registered mail must be employed.
D/WLM/683339.2

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

EXHIBIT B

INSTRUCTIONS FOR WIRING FUNDS TO CLARK WILSON LLP

FOR WIRING U.S. FUNDS

HSBC Bank USA, N.Y.
ABA No.
Swift Code
Acct No.
For further credit to:
HSBC Bank Canada
885 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3G1
Account Name
US Trust Acct.
Transit No.
Bank Code
Swift No.

( OR )
021 001 088
HKBCCATT
000050881

Clark, Wilson
491689-002
10020
16
HKBCCATT

Routed through Bank of America NT & SA
New York, New York
ABA No.
0266009593
For Credit to
CIBC, Toronto ON
Acct No.
6550-8-26157
For further credit to:
Canadian Imperial Bank Of Commerce
400 Burrard Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6B 1P9
Account Name
Clark, Wilson
Cdn Trust Acct.
24-01215
Transit No.
10
Bank Code
10
Swift No.
CIBCCATT

Important: Please ask the bank to quote our file no. 23747-7 or lawyers initial, WLM.
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EXHIBIT C
Ontario Questionnaire
ONTARIO SECURITIES COMMISSION RULE 45-501
ACCREDITED INVESTOR QUESTIONNAIRE
All capitalized terms herein, unless otherwise defined, have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Subscription Agreement.
The purpose of this Questionnaire is to assure Eden Energy Corp. (the Company) that each Subscriber resident in Ontario will meet certain
requirements of Ontario Securities Commission Rule 45-501 ("Rule 45-501"). The Company will rely on the information contained in this
Questionnaire for the purposes of such determination.
The undersigned (the Subscriber) covenants, represents, warrants and certifies to the Company that:
1.

the Subscriber has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters as to be capable of evaluating the merits
and risks of the transactions detailed in the Subscription Agreement and the Subscriber is able to bear the economic risk of
loss arising from such transactions;

2.

the Subscriber satisfies one or more of the categories of accredited investor (as that term is defined in Rule 45-501)
indicated below (please check the appropriate box):

o

an individual who beneficially owns, or who together with a spouse beneficially own, financial assets (as defined in
Rule 45-501) having an aggregate realizable value that, before taxes but net of any related liabilities, exceeds
CDN$1,000,000;

o

an individual whose net income before taxes exceeded CDN$200,000 in each of the two more recent years or
whose net income before taxes combined with that of a spouse exceeded CDN$300,000 in each of those years and
who, in either case, has a reasonable expectation of exceeding the same net income level in the current year;

o

an individual registered or formerly registered under the Securities Act (Ontario), the Securities Act (British
Columbia) or the Securities Act (Alberta), or under securities legislation in another jurisdiction of Canada, as a
representative of a person or company registered under the Securities Act (Ontario), Securities Act (British
Columbia) or the Securities Act (Alberta), or under securities legislation in another jurisdiction of Canada, as an
adviser or dealer, other than a limited market dealer registered under the Securities Act (Ontario);

o

a bank listed in Schedule I or II of the Bank Act (Canada), or an authorized foreign bank listed in Schedule III of
the Bank Act (Canada);

o

the Business Development Bank of Canada incorporated under the Business Development Bank Act (Canada);

o

an association under the Cooperative Credit Associations Act (Canada) located in Canada;

o

a subsidiary of any company referred to in any of the foregoing categories, where the company owns all of the
voting securities of the subsidiary, except the voting securities required by law to be owned by directors of that
subsidiary;
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o

a person or company registered under the Securities Act (Ontario), Securities Act (British
Columbia) or the Securities Act (Alberta), or under securities legislation of another
jurisdiction of Canada, as an adviser or dealer, other than a limited market dealer registered
under the Securities Act (Ontario);

o

a pension fund that is regulated by either the Office of the Superintendent of Financial
Institutions (Canada) or a provincial pension commission or similar regulatory authority;

o

an entity organized outside of Canada that is analogous to any of the entities referred to in
any of the foregoing categories in form and function;

o

the government of Canada or of any jurisdiction, or any crown corporation, instrumentality
or agency of the Canadian federal, or provincial or territorial government;

o

any Canadian municipality or any Canadian provincial or territorial capital city;

o

a national, federal, state, provincial, territorial or municipal government of or in any foreign
jurisdiction, or any instrumentality or agency thereof;

o

a registered charity under the Income Tax Act (Canada);

o

a company, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, trust or estate, other than a
mutual fund or non-redeemable investment fund, that had net assets of at least $5,000,000 as
reflected on its most recently prepared financial statements;

o

a mutual fund or non-redeemable investment fund that, in Ontario, distributes its securities
only to persons or companies that are accredited investors;

o

a mutual fund or non-redeemable investment fund that, in Ontario, distributes its securities
under a prospectus for which a receipt has been issued by the securities regulator of such
jurisdiction; or

o

a person or company in respect of which all of the owners of interests, direct or indirect,
legal or beneficial, are persons or companies that are accredited investors.

The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that the Subscriber may be required by the Company to provide such additional documentation as
may be reasonably required by the Company and its legal counsel in determining the Subscribers eligibility to acquire the Shares under the
Ontario Securities Act.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Subscriber has executed this Questionnaire as of the ________ day of
________________________, 2005.
If a Corporation, Partnership or Other Entity:

If an Individual:

Print or Type Name of Entity

Signature
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EXHIBIT D
MULTILATERAL INSTRUMENT 45-103
ACCREDITED INVESTOR QUESTIONNAIRE
The purpose of this Questionnaire is to assure Eden Energy Corp. (the Company) that the undersigned (the Subscriber) will meet certain
requirements for the registration and prospectus exemptions provided for under Multilateral Instrument 45-103 (MI 45-103), as adopted by
the British Columbia Securities Commission and the Alberta Securities Commission, in respect of a proposed private placement of securities
by the Company (the Transaction). The Company will rely on the information contained in this Questionnaire for the purposes of such
determination.
The undersigned Subscriber covenants, represents and warrants to the Company that:
1.

the Subscriber has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters as to be capable of evaluating the merits
and risks of the Transaction and the Subscriber is able to bear the economic risk of loss arising from such Transaction;

2.

the Subscriber satisfies one or more of the categories of accredited investor (as that term is defined in MI 45-103)
indicated below (please check the appropriate box):

o

an individual who beneficially owns, or who together with a spouse beneficially own, financial assets (as defined in
MI 45-103) having an aggregate realizable value that, before taxes but net of any related liabilities, exceeds
CDN.$1,000,000;

o

an individual whose net income before taxes exceeded CDN.$200,000 in each of the two more recent years or
whose net income before taxes combined with that of a spouse exceeded $300,000 in each of those years and who,
in either case, has a reasonable expectation of exceeding the same net income level in the current year;

o

an individual registered or formerly registered under the Securities Act (British Columbia), or under securities
legislation in another jurisdiction of Canada, as a representative of a person or company registered under the
Securities Act (British Columbia), or under securities legislation in another jurisdiction of Canada, as an adviser or
dealer, other than a limited market dealer registered under the Securities Act (Ontario);

o

a Canadian financial institution as defined in National Instrument 14-101, or an authorized foreign bank listed in
Schedule III of the Bank Act (Canada);

o

the Business Development Bank of Canada incorporated under the Business Development Bank Act (Canada);

o

an association under the Cooperative Credit Associations Act (Canada) located in Canada;

o

a subsidiary of any company referred to in any of the foregoing categories, where the company owns all of the
voting securities of the subsidiary, except the voting securities required by law to be owned by directors of that
subsidiary;

o

a person or company registered under the Securities Act (British Columbia), or under securities legislation of
another jurisdiction of Canada, as an adviser or
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dealer, other than a limited market dealer registered under the Securities Act (Ontario);

o

a pension fund that is regulated by either the Office of the
Superintendent of Financial Institutions (Canada) or a provincial
pension commission or similar regulatory authority;

o

an entity organized in a foreign jurisdiction that is analogous to
any of the entities referred to in any of the foregoing categories in
form and function;

o

the government of Canada or a province, or any crown
corporation or agency of the government of Canada or a province;

o

a municipality, public board or commission in Canada;

o

a national, federal, state, provincial, territorial or municipal
government of or in any foreign jurisdiction, or any agency
thereof;

o

a registered charity under the Income Tax Act (Canada);

o

a corporation, limited partnership, limited liability partnership,
trust or estate, other than a mutual fund or non-redeemable
investment fund, that had net assets of at least CDN.$5,000,000 as
reflected on its most recently prepared financial statements;

o

a mutual fund or non-redeemable investment fund that, in British
Columbia, distributes it securities only to persons or companies
that are accredited investors;

o

a mutual fund or non-redeemable investment fund that, in British
Columbia, distributes its securities under a prospectus for which a
receipt has been issued by the executive director of the British
Columbia Securities Commission; or

o

a person or company in respect of which all of the owners of
interests, direct or indirect, legal or beneficial, are persons or
companies that are accredited investors.

The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that the Subscriber may be required by the Company to provide such additional documentation as may
be reasonably required by the Company and its legal counsel in determining the Subscribers eligibility to acquire the Shares under relevant
Legislation.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Questionnaire as of the ______________ day of
___________________, 2005.
If a Corporation, Partnership or Other Entity:

If an Individual:
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Print or Type Name of Entity

Signature

Signature of Authorized Signatory

Print or Type Name

Type of Entity
D/WLM/683339.2

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

Exhibit 10.8
THE SECURITIES TO WHICH THIS PRIVATE PLACEMENT SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT (THE SUBSCRIPTION
AGREEMENT) RELATES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
OR THE SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE, AND WILL BE ISSUED IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION
FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE 1933 ACT), AND, ACCORDINGLY,
MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE
1933 ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE
REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE 1933 ACT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES
LAWS.
CONFIDENTIAL
PRIVATE PLACEMENT SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT
(U.S. Accredited Subscribers)

TO:

Eden Energy Corp. (the Company)
1925  200 Burrard Street
Vancouver, BC V6C 3L6
Purchase of Units

1.

Subscription

1.1
On the basis of the representations and warranties and subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the undersigned
(the Subscriber) hereby irrevocably subscribes for and agrees to purchase ______________ units (the Units) at a price per Unit of
US$1.50 (such subscription and agreement to purchase being the Subscription), for an aggregate purchase price of US$_______________
(the Subscription Proceeds).
1.2
Each Unit will consist of one common share in the capital of the Company (each, a Share) and one-half of one common
share purchase warrant (each whole share purchase warrant, a Warrant) subject to adjustment. Each whole Warrant shall be transferable and
shall entitle the holder thereof to purchase one share of common stock in the capital of the Company (each, a Warrant Share), as presently
constituted, for a period of twelve months commencing from the Closing (as defined hereafter), at a price per Warrant Share of US$2.00.
Certificate(s) representing the Warrants will be in the form attached as Exhibit A. The Shares, Warrants and the Warrant Shares are referred to
as the Securities.
1.3
After the Warrant Shares have been registered and qualified for resale in accordance with Section 10.1, the Company may
require holders of Warrants, at any time following the date that the closing bid price of the Shares as listed on a Principal Market (as defined
herein), as quoted by Bloomberg L.P. (the Closing Bid Price) has averaged at or above US$2.50 for a period of twenty consecutive trading
days, to exercise the Warrants and acquire Warrant Shares at the applicable price per Warrant Share. The Warrants must be exercised within
five (5) business days of receipt of notice from the Company, after which time the Warrants shall be cancelled if unexercised. As used herein,
Principal Market shall mean The National Association of Securities Dealers Inc.'s OTC Bulletin Board, the Nasdaq SmallCap Market, or the
American Stock Exchange. If the Common Shares are not traded on a Principal Market, the Closing Bid Price shall mean the reported Closing
Bid Price for the Common Shares, as furnished by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., for the applicable periods.
1.4
On the basis of the representations and warranties and subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Company
hereby irrevocably agrees to sell the Units to the Subscriber.
1.5
Subject to the terms hereof, the Subscription will be effective upon its acceptance by the Company. The Subscriber
acknowledges that the offering of Units contemplated hereby is part a private placement of Units having an aggregate subscription level of
US$7,500,000 (the Offering). The Offering is not subject to any minimum aggregate subscription level.
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2.

Payment

2.1
The Subscription Proceeds must accompany this Subscription and shall be paid by certified cheque or bank draft drawn
on a Canadian chartered bank, or a bank in the United States reasonably acceptable to the Company, and made payable and delivered to the
Company. Alternatively, the Subscription Proceeds may be wired to the Company or its lawyers pursuant to the wiring instructions attached
hereto as Exhibit B. If the funds are wired to the Companys lawyers, those lawyers are authorized to immediately deliver the funds to the
Company.
2.2
The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that this Subscription Agreement, the Subscription Proceeds and any other
documents delivered in connection herewith will be held on behalf of the Company. In the event that this Subscription Agreement is not
accepted by the Company for whatever reason, which the Company expressly reserves the right to do, within 30 days of the delivery of an
executed Subscription Agreement by the Subscriber, this Subscription Agreement, the Subscription Proceeds (without interest thereon) and
any other documents delivered in connection herewith will be returned to the Subscriber at the address of the Subscriber as set forth in this
Subscription Agreement.
2.3
Where the Subscription Proceeds are paid to the Company, the Company is entitled to treat such Subscription Proceeds as
an interest free loan to the Company until such time as the Subscription is accepted and the certificates representing the Shares have been issued
to the Subscriber.
3.

Documents Required from Subscriber

3.1

The Subscriber must complete, sign and return to the Company:
(a)

an executed copy of this Subscription Agreement;

(b)

a Prospective Investor Suitability Questionnaire in the form attached as Exhibit C (the US
Questionnaire); and

(c)

a British Columbia Accredited Investor Questionnaire in the form attached as Exhibit D (together
with the US Questionnaire, the Questionnaires).

3.2
The Subscriber shall complete, sign and return to the Company as soon as possible, on request by the Company, any
documents, questionnaires, notices and undertakings as may be required by regulatory authorities, the OTC Bulletin Board and applicable law.
4.

Closing

4.1
Closing of the offering of the Securities (the Closing) shall occur on or before March 1, 2005, or on such other date as
may be determined by the Company (the Closing Date). On the Closing Date, the Company shall deliver an Officers Certificate in the form
attached as Exhibit E.
4.2
The Company may, at its discretion, elect to close the Offering in one or more closings, in which event the Company
may agree with one or more subscribers (including the Subscriber hereunder) to complete delivery of the Shares and the Warrants to such
subscriber(s) against payment therefor at any time on or prior to the Closing Date.
5.

Acknowledgements of Subscriber

5.1

The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that:
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(a)

none of the Securities have been registered under the 1933 Act, or under any state securities or
blue sky laws of any state of the United States, and, unless so registered, may not be offered or
sold in the United States or, directly or indirectly, to U.S. Persons, as that term is defined in
Regulation S under the 1933 Act (Regulation S), except in accordance with the provisions of
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Regulation S, pursuant to an effective registration statement under the 1933 Act, or pursuant to an exemption from, or in a
transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the 1933 Act;
(b)

by completing the Questionnaires, the Subscriber is representing and
warranting that the Subscriber is an Accredited Investor, as the term is
defined in Regulation D under the 1933 Act and in Multilateral
Instrument 45-103 adopted by the British Columbia Securities
Commission;

(c)

the decision to execute this Agreement and acquire the Securities
hereunder has not been based upon any oral or written representation as
to fact or otherwise made by or on behalf of the Company, and such
decision is based entirely upon a review of information (the receipt of
which is hereby acknowledged) which has been filed by the Company
with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission and in
compliance, or intended compliance, with applicable securities
legislation (collectively, the "Public Record");

(d)

if the Company has presented a business plan to the Subscriber, the
Subscriber acknowledges that the business plan may not be achieved or
be achievable;

(e)

no securities commission or similar regulatory authority has reviewed or
passed on the merits of the Securities;

(f)

there is no government or other insurance covering the Securities;

(g)

there are risks associated with an investment in the Securities, as more
fully described in certain information forming part of the Public Record;

(h)

the Company has advised the Subscriber that the Company is relying on
an exemption from the requirements to provide the Subscriber with a
prospectus and to sell the Securities through a person registered to sell
securities under the Securities Act (British Columbia) (the B.C. Act)
and, as a consequence of acquiring the Securities pursuant to this
exemption, certain protections, rights and remedies provided by the B.C.
Act, including statutory rights of rescission or damages, will not be
available to the Subscriber;

(i)

the Subscriber has not acquired the Securities as a result of, and will not
itself engage in, any activities undertaken for the purpose of, or that could
reasonably be expected to have the effect of, conditioning the market in
the United States for the resale of any of the Shares or Warrant Shares;
provided, however, that the Subscriber may sell or otherwise dispose of
any of the Shares or Warrant Shares pursuant to registration thereof
under the 1933 Act and any applicable state securities laws or under an
exemption from such registration requirements;
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(j)

the Subscriber and the Subscribers advisor(s) have had a reasonable
opportunity to ask questions of and receive answers from the Company in
connection with the distribution of the Securities hereunder, and to obtain
additional information, to the extent possessed or obtainable without
unreasonable effort or expense, necessary to verify the accuracy of the
information about the Company;

(k)

the books and records of the Company were available upon reasonable
notice for inspection, subject to certain confidentiality restrictions, by the
Subscriber during reasonable business hours at its principal place of
business, and all documents, records and books in connection with the
distribution of the Securities hereunder have been made available for
inspection by the Subscriber, the Subscribers lawyer and/or advisor(s);

(l)

the Subscriber will indemnify and hold harmless the Company and,
where applicable, its directors, officers, employees, agents, advisors and
shareholders, from and against any and all loss, liability, claim, damage
and expense whatsoever (including, but not limited to, any and all fees,
costs and expenses whatsoever reasonably incurred in investigating,
preparing or defending against any
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claim, lawsuit, administrative proceeding or investigation whether commenced or threatened) arising out of or based upon
any representation or warranty of the Subscriber contained herein, the Questionnaire or in any document furnished by the
Subscriber to the Company in connection herewith being untrue in any material respect or any breach or failure by the
Subscriber to comply with any covenant or agreement made by the Subscriber to the Company in connection therewith;
(m)

none of the Securities are listed on any stock exchange or automated dealer
quotation system and no representation has been made to the Subscriber that
any of the Securities will become listed on any stock exchange or automated
dealer quotation system; except that currently the common shares of the
Company are quoted for trading on the OTC Bulletin Board;

(n)

in addition to resale restrictions imposed under U.S. securities laws, there are
additional restrictions on the Subscribers ability to resell the Shares and the
Warrant Shares under the B.C. Act and Multilateral Instrument 45-102 adopted
by the British Columbia Securities Commission;

(o)

the Company will refuse to register any transfer of the Shares or the Warrant
Shares not made in accordance with the provisions of Regulation S, or pursuant
to an effective registration statement under the 1933 Act or pursuant to an
available exemption from the registration requirements of the 1933 Act;

(p)

the statutory and regulatory basis for the exemption claimed for the offer
Securities would not be available if the offering is part of a plan or scheme to
evade the registration provisions of the 1933 Act;

(q)

the Subscriber has been advised to consult the Subscribers own legal, tax and
other advisors with respect to the merits and risks of an investment in the
Securities and with respect to applicable resale restrictions, and it is solely
responsible (and the Company is not in any way responsible) for compliance
with:

(r)

6.

(i)

any applicable laws of the jurisdiction in which the Subscriber is
resident in connection with the distribution of the Securities
hereunder, and

(ii)

applicable resale restrictions; and

this Subscription Agreement is not enforceable by the Subscriber unless it has
been accepted by the Company.
Representations, Warranties and Covenants of the Subscriber

6.1
The Subscriber hereby represents and warrants to and covenants with the Company (which representations, warranties and
covenants shall survive the Closing) that:
(a)

the Subscriber has the legal capacity and competence to enter into and execute this Subscription Agreement and to take all
actions required pursuant hereto and, if the Subscriber is a corporation, it is duly incorporated and validly subsisting under
the laws of its jurisdiction of incorporation and all necessary approvals by its directors, shareholders and others have been
obtained to authorize execution and performance of this Subscription Agreement on behalf of the Subscriber;
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(b)

the entering into of this Subscription Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby do not result in the violation of
any of the terms and provisions of any law applicable to, or the constating documents of, the Subscriber or of any
agreement, written or oral, to which the Subscriber may be a party or by which the Subscriber is or may be bound;

(c)

the Subscriber has duly executed and delivered this Subscription Agreement and it constitutes a valid and binding agreement
of the Subscriber enforceable against the Subscriber;
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(d)

the Subscriber has the requisite knowledge and experience in financial and business matters as
to be capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the investment in the Securities and the
Company, and the Subscriber is providing evidence of such knowledge and experience in these
matters through the information requested in the Questionnaires;

(e)

all information contained in the Questionnaires is complete and accurate and may be relied
upon by the Company;

(f)

the Subscriber is resident in the jurisdiction set out under the heading Name and Address of
Subscriber on the signature page of this Subscription Agreement;

(g)

the Subscriber is acquiring the Securities for investment only and not with a view to resale or
distribution and, in particular, it has no intention to distribute either directly or indirectly any of
the Securities in the United States or to U.S. Persons;

(h)

the Subscriber is acquiring the Securities as principal for the Subscribers own account (except
for the circumstances outlined in paragraph 6.1(j), for investment purposes only, and not with a
view to, or for, resale, distribution or fractionalisation thereof, in whole or in part, and no other
person has a direct or indirect beneficial interest in such Securities;

(i)

the Subscriber is not an underwriter of, or dealer in, the common shares of the Company, nor is
the Subscriber participating, pursuant to a contractual agreement or otherwise, in the
distribution of the Securities;

(j)

if the Subscriber is acquiring the Securities as a fiduciary or agent for one or more investor
accounts:
(i)

the Subscriber has sole investment discretion with respect to each such account and it
has full power to make the foregoing acknowledgements, representations and
agreements on behalf of such account, and

(ii)

the investor accounts for which the Subscriber acts as a fiduciary or agent satisfy the
definition of an Accredited Investor, as the term is defined in Regulation D under
the 1933 Act and in Multilateral Instrument 45-103 adopted by the British Columbia
Securities Commission;

(k)

the Subscriber acknowledges that the Subscriber has not acquired the Securities as a result of,
and will not itself engage in, any directed selling efforts (as defined in Regulation S under the
1933 Act) in the United States in respect of any of the Securities which would include any
activities undertaken for the purpose of, or that could reasonably be expected to have the effect
of, conditioning the market in the United States for the resale of any of the Securities; provided,
however, that the Subscriber may sell or otherwise dispose of any of the Securities pursuant to
registration of any of the Securities pursuant to the 1933 Act and any applicable state securities
laws or under an exemption from such registration requirements and as otherwise provided
herein;

(l)

the Subscriber is not aware of any advertisement of any of the Securities; and

(m)

no person has made to the Subscriber any written or oral representations:
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(i)

that any person will resell or repurchase any of the Securities;

(ii)

that any person will refund the purchase price of any of the Securities;

(iii)

as to the future price or value of any of the Securities; or
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(iv)

7.

that any of the Securities will be listed and posted for trading on any stock exchange or automated dealer
quotation system or that application has been made to list and post any of the Securities of the Company on any
stock exchange or automated dealer quotation system, except that currently certain market makers make market
in the common shares of the Company on the OTC Bulletin Board.

Acknowledgement and Waiver

7.1
The Subscriber has acknowledged that the decision to purchase the Securities was solely made on the basis of publicly
available information contained in the Public Record. The Subscriber hereby waives, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any rights of
withdrawal, rescission or compensation for damages to which the Subscriber might be entitled in connection with the distribution of any of the
Securities.
8.

British Columbia Resale Restrictions

8.1
The Subscriber acknowledges that the Securities are subject to resale restrictions in British Columbia and may not be traded
in British Columbia except as permitted by the B.C. Act and the rules made thereunder.
8.2
Pursuant to Multilateral Instrument 45-102, as adopted by the BCSC, a subsequent trade in the Shares or the Warrant
Shares will be a distribution subject to the prospectus and registration requirements of applicable Canadian securities legislation (including the
B.C. Act) unless certain conditions are met, which conditions include a hold period (the Canadian Hold Period) that shall have elapsed from
the date on which the Securities were issued to the Subscriber and, during the currency of the Canadian Hold Period, any certificate representing
the Securities is to be imprinted with a restrictive legend (the Canadian Legend).
8.3
By executing and delivering this Agreement, the Subscriber will have directed the Company not to include the Canadian
Legend on any certificates representing the Shares or the Warrant Shares to be issued to the Subscriber.
8.4
As a consequence, the Subscriber will not be able to rely on the resale provisions of Multilateral Instrument 45-102, and
any subsequent trade in the Shares or the Warrant Shares during or after the Canadian Hold Period will be a distribution subject to the prospectus
and registration requirements of Canadian securities legislation, to the extent that the trade is at that time subject to any such Canadian securities
legislation.
9.

Registration Rights

9.1

Registration Procedures and Other Matters
(a)

The Company shall:
(i)

as soon as possible but in any event not later than the 45th day after the Closing Date (or,
if such day is a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, then by the next succeeding business day),
file a registration statement on Form S-3 (or, if Form S-3 is not then available, on such
form of registration statement as is then available to effect a registration of the Shares and
Warrant Shares) to enable the resale of the Shares and the Warrant Shares by the
Subscribers from time to time (the "Registration Statement");

(ii)

use commercially reasonable efforts to cause a Registration Statement to be declared
effective by the SEC as soon as possible, but in any event not later than the earlier of (a)
the 120th day following the Closing Date, and (b) the fifth trading day following the date
on which the Company is notified by the SEC that the Registration Statement will not be
reviewed or is no longer subject to further review and comments;
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(iii)

use commercially reasonable efforts to prepare and file with the SEC such amendments and supplements to the
Registration Statement and the prospectus used in connection therewith (the "Prospectus") as may be necessary to
keep the Registration Statement continuously current, effective and free from any material misstatement or
omission to state a material fact for a period not exceeding, with respect to the Subscribers Shares and Warrant
Shares purchased hereunder from the date it is first declared effective until, the earlier of (A) two years from the
date of the final exercise of all of the Warrants, (B) the date on which the Subscriber may sell all Shares and
Warrant Shares then held by the Subscriber pursuant to Rule 144 without any restriction as to the number of
securities as of a particular date that can then be immediately sold, or (C) the public sale of all of the Shares and the
Warrant Shares (such period, the "Effectiveness Period");

(iv)

if (A) the Registration Statement is not filed on or prior to the date of filing required pursuant to Section 9.1(a)(i),
(B) the Registration Statement is not declared effective on or prior to the date required by Section 9.1(a)(ii), or (C)
notwithstanding Section 9.2, after the date first declared effective by the SEC and prior to the expiration of the
Effectiveness Period, the Registration Statement ceases to be effective and available to each Subscriber as to its
Shares and Warrant Shares (whether pursuant to Section 9.2(c), or otherwise) without being succeeded within 20
trading days by an effective amendment thereto or by a subsequent registration statement filed with and declared
effective by the SEC, (any such failure being referred to as an "Event" and the date of such failure being the "Event
Date"), then, in addition to any other rights available to the Subscriber under this Agreement or applicable law: (w)
on the failure by the Company to comply with the Event required pursuant to Section 9.1(a)(i) the Company shall
pay to the Subscriber an amount in cash, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, equal to two percent of the
Subscription Price paid by the Subscriber and on each monthly anniversary of such Event Date (if the Event has not
been cured by such date) until the applicable Event is cured, the Company shall pay to the Subscriber a further
amount in cash, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, equal to two percent of the Subscription Price paid by
the Subscriber; (x) on the failure by the Company to comply with the Event required pursuant to Section 9.1(a)(ii)
or the occurrence of the Event set forth in Section 9.1(a)(iv) (C) and on each monthly anniversary of such Event
Dates (if the Event has not been cured by such date) until the applicable Event is cured, an amount shall accrue and
be payable by the Company to the Subscriber, as liquidated damages and not as a penalty, equal to two percent of
the Subscription Price paid by the Subscriber; (y) provided however that if the foregoing Events set forth in (x) is
cured by the Company within 90 days of the applicable Event Date, all liquidated damages that have accrued and
are due and owing by the Company to the Subscriber shall be payable in Units (to be registered in accordance with
the terms of this Agreement), as liquidated damages and not as a penalty; and (z) if an Event is not cured within 90
days of the applicable Event Date, all liquidated damages that have accrued and are owed and continue to accrue to
the Subscriber shall be paid in cash, and any liquidated damages that accrue after one year from the Closing Date
shall not exceed six percent of the Subscription Price paid by the Subscriber. The liquidated damages pursuant to
the terms hereof shall apply on a pro rata basis for any portion of a month prior to the cure of an Event;

(v)

furnish to the Subscriber with respect to the Shares and the Warrant Shares registered under the Registration
Statement such number of copies of the Registration Statement, Prospectuses and Preliminary Prospectuses in
conformity with the requirements of the 1933 Act and such other documents as the Subscriber may reasonably
request in writing, in order to facilitate the public sale or other disposition of all or any of the Shares or Warrant
Shares by the Subscriber; provided, however, that the obligation of the Company to deliver copies of Prospectuses
or Preliminary Prospectuses to the Subscriber shall be subject to the receipt by the Company of reasonable
assurances from the Subscriber that the Subscriber will comply with the applicable provisions of the 1933 Act and
of such
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other securities or blue sky laws as may be applicable in connection with any use of such Prospectuses or Preliminary
Prospectuses;

(b)

9.2

(vi)

file documents required of the Company for blue sky clearance in states specified in writing by the Subscriber
and use its commercially reasonable efforts to maintain such blue sky qualifications during the period the
Company is required to maintain the effectiveness of the Registration Statement pursuant to Section 9.1(a)(iii);
provided, however, that the Company shall not be required to qualify to do business or consent to service of
process in any jurisdiction in which it is not now so qualified or has not so consented;

(vii)

bear all expenses in connection with the procedures in paragraph (i) through (vi) of this Section 9.1 (other than
any underwriting discounts or commissions, brokers fees and similar selling expenses, and any other fees or
expenses incurred by the Subscriber, including attorneys fees); and

(viii)

advise the Subscriber in writing promptly after it shall receive notice or obtain knowledge of the issuance of any
stop order by the SEC delaying or suspending the effectiveness of the Registration Statement or of the initiation
or threat of any proceeding for that purpose; and it will promptly use its commercially reasonable efforts to
prevent the issuance of any stop order or to obtain its withdrawal at the earliest possible moment if such stop
order should be issued.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Registration Statement shall cover only the Shares and the Warrant
Shares and such other securities issued by the Company subject to registration rights. In no event at any time before the
Registration Statement becomes effective with respect to the Shares and Warrant Shares shall the Company publicly
announce or file any other registration statement, other than registrations on Form S-8 or registrations for other securities
issued by the Company subject to registration rights, without the prior written consent of 66-2/3% in interest of the
Subscribers.
Transfer of Shares After Registration; Suspension

(a)

The Subscriber agrees that it will not effect any disposition of the Securities or its right to purchase the Securities that
would constitute a "sale" within the meaning of the 1933 Act, except as contemplated in the Registration Statement
referred to in Section 9.1 and as described below or as otherwise permitted by law, and that it will promptly notify the
Company of any material changes in the information set forth in the Registration Statement regarding the Subscriber or its
plan of distribution.

(b)

Except in the event that paragraph (c) below applies, the Company shall (i) if deemed necessary by the Company, prepare
and file from time to time with the SEC a post-effective amendment to the Registration Statement or a supplement to the
related Prospectus or a supplement or amendment to any document incorporated therein by reference or file any other
required document so that such Registration Statement will not contain an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein not misleading, and so that, as
thereafter delivered to purchasers of the Shares and Warrant Shares being sold thereunder, such Prospectus will not contain
an untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; (ii) provide the Subscriber
copies of any documents filed pursuant to Section 9.2(b)(i) as the Subscriber may reasonably request; and (iii) inform each
Subscriber that the Company has complied with its obligations in Section 9.2(b)(i) (or that, if the Company has filed a
post-effective amendment to the Registration Statement which has not yet been declared effective, the Company will
notify the Subscriber to that effect, will use its commercially reasonable efforts to secure the effectiveness of
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such post-effective amendment as promptly as possible and will promptly notify the Subscriber pursuant to Section 9.2(b)(i)
hereof when the amendment has become effective).
(c)

Subject to paragraph (d) below, in the event of: (i) any request by the SEC or any other federal
or state governmental authority during the period of effectiveness of the Registration Statement
for amendments or supplements to a Registration Statement or related Prospectus or for
additional information; (ii) the issuance by the SEC or any other federal or state governmental
authority of any stop order suspending the effectiveness of a Registration Statement or the
initiation of any proceedings for that purpose; (iii) the receipt by the Company of any
notification with respect to the suspension of the qualification or exemption from qualification
of any of the Shares for sale in any jurisdiction or the initiation or threatening of any
proceeding for such purpose; or (iv) any event or circumstance which, upon the advice of its
counsel, necessitates the making of any changes in the Registration Statement or Prospectus, or
any document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated therein by reference, so that, in the
case of the Registration Statement, it will not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
any omission to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the
statements therein not misleading, and that in the case of the Prospectus, it will not contain any
untrue statement of a material fact or any omission to state a material fact required to be stated
therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading; then the Company shall deliver a certificate in writing
to the Subscriber (the "Suspension Notice") to the effect of the foregoing and, upon receipt of
such Suspension Notice, the Subscriber will refrain from selling any Shares and Warrant
Shares pursuant to the Registration Statement (a "Suspension") until the Subscriber's receipt of
copies of a supplemented or amended Prospectus prepared and filed by the Company, or until it
is advised in writing by the Company that the current Prospectus may be used, and has
received copies of any additional or supplemental filings that are incorporated or deemed
incorporated by reference in any such Prospectus. In the event of any Suspension, the
Company will use its commercially reasonable efforts to cause the use of the Prospectus so
suspended to be resumed as soon as reasonably practicable within 20 trading days after the
delivery of a Suspension Notice to the Subscriber.

(d)

Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraphs of this Section 9.2, the Subscriber shall not be
prohibited from selling Shares under the Registration Statement as a result of Suspensions on
more than two occasions of not more than 20 trading days each in any twelve month period.

(e)

Provided that a Suspension is not then in effect, the Subscriber may sell the Shares and the
Warrant Shares under the Registration Statement, provided that it arranges for delivery of a
current Prospectus to the transferee of such Shares or Warrant Shares, as applicable. The
Company shall provide such number of current Prospectuses to the Subscriber as the
Subscriber may reasonably request, and shall supply copies to any other parties reasonably
requiring such Prospectuses.

9.3

Indemnification
(a)

The Company agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Subscriber and the officers, directors,
agents and employees of the Subscriber, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law from
and against any losses, claims, damages or liabilities to which any such person(s) may become
subject (under the 1933 Act or otherwise) insofar as such losses, claims, damages or liabilities
(or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) arise out of, or are based upon (i) any Untrue
Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
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Statement (defined below), or (ii) any failure by the Company to fulfill any undertaking
included in the Registration Statement, as amended or supplemented from time to time, which
indemnification will include reimbursement for any reasonable legal or other expenses
reasonably incurred in investigating, defending or preparing to defend any such action,
proceeding or claim, or preparing to defend any such action, proceeding or claim, provided,
however, that the Company shall not be liable in any such case to the extent that such loss,
claim, damage or liability arises out of, or is based upon, an Untrue Statement made in reliance
upon and in conformity with written information furnished to the Company by or on behalf of
the Subscriber specifically for use in preparation of the
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Registration Statement, as amended or supplemented from time to time (including, without limitation, information set forth in
the Investor Questionnaire), or the failure of the Subscriber to comply with its covenants and agreements contained in Section
9.2 hereof respecting sale of the Shares or Warrant Shares or any statement or omission in any Prospectus that is corrected
in any subsequent Prospectus that was delivered to the Subscriber prior to the pertinent sale or sales by the Subscriber. The
Company shall reimburse the Subscriber for the indemnifiable amounts provided for herein on demand as such expenses are
incurred. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company's aggregate obligation to indemnify the Subscriber and such officers,
directors and controlling persons shall be limited to the amount of the Subscription Price received by the Company from the
Subscriber.
(b)

The Subscriber agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company (and each person, if any, who controls the Company
within the meaning of Section 15 of the 1933 Act, each officer of the Company who signs the Registration Statement and
each director of the Company) from and against any losses, claims, damages or liabilities to which the Company (or any
such officer, director or controlling person) may become subject (under the 1933 Act or otherwise), insofar as such losses,
claims, damages or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect thereof) arise out of, or are based upon, (i) any Untrue
Statement if such Untrue Statement was made in reliance upon and in conformity with written information furnished by or
on behalf of the Subscriber specifically for use in preparation of the Registration Statement, as amended or supplemented
from time to time (including, without limitation, information set forth in the Investor Questionnaire), or (ii) the failure of the
Subscriber to comply with its covenants and agreements contained in Section 9.2 hereof respecting sale of the Shares or
Warrant Shares or any statement or omission in any Prospectus that is corrected in any subsequent Prospectus that was
delivered to the Subscriber prior to the pertinent sale or sales by the Subscriber; and the Subscriber will reimburse the
Company or such officer, director or controlling person, as the case may be, for any reasonable legal or other expenses
reasonably incurred in investigating, defending or preparing to defend any such action, proceeding or claim. The Subscriber
shall reimburse the Company or such officer, director or controlling person, as the case may be, for the indemnifiable
amounts provided for herein on demand as such expenses are incurred. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Subscriber's
aggregate obligation to indemnify the Company and such officers, directors and controlling persons shall be limited to the
amount received by the Subscriber from the sale of Shares or Warrant Shares that are the subject of such loss.

(c)

Promptly after receipt by any indemnified person of a notice of a claim or the beginning of any action in respect of which
indemnity is to be sought against an indemnifying person pursuant to this Section 9.3, such indemnified person shall notify
the indemnifying person in writing of such claim or of the commencement of such action, but the omission to so notify the
indemnifying person will not relieve it from any liability which it may have to any indemnified person under this Section 9.3
(except to the extent that such omission materially and adversely affects the indemnifying person's ability to defend such
action) or from any liability otherwise than under this Section 9.3. Subject to the provisions hereinafter stated, in case any
such action shall be brought against an indemnified person, the indemnifying person shall be entitled to participate therein,
and, to the extent that it shall elect by written notice delivered to the indemnified person promptly after receiving the
aforesaid notice from such indemnified person, shall be entitled to assume the defense thereof, with counsel reasonably
satisfactory to such indemnified person. After notice from the indemnifying person to such indemnified person of its
election to assume the defense thereof, such indemnifying person shall not be liable to such indemnified person for any legal
expenses subsequently incurred by such indemnified person in connection with the defense thereof, provided, however, that
if there exists or shall exist a conflict of interest that would make it inappropriate, in the opinion of counsel to the
indemnified person, for the same counsel to represent both the indemnified person and such indemnifying person or any
affiliate or associate thereof, the indemnified person shall be entitled to retain its own counsel at the expense of such
indemnifying person; provided, however, that no indemnifying person shall be responsible for the fees and expenses of more
than one separate counsel (together with appropriate local counsel) for all indemnified parties. In no event shall any
indemnifying person be liable in respect of any
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amounts paid in settlement of any action unless the indemnifying person shall have approved the terms of such settlement;
provided that such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. No indemnifying person shall, without the prior
written consent of the indemnified person, effect any settlement of any pending or threatened proceeding in respect of
which any indemnified person is or could have been a party and indemnification could have been sought hereunder by such
indemnified person, unless such settlement includes an unconditional release of such indemnified person from all liability on
claims that are the subject matter of such proceeding.
(d)

If the indemnification provided for in this Section 9.3 is unavailable to or insufficient to hold harmless an indemnified person
under subsection (a) or (b) above in respect of any losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actions or proceedings in respect
thereof) referred to therein, then each indemnifying person shall contribute to the amount paid or payable by such
indemnified person as a result of such losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actions in respect thereof) in such proportion
as is appropriate to reflect the relative fault of the Company on the one hand and the Subscriber, as well as any other
Subscribers under such Registration Statement on the other in connection with the statements or omissions or other matters
which resulted in such losses, claims, damages or liabilities (or actions in respect thereof), as well as any other relevant
equitable considerations. The relative fault shall be determined by reference to, among other things, in the case of an Untrue
Statement, whether the Untrue Statement relates to information supplied by the Company on the one hand or the Subscriber
on the other and the parties' relative intent, knowledge, access to information and opportunity to correct or prevent such
Untrue Statement. The Company and the Subscriber agree that it would not be just and equitable if contribution pursuant to
this subsection (d) were determined by pro rata allocation (even if the Subscriber and other subscribers were treated as one
entity for such purpose) or by any other method of allocation which does not take into account the equitable considerations
referred to above in this subsection (d). The amount paid or payable by an indemnified person as a result of the losses,
claims, damages or liabilities (or actions in respect thereof) referred to above in this subsection (d) shall be deemed to
include any legal or other expenses reasonably incurred by such indemnified person in connection with investigating or
defending any such action or claim. Notwithstanding the provisions of this subsection (d), the Subscriber shall not be
required to contribute any amount in excess of the amount by which the net amount received by the Subscriber from any and
all sales of the Securities to which such loss relates exceeds the amount of any damages which such Subscriber has otherwise
been required to pay by reason of such Untrue Statement. No person guilty of fraudulent misrepresentation (within the
meaning of Section 11(f) of the 1933 Act) shall be entitled to contribution from any person who was not guilty of such
fraudulent misrepresentation. The Subscriber's obligations in this subsection to contribute shall be in proportion to its sale of
Securities to which such loss relates and shall not be joint with any other Subscribers.

(e)

The parties to this Agreement hereby acknowledge that they are sophisticated business persons who were represented by
counsel during the negotiations regarding the provisions hereof including, without limitation, the provisions of this Section
9.3, and are fully informed regarding said provisions. They further acknowledge that the provisions of this Section 9.3 fairly
allocate the risks in light of the ability of the parties to investigate the Company and its business in order to assure that
adequate disclosure is made in the Registration Statement as required by the 1933 Act and the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the 1934 Act). The parties are advised that federal or state public policy as interpreted by the courts in
certain jurisdictions may be contrary to certain of the provisions of this Section 9.3, and the parties hereto hereby expressly
waive and relinquish any right or ability to assert such public policy as a defense to a claim under this Section 9.3 and further
agree not to attempt to assert any such defense.

(f)

For the purpose of this Section 9.3:
(i)

the term "Registration Statement" shall include the Prospectus in the form first filed with the SEC pursuant to
Rule 424(b) of the 1933 Act or filed as part of the Registration Statement at the time of effectiveness if no
Rule 424(b) filing is required, and any
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exhibit, supplement or amendment included in or relating to the Registration Statement referred to in Section 9.1;
and
(ii)

the term "Untrue Statement" means any untrue statement or alleged untrue statement, or any omission or alleged
omission to state in the Registration Statement, as amended or supplemented from time to time, a material fact
required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading.

9.4
Information Available. So long as the Registration Statement is effective covering the resale of Shares and Warrant Shares
owned by the Subscriber, the Company will, at Subscriber's written request, furnish to the Subscriber:

10.

(a)

as soon as practicable after it is available,
one copy of (i) its Annual Report to
Shareholders (which Annual Report shall
contain financial statements audited in
accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles by a national firm
of certified public accountants), (ii) its
Annual Report on Form 10-KSB and (iii)
its Quarterly Reports on Form 10-QSB
(the foregoing, in each case, excluding
exhibits);

(b)

any and all exhibits to the reports set
forth in Section 9.4(a) as filed with the
SEC and all other information that is
made available to shareholders; and

(c)

an adequate number of copies of the
Prospectuses to supply to any other party
requiring such Prospectuses.
Company Representations

10.1
The Company is a corporation duly incorporated and in good standing under the laws of the State of Nevada, and has the
requisite corporate power and authority to conduct its business as it is currently being conducted.
10.2
The Company is a reporting issuer under the 1934 Act, and at the Closing Date, the Company will have filed all documents
that it is required to file under the provisions of the 1934 Act during a period of at least five years prior to the date hereof (the SEC Reports).
10.3
As of their respective filing dates, each of the Companys SEC Filings (and if any SEC Report filed prior to the date of
this Agreement was amended or superseded by a filing prior to the date of the Closing Date, then also on the date of filing of such amendment
or superseding filing) filed on or after January 1, 2004, (i) where required, were prepared in all material respects in accordance with the
requirements of the 1933 Act or the 1934 Act, as the case may be, and the rules and regulations promulgated under such Acts applicable to
such SEC Reports, (ii) did not contain any untrue statements of a material fact and did not omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading and (iii) are all the forms, reports and documents
required to be filed by the Company with the SEC since that time.
10.4
Each set of audited consolidated financial statements and unaudited interim financial statements of the Company (including
any notes thereto) included in the SEC Reports (i) complies as to form in all material respects with the published rules and regulations of the
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SEC with respect thereto, and (ii) have been prepared in accordance with United States generally accepted accounting principles applied on a
consistent basis (except as may be indicated therein or in the notes thereto) and fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as of the dates thereof and the results of its operations and cash flows for the periods then ended subject, in the case of the
unaudited interim financial statements, to normal year-end adjustments which were not or are not expected to be material in amount. To the
Companys knowledge, no events or other factual matters exist which would require the Company to file any amendments or modifications to
any SEC Reports which have not yet been filed with the SEC but which are required to be filed with the SEC pursuant to the 1933 Act or the
1934 Act. As
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used herein, the words knowledge of the Company (or any substantially similar phrase) means the active knowledge (with reasonable
investigation) of the executive officers of the Company.
10.5
The SEC Reports describes each of the Companys material subsidiaries, and each such subsidiary is a corporation duly
incorporated and in good standing under the laws of its incorporating jurisdiction, and has the requisite corporate power and authority to conduct
its business as it is currently being conducted. Except as otherwise disclosed in the SEC Reports, all of the issued and outstanding shares of
capital stock of each of the Companys material subsidiaries are validly issued and are fully paid, non-assessable and free of preemptive and
similar rights.
10.6
The Company and each of its subsidiaries has obtained all certificates, authorizations, permits or licenses necessary to
conduct the business now owned or operated by it and the Company has not received any notice of proceedings relating to the revocation or
modification of any material certificate, authority, permit or license necessary which, if the subject of an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding
would materially and adversely affect the conduct of the business, operations, financial condition or income of the Company (on a consolidated
basis).
10.7
The authorized capital of the Company consists of 100,000,000 shares of common stock, par value $0.001 per share, of
which there were 23,855,869 shares issued and outstanding as of the date hereof. In addition, as of the date hereof there are (and as of the
Closing Date there will be) options to purchase in the aggregate 1,330,000 Common Shares.
10.8
The Company has the requisite corporate power and authority to enter into and to consummate the transactions
contemplated by the Transaction Documents. The execution and delivery by the Company of the Transaction Documents have been duly
authorized by all necessary action on the part of the Company, and no further consent or action is required by the Company, its Board of
Directors or its stockholders. Each of the Transaction Documents constitutes, or will when duly authorized, executed and delivered by all parties
thereto other than the Company constitute, a valid and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance
with the terms thereof, except that (i) the enforcement thereof may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium
or similar laws affecting the rights of creditors generally, (ii) equitable remedies, including, without limitation, specific performance and
injunction, may be granted only in the discretion of a court of competent jurisdiction, (iii) rights of indemnity, contribution and the waiver of
contribution provided for herein, and any provisions exculpating a party from a liability or duty otherwise owed by it, may be limited under
applicable law, and (iv) the enforceability of provisions in any Transaction Document which purport to sever any provision which is prohibited
or unenforceable under applicable law without affecting the enforceability or validity of the remainder of such Transaction Document would be
determined only in the discretion of the court.
10.9
Except as disclosed herein, in the SEC Reports or as contemplated in the Offering, as of the Closing Date, no person, firm
or corporation has any agreement or option or right or privilege (whether preemptive or contractual) capable of becoming an agreement for the
purchase, subscription or issuance of any unissued shares, securities or warrants of the Company;
10.10
Except as qualified in the SEC Reports, the Company or a subsidiary is the beneficial owner of the properties, business
and assets or the interests in the properties, business or assets referred to as owned by it in the SEC Report, all agreements under which the
Company or a subsidiary holds an interest in a property, business or asset are in good standing according to their terms except where the failure
to be in such good standing does not and will not have a material adverse effect on the Company (on a consolidated basis) or its properties,
business or assets.
10.11
Each SEC Report containing financial statements that has been filed with or submitted to the SEC since July 31, 2002, was
accompanied by the certifications required to be filed or submitted by the Companys chief executive officer and chief financial officer pursuant
to the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the "Sarbanes-Oxley Act"); at the time of filing or submission of each such certification, such certification
was true and accurate and complied with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder to the knowledge of the
Company; such certifications contain no qualifications or exceptions to the matters certified therein and have not been modified or withdrawn;
and neither the Company nor any of its officers has received notice from any
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governmental entity questioning or challenging the accuracy, completeness, form or manner of filing or submission of such certification.
10.12
The Company and each of its subsidiaries has filed all federal, state, local and other tax returns that are required to be filed
or have requested extensions thereof (except in any case in which the failure so to file would not have a material adverse effect on the assets and
properties, business, results of operations or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company) on a consolidated basis and has paid all taxes
required to be paid by it and any other assessment, fine or penalty levied against it, to the extent that any of the foregoing is due and payable,
except for any such assessment, fine or penalty that is currently being contested in good faith.
10.13
The Company and each of its subsidiaries has established on its books and records reserves that are adequate for the
payment of all taxes not yet due and payable and there are no liens for taxes on the assets of the Company or any subsidiary and there are no
audits known by the Company's management to be pending of the tax returns of the Company or any subsidiary (whether federal, state, local
or foreign) and there are no claims which have been or may be asserted relating to any such tax returns, which audits and claims, if determined
adversely, would result in the assertion by any governmental agency of any deficiency that would have a material adverse effect on the assets
or properties, business, results of operations or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company (on a consolidated basis).
10.14
No taxation authority has asserted or, to the best of the Company's knowledge, threatened to assert any assessment, claim
or liability for taxes due or to become due in connection with any review or examination of the tax returns of the Company or each of its
subsidiaries (including, without limitation, any predecessor companies) filed for any year which would have a material adverse effect on the
assets or properties, business, results of operations or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company (on a consolidated basis).
10.15
The Company and its subsidiary maintains a system of internal accounting controls sufficient to provide reasonable
assurance that: (i) transactions are executed in accordance with management's general or specific authorizations, (ii) transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and to maintain asset
accountability, (iii) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management's general or specific authorization and (iv) the recorded
accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and appropriate action is taken with respect to any
differences.
10.16
The Company is not aware of any legislation, or proposed legislation (published by a legislative body), which it anticipates
will materially and adversely affect the business, affairs, operations, assets or liabilities (contingent or otherwise) of the Company and its
subsidiaries, considered as a whole.
10.17
Except as disclosed in the Companys annual report on Form 10-KSB for the year ended December 31, 2003, to the
Companys knowledge: (i) the operations carried on by the Company are in material compliance with all applicable federal, state and municipal
environmental, health and safety statutes, regulations and permits; (ii) none of such operations is subject to any judicial or administrative
proceeding alleging the violation of any federal, state or municipal environmental, health or safety statute or regulation or is subject to any
investigation concerning whether any remedial action is needed to respond to a release of any Hazardous Material (as defined below) into the
environment; (iii) except in material compliance with applicable environmental laws, none of the premises currently occupied by the Company
has at any time been used by the Company or by any other occupier, as a waste storage or waste disposal site or to operate a waste management
business; (iv) the Company has no material contingent liability in connection with any release of any Hazardous Material on or into the
environment from any of the premises currently occupied by the Company or from the operations carried out thereon except to the extent such
release is in material compliance with all applicable laws; (v) neither the Company nor any occupier of the premises currently occupied by
the Company, generates, transports, treats, stores or disposes of any waste, subject waste, hazardous waste, deleterious substance, industrial
waste (as defined in applicable federal, state or municipal legislation) on any of the premises currently occupied by the Company in material
contravention of applicable federal, state or municipal laws or regulations enacted for the protection of the natural environment or human health;
and (vi) no underground storage tanks or surface impoundments containing a petroleum product or Hazardous Material are located on any of
the Company or its subsidiaries properties in material contravention of applicable federal, state or municipal laws or regulations enacted for
the protection of the natural environment or
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human health. For the purposes of this subparagraph, Hazardous Material means any contaminant, pollutant, subject waste, hazardous waste,
deleterious substance, industrial waste, toxic matter or any other substance that when released into the natural environment is likely to cause,
at some immediate or future time, material harm or degradation to the natural environment or material risk to human health and, without
restricting the generality of the foregoing, includes any contaminant, pollutant, subject waste, deleterious substance, industrial waste, toxic
matter or hazardous waste as defined by applicable federal, provincial, state or municipal laws or regulations enacted for the protection of the
natural environment or human health.
10.18
The issue and sale of the Securities by the Company does not and will not conflict with, and does not and will not result in
a breach of, any of the terms of its incorporating documents or any agreement or instrument to which the Company is a party.
10.19
There are no actions, suits, proceedings or inquiries pending or to the Company's knowledge threatened against or affecting
the Company or any of its subsidiaries at law or in equity or before or by any federal, provincial, municipal or other governmental department,
commission, board, bureau, agency or instrumentality which in any way materially adversely affect, or may in any way materially adversely
affect, the business, operations or condition (financial or otherwise) of the Company (on a consolidated basis) or its properties or assets or which
affects or may affect the distribution of the Securities.
10.20
The Common Shares are currently quoted for trading on the OTC Bulletin Board operated by the National Association of
Securities Dealers. No order ceasing or suspending trading in securities of the Company nor prohibiting the sale of such securities has been
issued to and is outstanding against the Company or its directors, officers or promoters or against any other companies that have common
directors, officers or promoters and, to the best of the Companys knowledge, no investigations or proceedings for such purposes are pending
or threatened.
10.21
Except as otherwise disclosed in the Subscription Agreement, no person, firm or corporation acting or purporting to act
at the request of the Company is entitled to any brokerage, agency or finders fee in connection with the purchase and sale of the Securities
described herein.
10.22
The Company agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the Subscriber (which term shall, for the purposes of this Paragraph,
include the Subscriber and its shareholders, managers, partners, directors, officers, members, employees, direct or indirect investors, agents
and affiliates and assignees and the stockholders, partners, directors, members, managers, officers, employees direct or indirect investors
and agents of such affiliates and assignees) harmless against any and all liabilities, loss, cost or damage, together with all reasonable costs
and expenses related thereto (including reasonable legal and accounting fees and expenses), arising from, relating to, or connected with the
untruth, inaccuracy or breach of any statement, representation, warranty or covenant of the Company contained in this Subscription Agreement,
provided that the amount of such indemnification shall be limited to the Subscription Proceeds set forth in Section 1.1 hereof. The Company
undertakes to notify the Subscriber immediately of any change in any representation, warranty or other information relating to the Company set
forth in this Agreement which takes place prior to the Closing Date.
11.

Legending of Subject Securities

11.1
The Subscriber hereby acknowledges that that upon the issuance thereof, and until such time as the same is no longer
required under the applicable securities laws and regulations, the certificates representing any of the Securities will bear a legend in substantially
the following form:
THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR
THE SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE AND HAVE BEEN ISSUED IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION
FROM REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE SECURITIES ACT), AND,
ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION
STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A
TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS.
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11.2
The Subscriber hereby acknowledges and agrees to the Company making a notation on its records or giving instructions
to the registrar and transfer agent of the Company in order to implement the restrictions on transfer set forth and described in this Subscription
Agreement.
12.

Commission to the Agent

The Subscriber understands that upon Closing, the Company will pay a commission of up to seven percent (7%) of the gross proceeds raised
from the Offering, payable in cash.
13.

Costs

13.1
The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that all costs and expenses incurred by the Subscriber (including any fees and
disbursements of any special counsel retained by the Subscriber) relating to the purchase of the Shares shall be borne by the Subscriber.
14.

Governing Law

14.1
This Subscription Agreement is governed by the laws of the State of Nevada. The Subscriber, in its personal or corporate
capacity and, if applicable, on behalf of each beneficial purchaser for whom it is acting, irrevocably attorns to the jurisdiction of the courts of
the Province of British Columbia.
15.

Survival

15.1
This Subscription Agreement, including without limitation the representations, warranties and covenants contained herein,
shall survive and continue in full force and effect and be binding upon the parties hereto notwithstanding the completion of the purchase of the
Units by the Subscriber pursuant hereto.
16.

Assignment

16.1

This Subscription Agreement is not transferable or assignable.

17.

Severability

17.1
The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Subscription Agreement shall not affect or limit the
validity or enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Subscription Agreement.
18.

Entire Agreement

18.1
Except as expressly provided in this Subscription Agreement and in the agreements, instruments and other documents
contemplated or provided for herein, this Subscription Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the sale
of the Units and there are no other terms, conditions, representations or warranties, whether expressed, implied, oral or written, by statute or
common law, by the Company or by anyone else.
19.

Notices

19.1
All notices and other communications hereunder shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if mailed
or transmitted by any standard form of telecommunication. Notices to the Subscriber shall be directed to the address on page 17 and notices to
the Company shall be directed to it at Eden Energy Corp., 1925  200 Burrard Street, Vancouver, BC V6C 3L6 Attention: Don Sharpe, Fax No.
(604) 638-3525.
20.

Counterparts and Electronic Means
Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
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instrument. Delivery of an executed copy of this Agreement by electronic facsimile transmission or other means of electronic communication
capable of producing a printed copy will be deemed to be execution and delivery of this Agreement as of the date hereinafter set forth.
21.

Delivery Instructions

21.1

The Subscriber hereby directs the Company to deliver the Share and Warrant Certificates to:

(name)
(address)
21.2

The Subscriber hereby directs the Company to cause the Shares to be registered on the books of the Company as follows:

(name)
(address)
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Subscriber has duly executed this Subscription Agreement as of the date of acceptance by the Company.

(Name of Subscriber  Please type or print)

(Signature and, if applicable, Office)

(Address of Subscriber)

(City, State or Province, Postal Code of Subscriber)

(Country of Subscriber)
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ACCEPTANCE
The above-mentioned Subscription Agreement in respect of the Shares is hereby accepted by Eden Energy Corp.
DATED at Vancouver, British Columbia, the ____________ day of ______________________, 2005
EDEN ENERGY CORP.

Per:
Authorized Signatory
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EXHIBIT A
THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE
SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE AND HAVE BEEN ISSUED IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE SECURITIES ACT), AND, ACCORDINGLY,
MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE
SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO,
THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES LAWS.
THESE WARRANTS WILL EXPIRE AND BECOME NULL AND VOID
AT 4:30 P.M. (VANCOUVER TIME) ON ____________________, 2006.
SHARE PURCHASE WARRANTS
TO PURCHASE COMMON SHARES OF
EDEN ENERGY CORP.
incorporated in the State of Nevada
THIS
IS
TO
CERTIFY
THAT
___________________________________,
(the
Holder)
of
________________________________________________________________________, has the right to purchase, upon and subject to the
terms and conditions hereinafter referred to, up to ________________________________ fully paid and non-assessable common shares
(the Shares) in the capital of Eden Energy Corp. (hereinafter called the Company) on or before 4:30 p.m. (Vancouver time) on
___________________, 2006 (the Expiry Date) at a price per Share (the Exercise Price) of US$2.00 on the terms and conditions attached
hereto as Appendix A (the Terms and Conditions).
1.

ONE (1) WHOLE WARRANT AND THE EXERCISE PRICE ARE REQUIRED TO PURCHASE ONE SHARE. THIS
CERTIFICATE REPRESENTS __________________________ WARRANTS.

2.

These Warrants are issued subject to the Terms and Conditions, and the Warrant Holder may exercise the right to purchase
Shares only in accordance with those Terms and Conditions.

3.

Nothing contained herein or in the Terms and Conditions will confer any right upon the Holder hereof or any other person to
subscribe for or purchase any Shares at any time subsequent to the Expiry Date, and from and after such time, this Warrant
and all rights hereunder will be void and of no value.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the Company has executed this Warrant Certificate this ________ day of __________________, 2005.
EDEN ENERGY CORP.
Per:
Don Sharpe, President
PLEASE NOTE THAT ALL SHARE CERTIFICATES MUST BE LEGENDED AS FOLLOWS DURING THE CURRENCY OF
APPLICABLE HOLD PERIODS:
THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR THE
SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE AND HAVE BEEN ISSUED IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE SECURITIES ACT), AND, ACCORDINGLY,
MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION STATEMENT UNDER THE
Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
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SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO,
THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES LAWS.

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

APPENDIX A
TERMS AND CONDITIONS dated _____________________, __________, attached to the Warrants issued by Eden Energy Corp.
1.

INTERPRETATION

1.1

Definitions

In these Terms and Conditions, unless there is something in the subject matter or context inconsistent therewith:

1.2

(a)

Company means Eden Energy Corp. until a successor corporation will have become such as a result of
consolidation, amalgamation or merger with or into any other corporation or corporations, or as a result of the
conveyance or transfer of all or substantially all of the properties and estates of the Company as an entirety to
any other corporation and thereafter Company will mean such successor corporation;

(b)

Companys Auditors means an independent firm of accountants duly appointed as auditors of the
Company;

(c)

Director means a director of the Company for the time being, and reference, without more, to action by the
directors means action by the directors of the Company as a Board, or whenever duly empowered, action by
an executive committee of the Board;

(d)

herein, hereby and similar expressions refer to these Terms and Conditions as the same may be amended
or modified from time to time; and the expression Article and Section, followed by a number refer to the
specified Article or Section of these Terms and Conditions;

(e)

person means an individual, corporation, partnership, trustee or any unincorporated organization and words
importing persons have a similar meaning;

(f)

shares means the common shares in the capital of the Company as constituted at the date hereof and any
shares resulting from any subdivision or consolidation of the shares;

(g)

Warrant Holders or Holders means the holders of the Warrants; and

(h)

Warrants means the warrants of the Company issued and presently authorized and for the time being
outstanding.
Gender

Words importing the singular number include the plural and vice versa and words importing the masculine gender include the feminine and
neuter genders.
1.3

Interpretation not affected by Headings

The division of these Terms and Conditions into Articles and Sections, and the insertion of headings are for convenience of reference only and
will not affect the construction or interpretation thereof.
1.4

Applicable Law

The Warrants will be construed in accordance with the laws of the Province of British Columbia.
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2.

ISSUE OF WARRANTS

2.1

Additional Warrants

The Company may at any time and from time to time issue additional warrants or grant options or similar rights to purchase shares of its capital
stock.
2.2

Warrant to Rank Pari Passu

All Warrants and additional warrants, options or similar rights to purchase shares from time to time issued or granted by the Company, will
rank pari passu whatever may be the actual dates of issue or grant thereof, or of the dates of the certificates by which they are evidenced.
2.3

2.4

Issue in substitution for Lost Warrants
(a)

In case a Warrant becomes mutilated, lost, destroyed or stolen, the Company, at its discretion, may
issue and deliver a new Warrant of like date and tenor as the one mutilated, lost, destroyed or
stolen, in exchange for and in place of and upon cancellation of such mutilated Warrant, or in lieu
of, and in substitution for such lost, destroyed or stolen Warrant and the substituted Warrant will
be entitled to the benefit hereof and rank equally in accordance with its terms with all other
Warrants issued or to be issued by the Company.

(b)

The applicant for the issue of a new Warrant pursuant hereto will bear the cost of the issue thereof
and in case of loss, destruction or theft furnish to the Company such evidence of ownership and of
loss, destruction, or theft of the Warrant so lost, destroyed or stolen as will be satisfactory to the
Company in its discretion and such applicant may also be required to furnish indemnity in amount
and form satisfactory to the Company in its discretion, and will pay the reasonable charges of the
Company in connection therewith.
Warrant Holder Not a Shareholder

The holding of a Warrant will not constitute the Holder thereof a shareholder of the Company, nor entitle him to any right or interest in respect
thereof except as in the Warrant expressly provided.
3.

NOTICE

3.1

Notice to Warrant Holders

Any notice required or permitted to be given to the Holders will be in writing and may be given by prepaid registered post, electronic facsimile
transmission or other means of electronic communication capable of producing a printed copy to the address of the Holder appearing on the
Holders Warrant or to such other address as any Holder may specify by notice in writing to the Company, and any such notice will be deemed
to have been given and received by the Holder to whom it was addressed if mailed, on the third day following the mailing thereof, if by facsimile
or other electronic communication, on successful transmission, or, if delivered, on delivery; but if at the time or mailing or between the time of
mailing and the third business day thereafter there is a strike, lockout, or other labour disturbance affecting postal service, then the notice will
not be effectively given until actually delivered.
3.2

Notice to the Company
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Any notice required or permitted to be given to the Company will be in writing and may be given by prepaid registered post, electronic facsimile
transmission or other means of electronic communication capable of producing a printed copy to the address of the Company set forth below or
such other address as the Company may specify by notice in writing to the Holder, and any such notice will be deemed to have been given and
received by the Company to whom it was addressed if mailed, on the third day following the mailing thereof, if by facsimile or other

Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

-3-

electronic communication, on successful transmission, or, if delivered, on delivery; but if at the time or mailing or between the time of mailing
and the third business day thereafter there is a strike, lockout, or other labour disturbance affecting postal service, then the notice will not be
effectively given until actually delivered:
Eden Energy Corp.
1925  200 Burrard Street
Vancouver, British Columbia
Canada V6C 3L6
Attention: Don Sharpe
Fax No. (604) 638-3525
with a copy to:
Clark Wilson LLP
Barristers and Solicitors
800  885 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, British Columbia
Canada V6C 3H1
Attention: William L. Macdonald
Fax: (604) 687-6314
4.

EXERCISE OF WARRANTS

4.1

Method of Exercise of Warrants

The right to purchase shares conferred by the Warrants may be exercised by the Holder surrendering the Warrant Certificate representing same,
with a duly completed and executed subscription in the form attached hereto and a bank draft or certified cheque payable to or to the order
Company, at par, in Vancouver, Canada, for the purchase price applicable at the time of surrender in respect of the shares subscribed for in
lawful money of the United States of America, to the Company at the address set forth in, or from time to time specified by the Company
pursuant to, Section 3.2.
4.2

Effect of Exercise of Warrants
(a)

Upon surrender and payment as aforesaid the shares so subscribed for will be deemed to have been
issued and such person or persons will be deemed to have become the Holder or Holders of record
of such shares on the date of such surrender and payment, and such shares will be issued at the
subscription price in effect on the date of such surrender and payment.

(b)

Within ten business days after surrender and payment as aforesaid, the Company will forthwith
cause to be delivered to the person or persons in whose name or names the shares so subscribed
for are to be issued as specified in such subscription or mailed to him or them at his or their
respective addresses specified in such subscription, a certificate or certificates for the appropriate
number of shares not exceeding those which the Warrant Holder is entitled to purchase pursuant to
the Warrant surrendered.
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4.3

Subscription for Less Than Entitlement

The Holder of any Warrant may subscribe for and purchase a number of shares less than the number which he is entitled to purchase pursuant
to the surrendered Warrant. In the event of any purchase of a number of shares less than the number which can be purchased pursuant to a
Warrant, the Holder thereof upon exercise thereof will in
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addition be entitled to receive a new Warrant in respect of the balance of the shares which he was entitled to purchase pursuant to the surrendered
Warrant and which were not then purchased.
4.4

Warrants for Fractions of Shares

To the extent that the Holder of any Warrant is entitled to receive on the exercise or partial exercise thereof a fraction of a share, such right may
be exercised in respect of such fraction only in combination with another Warrant or other Warrants which in the aggregate entitle the Holder
to receive a whole number of such shares.
4.5

Expiration of Warrants

After the expiration of the period within which a Warrant is exercisable, all rights thereunder will wholly cease and terminate and such Warrant
will be void and of no effect.
4.6

Time of Essence

Time will be of the essence hereof.
4.7

Subscription Price

Each Warrant is exercisable at a price per share (the Exercise Price) of US$2.00. One (1) Warrant and the Exercise Price are required to
subscribe for each share during the term of the Warrants.
Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, no Holder shall exercise Warrants, nor shall the Company exercise any right to require a Holder to
exercise Warrants pursuant to Section 5.1 below, if as a result of such exercise the Holder would then become a ten percent beneficial owner
(as defined in Rule 16a-2 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) of Shares. For greater certainty, the Warrants shall not be
exercised by the Holder, and the Corporation shall not give effect to any exercise of Warrants, if, after giving effect to such exercise, the Holder
of such securities, together with its affiliates, would in aggregate beneficially own, or exercise control or direction over that number of voting
securities of the Corporation which is 10% or greater of the total issued and outstanding voting securities of the Corporation, immediately after
giving effect to such conversion.
4.8

Adjustment of Exercise Price
(a)

The Exercise Price and the number of shares deliverable upon the exercise of the Warrants will be
subject to adjustment in the event and in the manner following:
(i)

If and whenever the shares at any time outstanding are subdivided into a greater or
consolidated into a lesser number of shares the Exercise Price will be decreased or
increased proportionately as the case may be; upon any such subdivision or consolidation
the number of shares deliverable upon the exercise of the Warrants will be increased or
decreased proportionately as the case may be.

(ii)

In case of any capital reorganization or of any reclassification of the capital of the
Company or in the case of the consolidation, merger or amalgamation of the Company
with or into any other Company (hereinafter collectively referred to as a
Reorganization), each Warrant will after such Reorganization confer the right to
purchase the number of shares or other securities of the Company (or of the Companys
resulting from such Reorganization) which the Warrant Holder would have been entitled
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Reorganization.
In any such case, if necessary, appropriate adjustments will be made in the application of the provisions of this
Article Four relating to the rights and interest thereafter of the Holders of the Warrants so that the provisions of this
Article Four will be made
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applicable as nearly as reasonably possible to any shares or other securities deliverable after the Reorganization on
the exercise of the Warrants.
The subdivision or consolidation of shares at any time outstanding into a greater or lesser number of shares (whether
with or without par value) will not be deemed to be a Reorganization for the purposes of this clause 4.8(a)(ii).
(b)

Anti-Dilution Provisions. Until such time as a registration statement has been declared effective to enable the resale of the
Shares to be received on exercise of the Warrants, the Exercise Price shall be subject to adjustment from time to time as
provided in this Section 4.8(b). In the event that any adjustment of the Exercise Price as required herein results in a fraction
of a cent, such Exercise Price shall be rounded up or down to the nearest cent.
(i)

Adjustment of Exercise Price. If and whenever the Company issues or sells any shares of Common Stock for a
consideration per share of less than the then the Exercise Price or for no consideration (such lower price, the Base
Share Price and such issuances collectively, a "Dilutive Issuance"), then, the Exercise Price shall be reduced to
equal the Base Share Price. Such adjustment shall be made whenever such shares of Common Stock or Capital
Share Equivalents are issued.

(ii)

Effect on Exercise Price of Certain Events. For purposes of determining the adjusted Exercise Price under Section
4.8(b) hereof, the following will be applicable:
A.

Issuance of Rights or Options. If the Company in any manner issues or grants any warrants, rights or
options, whether or not immediately exercisable, to subscribe for or to purchase Common Stock or other
securities exercisable, convertible into or exchangeable for Common Stock (Convertible Securities)
(such warrants, rights and options to purchase Common Stock or Convertible Securities are hereinafter
referred to as Options) and the price per share for which Common Stock is issuable upon the exercise of
such Options is less than the Exercise Price (Below Base Price Options), then the maximum total
number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of all such Below Base Price Options
(assuming full exercise, conversion or exchange of Convertible Securities, if applicable) will, as of the
date of the issuance or grant of such Below Base Price Options, be deemed to be outstanding and to have
been issued and sold by the Company for such price per share. For purposes of the preceding sentence, the
price per share for which Common Stock is issuable upon the exercise of such Below Base Price
Options is determined by dividing (i) the total amount, if any, received or receivable by the Company as
consideration for the issuance or granting of all such Below Base Price Options, plus the minimum
aggregate amount of additional consideration, if any, payable to the Company upon the exercise of all
such Below Base Price Options, plus, in the case of Convertible Securities issuable upon the exercise of
such Below Base Price Options, the minimum aggregate amount of additional consideration payable upon
the exercise, conversion or exchange thereof at the time such Convertible Securities first become
exercisable, convertible or exchangeable, by (ii) the maximum total number of shares of Common Stock
issuable upon the exercise of all such Below Base Price Options (assuming full conversion of Convertible
Securities, if applicable). No further adjustment to the Exercise Price will be made upon the actual
issuance of such Common Stock upon the exercise of such Below Base Price Options or upon the
exercise, conversion or exchange of Convertible Securities issuable upon exercise of such Below Base
Price Options.

B.

Issuance of Convertible Securities. If the Company in any manner issues or sells any Convertible
Securities, whether or not immediately convertible (other than
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where the same are issuable upon the exercise of Options) and the price per share for which Common Stock
is issuable upon such exercise, conversion or exchange is less than the Exercise Price, then the maximum
total number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise, conversion or exchange of all such
Convertible Securities will, as of the date of the issuance of such Convertible Securities, be deemed to be
outstanding and to have been issued and sold by the Company for such price per share. For the purposes
of the preceding sentence, the price per share for which Common Stock is issuable upon such exercise,
conversion or exchange is determined by dividing (i) the total amount, if any, received or receivable
by the Company as consideration for the issuance or sale of all such Convertible Securities, plus the
minimum aggregate amount of additional consideration, if any, payable to the Company upon the exercise,
conversion or exchange thereof at the time such Convertible Securities first become exercisable, convertible
or exchangeable, by (ii) the maximum total number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise,
conversion or exchange of all such Convertible Securities. No further adjustment to the Exercise Price will
be made upon the actual issuance of such Common Stock upon exercise, conversion or exchange of such
Convertible Securities.
C.

Change in Option Price or Conversion Rate. If there is a change at any time in (i) the amount of additional
consideration payable to the Company upon the exercise of any Options; (ii) the amount of additional
consideration, if any, payable to the Company upon the exercise, conversion or exchange of any
Convertible Securities; or (iii) the rate at which any Convertible Securities are convertible into or
exchangeable for Common Stock (in each such case, other than under or by reason of provisions designed
to protect against dilution), the Exercise Price in effect at the time of such change will be readjusted to the
Exercise Price which would have been in effect at such time had such Options or Convertible Securities
still outstanding provided for such changed additional consideration or changed conversion rate, as the
case may be, at the time initially granted, issued or sold.

.

Calculation of Consideration Received. If any Common Stock, Options or Convertible Securities are
issued, granted or sold for cash, the consideration received therefor for purposes of this Warrant will be
the amount received by the Company therefor, before deduction of reasonable commissions, underwriting
discounts or allowances or other reasonable expenses paid or incurred by the Company in connection with
such issuance, grant or sale. In case any Common Stock, Options or Convertible Securities are issued or
sold for a consideration part or all of which shall be other than cash, the amount of the consideration other
than cash received by the Company will be the fair market value of such consideration, except where such
consideration consists of securities, in which case the amount of consideration received by the Company
will be the fair market value (average of the closing bid and ask price, if traded on any market) thereof as
of the date of receipt. In case any Common Stock, Options or Convertible Securities are issued in
connection with any merger or consolidation in which the Company is the surviving corporation, the
amount of consideration therefor will be deemed to be the fair market value of such portion of the net
assets and business of the non-surviving corporation as is attributable to such Common Stock, Options or
Convertible Securities, as the case may be. The fair market value of any consideration other than cash or
securities will be determined in good faith by an investment banker or other appropriate expert of national
reputation selected by the Company and reasonably acceptable to the holder hereof, with the costs of such
appraisal to be borne by the Company.
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E.

(c)

4.9

Exceptions to Adjustment of Exercise Price. Notwithstanding the foregoing, no adjustment will be
made under this Section 4.8(b) in respect of (1) the granting of options to employees, officers and
directors of the Company pursuant to any stock option plan duly adopted by a majority of the nonemployee members of the Board of Directors of the Company or a majority of the members of a
committee of non-employee directors established for such purpose, (2) upon the exercise of the
Debentures or any Debentures of this series or of any other series or security issued by the Company in
connection with the offer and sale of this Company's securities pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, or
(3) upon the exercise of or conversion of any convertible securities, options or warrants issued and
outstanding on the Original Issue Date, provided that the securities have not been amended since the
date of the Purchase Agreement, or (4) acquisitions or strategic investments, the primary purpose of
which is not to raise capital.

The adjustments provided for in this Section 4.8 are cumulative and will become effective immediately after the record
date or, if no record date is fixed, the effective date of the event which results in such adjustments.
Determination of Adjustments

If any questions will at any time arise with respect to the Exercise Price or any adjustment provided for in Section 4.8, such questions will be
conclusively determined by the Companys Auditors, or, if they decline to so act any other firm of certified public accountants in the United
States of America that the Company may designate and who will have access to all appropriate records and such determination will be binding
upon the Company and the Holders of the Warrants.
5.

MANDATORY WARRANT EXERCISE

5.1

Exercise at the option of the Company

After a registration statement qualifying the resale of the Shares has been filed with the SEC and declared effective, the Company may require
the Holder, at any time following the date that the closing bid price of the Shares as listed on a Principal Market (as defined herein), as quoted
by Bloomberg L.P. (the Closing Bid Price) has been averaged or above US$2.50 for a period of twenty consecutive trading days, to exercise
the Warrants and acquire the Shares at the Exercise Price. The Holder must exercise the Warrants in accordance with Section 4.1 within five
(5) business days of the receipt of notice from the Company, after which time the Warrants shall be cancelled if unexercised. As used herein,
Principal Market shall mean The National Association of Securities Dealers Inc.'s OTC Bulletin Board, the Nasdaq SmallCap Market, or the
American Stock Exchange. If the Common Shares are not traded on a Principal Market, the Closing Bid Price shall mean the reported Closing
Bid Price for the Common Shares, as furnished by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., for the applicable periods.
6.

COVENANTS BY THE COMPANY

6.1

Reservation of Shares

The Company will reserve and there will remain unissued out of its authorized capital a sufficient number of shares to satisfy the rights of
purchase provided for herein and in the Warrants should the Holders of all the Warrants from time to time outstanding determine to exercise
such rights in respect of all shares which they are or may be entitled to purchase pursuant thereto and hereto.
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7.

WAIVER OF CERTAIN RIGHTS

7.1

Immunity of Shareholders, etc.

The Warrant Holder, as part of the consideration for the issue of the Warrants, waives and will not have any right, cause of action or remedy
now or hereafter existing in any jurisdiction against any past, present or future incorporator, shareholder, Director or Officer (as such) of the
Company for the issue of shares pursuant to any Warrant or on any covenant, agreement, representation or warranty by the Company herein
contained or in the Warrant.
8.

MODIFICATION OF TERMS, MERGER, SUCCESSORS

8.1

Modification of Terms and Conditions for Certain Purposes

From time to time the Company may, subject to the provisions of these presents, modify the Terms and Conditions hereof, for the purpose of
correction or rectification of any ambiguities, defective provisions, errors or omissions herein.
8.2

Warrants Transferable

The Warrants and all rights attached to it are transferable, subject to applicable law.
DATED as of the date first above written in these Terms and Conditions.
EDEN ENERGY CORP.

By:
Don Sharpe, President
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FORM OF SUBSCRIPTION
TO:

Eden Energy Corp.
1925  200 Burrard Street
Vancouver, BC
V6C 3L6

The undersigned Holder of the within Warrants hereby subscribes for ______________ common shares (the Shares) of Eden Energy Corp.
(the Company) pursuant to the within Warrants at US$2.00 per Share on the terms specified in the said Warrants. This subscription is
accompanied by a certified cheque or bank draft payable to or to the order of the Company for the whole amount of the purchase price of the
Shares.
The undersigned hereby directs that the Shares be registered as follows:

NAME(S) IN FULL

ADDRESS(ES)

NUMBER OF SHARES

TOTAL:

(Please print full name in which share certificates are to be issued, stating whether Mr., Mrs. or Miss is applicable).
DATED this ____________ day of ____________________, 2005.
In the presence of:

Signature of Witness

Signature of Warrant Holder

Please print below your name and address in full.
Name (Mr./Mrs./Miss)

Address

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SUBSCRIPTION
The signature to the subscription must correspond in every particular with the name written upon the face of the Warrant without alteration or
enlargement or any change whatever. If there is more than one subscriber, all must sign.
In the case of persons signing by agent or attorney or by personal representative(s), the authority of such agent, attorney or representative(s) to
sign must be proven to the satisfaction of the Company.
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If the Warrant certificate and the form of subscription are being forwarded by mail, registered mail must be employed.
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EXHIBIT B

INSTRUCTIONS FOR WIRING FUNDS TO CLARK WILSON

FOR WIRING U.S. FUNDS

HSBC Bank USA, N.Y.

( OR )

Routed through Bank of America NT & SA
New York, New York

ABA No.

021 001 088

ABA No.

0266009593

Swift Code

HKBCCATT

For Credit to

CIBC, Toronto ON

Acct No.

000050881

Acct No.

6550-8-26157

For further credit to:

For further credit to:

HSBC Bank Canada

Canadian Imperial Bank Of Commerce

885 West Georgia Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6C 3G1

400 Burrard Street
Vancouver, B.C. V6B 1P9

Account Name

Clark, Wilson

Account Name

Clark, Wilson

US Trust Acct.

491689-002

Cdn Trust Acct.

24-01215

Transit No.

10020

Transit No.

10

Bank Code

16

Bank Code

10

Swift No.

HKBCCATT

Swift No.

CIBCCATT

Important: Please ask the bank to quote our file no. 23747-7 or lawyers initial, WLM.
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EXHIBIT C
U.S. SECURITIES LAW QUESTIONNAIRE
All capitalized terms herein, unless otherwise defined, have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Subscription Agreement.
1.

The Subscriber covenants, represents and warrants to the Company that:
(a)

the Subscriber is a U.S. Person;

(b)

the Subscriber has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters as to be
capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the transactions detailed in the Subscription
Agreement and it is able to bear the economic risk of loss arising from such transactions;

(c)

the Subscriber is acquiring the Securities for investment only and not with a view to resale or
distribution and, in particular, it has no intention to distribute either directly or indirectly any of
the Securities in the United States or to U.S. Persons; provided, however, that the Subscriber may
sell or otherwise dispose of any of the Securities pursuant to registration thereof pursuant to the
Securities Act of 1933 (the 1933 Act) and any applicable State securities laws unless an
exemption from such registration requirements is available or registration is not required pursuant
to Regulation S under the 1933 Act or registration is otherwise not required under this 1933 Act;

(d)

the Subscriber satisfies one or more of the categories indicated below (please check the
appropriate box):

o

Category 1
An organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of
the United States Internal Revenue Code, a corporation, a
Massachusetts or similar business trust or partnership, not formed for
the specific purpose of acquiring the Securities, with total assets in
excess of US $5,000,000;

o

Category 2
A natural person whose individual net worth, or
joint net worth with that persons spouse, on the date of purchase
exceeds US $1,000,000;

o

Category 3
A natural person who had an individual income in
excess of US $200,000 in each of the two most recent years or joint
income with that persons spouse in excess of US $300,000 in each of
those years and has a reasonable expectation of reaching the same
income level in the current year;

o

Category 4
A bank as defined under Section (3)(a)(2) of the
1933 Act or savings and loan association or other institution as defined
in Section 3(a)(5)(A) of the 1933 Act acting in its individual or
fiduciary capacity; a broker dealer registered pursuant to Section 15 of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (United States); an insurance
company as defined in Section 2(13) of the 1933 Act; an investment
company registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (United
States) or a business development company as defined in
Section 2(a)(48) of such Act; a Small Business Investment Company
Copyright © 2012 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
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licensed by the U.S. Small Business Administration under
Section 301(c) or (d) of the Small Business Investment Act of 1958
(United States); a plan with total assets in excess of $5,000,000
established and maintained by a state, a political subdivision thereof, or
an agency or instrumentality of a state or a political subdivision thereof,
for the benefit of its employees; an
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employee benefit plan within the meaning of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of
1974 (United States) whose investment decisions are made by a plan fiduciary, as defined in
Section 3(21) of such Act, which is either a bank, savings and loan association, insurance company
or registered investment adviser, or if the employee benefit plan has total assets in excess of
$5,000,000, or, if a self-directed plan, whose investment decisions are made solely by persons that
are accredited investors;

o
o

(e)

2.

Category 5
A private business development company as defined in Section 202(a)(22)
of the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 (United States);
Category 6

A director or executive officer of the Company;

o

Category 7
A trust with total assets in excess of $5,000,000, not formed for the
specific purpose of acquiring the Securities, whose purchase is directed by a sophisticated
person as described in Rule 506(b)(2)(ii) under the 1933 Act; or

o

Category 8
An entity in which all of the equity owners satisfy the requirements of one
or more of the foregoing categories; and

the Subscriber is not acquiring the Securities as a result of any form of general solicitation or general advertising including
advertisements, articles, notices or other communications published in any newspaper, magazine or similar media or
broadcast over radio, or television, or any seminar or meeting whose attendees have been invited by general solicitation or
general advertising.

The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that:
(a)

if the Subscriber decides to offer, sell or otherwise transfer any of the Securities, it will not offer, sell or otherwise transfer
any of such securities directly or indirectly, unless:
(i)

the sale is to the Company;

(ii)

the sale is made outside the United States in a transaction meeting the requirements of Rule 904 of Regulation S
under the 1933 Act and in compliance with applicable local laws and regulations;

(iii)

the sale is made pursuant to the exemption from the registration requirements under the 1933 Act provided by
Rule 144 thereunder if available and in accordance with any applicable state securities or Blue Sky laws; or

(iv)

the Securities are sold in a transaction that does not require registration under the 1933 Act or any applicable
U.S. state laws and regulations governing the offer and sale of securities, and it has prior to such sale furnished to
the Company an opinion of counsel reasonably satisfactory to the Company;

(b)

any of the Warrants may not be exercised in the United States or by or on behalf of a U.S. Person unless registered under
the 1933 Act and any applicable state securities laws unless an exemption from such registration requirements is available;

(c)

the Subscriber has not acquired the Securities as a result of, and will not itself engage in, any directed selling efforts (as
defined in Regulation S under the 1933 Act) in the United States in respect of the Securities which would include any
activities undertaken for the purpose of, or that
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could reasonably be expected to have the effect of, conditioning the market in the United States for the resale of any of
the Securities; provided, however, that the Subscriber may sell or otherwise dispose of any of the Securities pursuant to
registration of any of the Securities pursuant to the 1933 Act and any applicable state securities laws or under an exemption
from such registration requirements and as otherwise provided herein; 
(d)

upon the issuance thereof, and until such time as the same is no longer required under the applicable requirements of the
1933 Act or applicable U.S. State laws and regulations, the certificates representing any of the Securities will bear a legend
in substantially the following form:
THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
OR THE SECURITIES COMMISSION OF ANY STATE IN RELIANCE UPON AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE SECURITIES ACT), AND,
ACCORDINGLY, MAY NOT BE OFFERED OR SOLD EXCEPT PURSUANT TO AN EFFECTIVE REGISTRATION
STATEMENT UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OR PURSUANT TO AN AVAILABLE EXEMPTION FROM, OR IN A
TRANSACTION NOT SUBJECT TO, THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND IN
ACCORDANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE SECURITIES LAWS.

(e)

the Company may make a notation on its records or instruct the registrar and transfer agent of the Company in order to
implement the restrictions on transfer set forth and described herein; and

(f)

the Subscriber, if an individual, is a resident of the state or other jurisdiction in its address on the Subscribers execution
page of the Subscription Agreement, or if the Subscriber is not an individual, the office of the Subscriber at which the
Subscriber received and accepted the offer to acquire the Securities is the address listed on the Subscribers execution page
of the Subscription Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Questionnaire as of the ___________ day of
__________________________, 2005.
If a Corporation, Partnership or Other Entity:

If an Individual:

Print or Type Name of Entity

Signature

Signature of Authorized Signatory

Print or Type Name

Type of Entity

Social Security/Tax I.D. No.
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EXHIBIT D
MULTILATERAL INSTRUMENT 45-103
ACCREDITED INVESTOR QUESTIONNAIRE
The purpose of this Questionnaire is to assure Eden Energy Corp. (the Company) that the undersigned (the Subscriber) will meet certain
requirements for the registration and prospectus exemptions provided for under Multilateral Instrument 45-103 (MI 45-103), as adopted by
the British Columbia Securities Commission and the Alberta Securities Commission, in respect of a proposed private placement of securities
by the Company (the Transaction). The Company will rely on the information contained in this Questionnaire for the purposes of such
determination.
The undersigned Subscriber covenants, represents and warrants to the Company that:
1.

the Subscriber has such knowledge and experience in financial and business matters as to be capable of evaluating the merits
and risks of the Transaction and the Subscriber is able to bear the economic risk of loss arising from such Transaction;

2.

the Subscriber satisfies one or more of the categories of accredited investor (as that term is defined in MI 45-103)
indicated below (please check the appropriate box):

o

an individual who beneficially owns, or who together with a spouse beneficially own, financial assets (as defined in
MI 45-103) having an aggregate realizable value that, before taxes but net of any related liabilities, exceeds
CDN.$1,000,000;

o

an individual whose net income before taxes exceeded CDN.$200,000 in each of the two more recent years or
whose net income before taxes combined with that of a spouse exceeded $300,000 in each of those years and who,
in either case, has a reasonable expectation of exceeding the same net income level in the current year;

o

an individual registered or formerly registered under the Securities Act (British Columbia), or under securities
legislation in another jurisdiction of Canada, as a representative of a person or company registered under the
Securities Act (British Columbia), or under securities legislation in another jurisdiction of Canada, as an adviser or
dealer, other than a limited market dealer registered under the Securities Act (Ontario);

o

a Canadian financial institution as defined in National Instrument 14-101, or an authorized foreign bank listed in
Schedule III of the Bank Act (Canada);

o

the Business Development Bank of Canada incorporated under the Business Development Bank Act (Canada);

o

an association under the Cooperative Credit Associations Act (Canada) located in Canada;

o

a subsidiary of any company referred to in any of the foregoing categories, where the company owns all of the
voting securities of the subsidiary, except the voting securities required by law to be owned by directors of that
subsidiary;

o

a person or company registered under the Securities Act (British Columbia), or under securities legislation of
another jurisdiction of Canada, as an adviser or dealer, other than a limited market dealer registered under the
Securities Act (Ontario);
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o

a pension fund that is regulated by either the Office of the
Superintendent of Financial Institutions (Canada) or a
provincial pension commission or similar regulatory
authority;

o

an entity organized in a foreign jurisdiction that is analogous
to any of the entities referred to in any of the foregoing
categories in form and function;

o

the government of Canada or a province, or any crown
corporation or agency of the government of Canada or a
province;

o

a municipality, public board or commission in Canada;

o

a national, federal, state, provincial, territorial or municipal
government of or in any foreign jurisdiction, or any agency
thereof;

o

a registered charity under the Income Tax Act (Canada);

o

a corporation, limited partnership, limited liability
partnership, trust or estate, other than a mutual fund or nonredeemable investment fund, that had net assets of at least
CDN.$5,000,000 as reflected on its most recently prepared
financial statements;

o

a mutual fund or non-redeemable investment fund that, in the
local jurisdiction, distributes it securities only to persons or
companies that are accredited investors;

o

a mutual fund or non-redeemable investment fund that, in the
local jurisdiction, distributes its securities under a prospectus
for which the regulator has issued a receipt; or

o

a person or company in respect of which all of the owners of
interests, direct or indirect, legal or beneficial, are persons or
companies that are accredited investors.

The Subscriber acknowledges and agrees that the Subscriber may be required by the Company to provide such additional documentation as may
be reasonably required by the Company and its legal counsel in determining the Subscribers eligibility to acquire the Shares under relevant
Legislation.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Questionnaire as of the _________ day of
_____________________, 2005.
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If a Corporation, Partnership or Other Entity:

If an Individual:

Print or Type Name of Entity

Signature

Signature of Authorized Signatory

Print or Type Name

Type of Entity
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EXHIBIT E
OFFICERS CERTIFICATE

TO:

RAB Special Situations L.P. (the Subscriber)

This is the Notice of Closing and Officers Certificate (Certificate) required to be delivered to the Subscriber at closing in connection with
the subscription of Units of Eden Energy Corp. (the Corporation) by the Subscriber pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Subscription
Agreement (the Subscription Agreement) dated March ___, 2005.
Terms that are capitalized in this Certificate and that are not otherwise defined in this Certificate have the same meaning ascribed to them in the
Subscription Agreement.
I, Don Sharpe, President of the Corporation, hereby certify, not in my personal capacity but as an officer of the Corporation, for and on behalf
of the Corporation as follows:

1.

As President of the Corporation, I am fully familiar with the assets, liabilities, business and affairs of the Corporation and
have conducted such inquiries and verified such facts, as I have considered necessary for the purposes of executing this
Certificate.

2.

The Corporation has in all material respects performed or complied with all covenants, agreements and conditions contained
in the Subscription Agreement.

3.

The representations and warranties of the Corporation contained in the Subscription Agreement and the Letter (except for
representations and warranties that speak as of a specific date) are true and correct as of the date of this Certificate.

4.

As of the Closing Date (and including the securities issued by the Corporation in connection with the Offering), the
Corporations authorized capital will consist oCommon Shares of which o Common Shares will be issued and
outstanding, and the Corporation will have options exercisable to acquire o Common Shares at an average exercise price of
$o and warrants exercisable to acquired oCommon Shares at an average exercise price of $o. Except as set forth in this
Certificate, as of the date of the Closing Date, the Corporation will have no other convertible securities or convertible debt
outstanding

DATED as of the o day of March, 2005.

Eden Energy Corp.

President
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Exhibit 23.1
May 2, 2005

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission
Division of Corporation Finance
450 Fifth St. N.W.
Washington DC 20549
Re: Eden Energy Corp. - Form SB-2 Registration Statement
Dear Sirs:
As an independent registered public accounting firm, we hereby consent to the inclusion or incorporation by reference in this Form SB-2
Registration Statement dated May 2, 2005, 2005, of the following:



Our Report to the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Eden Energy Corp. dated January 31, 2005, on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company as at December 31, 2004 and for the year then ended.

In addition, we also consent to the reference to our firm included under the heading Experts in this Registration Statement.
Yours truly,

Dale Matheson Carr-Hilton LaBonte
Dale Matheson Carr-Hilton LaBonte
Chartered Accountants
Vancouver, British Columbia
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Exhibit 23.2

AMISANO HANSON

A PARTNERSHIP of INCORPORATED PROFESSIONALS

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
We hereby consent to the use in the Form SB-2, dated May 2, 2005, of our report dated March 11, 2004, relating to the financial statements of
Eden Energy Corp. (formerly E-com Technologies Corporation), as of December 31, 2003, which appears in such Form SB-2.
Vancouver, Canada
May 2, 2005

750 West Pender Street, Suite 604

Vancouver Canada

V6C 2T7

Amisano Hanson
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Telephone: 604-689-0188

Facsimile: 604-689-9773

E-MAIL: amishan@telus.net
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